Chemistry, Structures and Advanced Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources

Burhan Ates^a, Suleyman Koytepe^a, Ahmet Ulu^a, Canbolat Gurses^b, Vijay Kumar Thakur^{c,d,e*}

^aInonu University, Department of Chemistry, 44280 Malatya, Turkey

^bInonu University, Department of Molecular Biology and Genetics, 44280 Malatya, Turkey

^cBiorefining and Advanced Materials Research Center, Scotland's Rural College (SRUC),

Kings Buildings, West Mains Road, Edinburgh EH9 3JG, UK

^dEnhanced Composites and Structures Center, School of Aerospace, Transport and Manufacturing, Cranfield University, Bedfordshire MK43 0AL, UK

^eDepartment of Mechanical Engineering, School of Engineering, Shiv Nadar University, Uttar Pradesh 201314, India.

*Correspondence to Professor Vijay Kumar Thakur (PhD), SRUC, UK. E-mail: <u>Vijay.Thakur@sruc.ac.uk; vijayisu@hotmail.com</u> Tel: +44 (0) 1387242906

ABSTRACT

Researchers have recently focused on the advancement of new materials from bio-renewable and sustainable sources because of the great concerns about environmental, waste accumulation and destruction, and the inevitable depletion of fossil resources. The bio-renewable-based materials have been extensively used as a matrix or reinforcement in many applications. In the development of innovative methods and materials, composites offer important advantages because of their excellent properties such as ease of fabrication, higher mechanical properties, high thermal stability, and many more. Especially, the nanocomposites (obtained by using biorenewable sources) have significant advantages when compared to conventional composites. The nanocomposites have been utilized in many applications ranging from food, biomedical, electroanalysis, energy storage, wastewater treatment, automotive etc. This comprehensive review provides chemistry, structures, advanced applications and recent developments about nanocomposites obtained from bio-renewable sources.

Keywords: Bio-renewable sources; nanocomposites; natural polymers; reinforcement; advanced applications

BIOGRAPHY

Burhan Ates is currently a professor at Inonu University (Turkey). He received a PhD degree from Inonu University, Chemistry Department in 2007. He was a postdoctoral researcher in the Department of Chemistry, University of Missouri Rolla, the USA from 2007 to 2008. His research interests focus on the design of biocompatible polymeric tissue adhesive materials and their biomedical applications, anticancer drug development, L-asparaginase immobilization and biosensor.

BIOGRAPHY

Suleyman Koytepe is a professor of Chemistry at Inonu University in Turkey. He graduated B.Sc. in Chemistry at Inonu University, Malatya. He obtained his M.Sc. and a PhD degree in physical chemistry and polymer chemistry at Inonu University. His research focuses on the polymeric sensor, polymeric nanocomposite, nanotechnology, and nanomaterials. Also, he works on the synthesis of polymeric biomaterials and the design of biosensors.

BIOGRAPHY

Ahmet Ulu graduated in 2008 with a degree in the Department of Chemistry at Gaziosmanpaşa University, Tokat-Turkey. Afterwards, He received a master's degree in chemistry in 2014 and his PhD in 2019, both from Chemistry from the Inonu University, Malatya-Turkey under the supervision of Prof. Burhan Ates. He is currently a chemist at the Inonu University, working in mainly the following subjects: the immobilization of enzymes, biodegradable polymeric stents, and nanoparticles.

BIOGRAPHY

Canbolat Gurses is currently a research assistant at Inonu University (Turkey) in the Department of Molecular Biology and Genetics. He received an MSc degree from the University of Washington, Materials Science and Engineering department in 2012. Now, he is a PhD candidate for both biochemistry and molecular biology. His research interests focus on the investigations related to cytotoxicity and genotoxicity properties of bio-adhesives as well as antimicrobial and DNA binding activities of new generation complexes.

BIOGRAPHY

Vijay Kumar Thakur is currently a Professor in New Products from Biomass in the Biorefining and Advanced Materials Research Centre at SRUC, Edinburgh, UK and also holds an Adjunct Professor position in the Research School of Polymeric Materials, Jiangsu

3

University, China; Visiting Professor at Shiv Nadar University India and Visitor at Cranfield University, UK. He has previously held faculty positions at Cranfield University UK, Washington State University USA, and Nanyang Technological University, Singapore. His research activities the disciplines of Biorefining, Chemistry, span Chemical Engineering, Manufacturing, Materials Science and Nanotechnology, as well as all aspects of Sustainable and Advanced Materials. He has been a PI/ Co-I on several projects sponsored by BAE Systems; EPSRC (EP/T024607/1); Royal Academy of Engineering (IAPP-33-24/01/2017; IAPP18-19\295); UKIERI (DST/INT/UK/P-164/2017); Innovate UK and others. He has published over 170 SCI journal articles, 2 patents, 50 books & 37 book chapters in areas concerning polymers, nanotechnology and materials science (Hi 66, Citations >13,000). He sits on the editorial board of several SCI journals (e.g. Nature Scientific Reports, Industrial Crops & Products, J of Renewable Materials, Adv. Polym. Tech., Int. J. Polym. Anal. Charact., Polym. Adv. Technol., Biomolecules, Nanomaterials, Surfaces and Interfaces, Nano-Structures & Nano-Objects etc) as an Editor/Editorial Advisory Board member.

CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION

- 1.1. Overview of Nanocomposite Materials Containing Petroleum-Based Polymers
- 1.2. Need for Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources
- 1.3. Bio-Renewable Resources Used for Nanocomposites Preparation
- 1.4. Processing Methods of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources
 - 1.4.1. Melt mixing
 - 1.4.2. In-situ polymerization
 - 1.4.3. Solution mixing
 - 1.4.4. Extrusion
 - 1.4.5. Sol-gel process
 - 1.4.6. Hand-Lay-Up and Spray-Up techniques
 - 1.4.7. Resin Transfer Molding or Resin Injection Methods
 - 1.4.8. Other methods

- Chemistry, Structure and Biomedical Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources
 - 2.1. Drug Delivery Applications
 - 2.2. Tissue Engineering Applications
 - 2.3. Gene Therapy Applications
 - 2.4. Antimicrobial Applications
- Chemistry, Structure and Separation Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources
 - 3.1. Water Purification Applications
 - 3.1.1. Removal of Dyes
 - 3.1.2. Removal of Other Contaminants
 - 3.2. Gas Purification Applications
 - 3.3. Dye Purification Applications
 - 3.4. Other Membrane Applications
- 4. Chemistry, Structure and Electronic Applications
 - 4.1. Chemistry, Structure, and Sensing Applications
 - 4.1.1. Biosensor Applications of Chitosan-Based Nanocomposites
 - 4.1.2. Biosensor Applications of Cellulose-Based Nanocomposites
 - 4.1.3. Biosensor Applications of β-Cyclodextrin-Based Nanocomposites
 - 4.1.4. Biosensor Applications of Guar Gum-Based Nanocomposites
 - 4.1.5. Other Sensor Applications
 - 4.2. Chemistry, Structure, and Energy Storage Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources
 - 4.2.1. Energy Storage Applications of Chitosan-Based Nanocomposites
 - 4.2.2. Energy Storage Applications of Cellulose-Based Nanocomposites
 - 4.2.3. Energy Storage Applications of Other Renewable Resource-Based Nanocomposites
- Chemistry, Structure and Packing Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources
- Chemistry, Structure and Optic Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources
- Chemistry, Structure and Automotive Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources

- 8. Chemistry, Structure and Flame Retardancy Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources
- 9. Other Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources
- 10. Conclusions and the Future Directions of The Researches on Nanocomposites from

Bio-Renewable Resources

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

ABBREVIATIONS

REFERENCES

1. INTRODUCTION

Composites, which are one of the most important materials of modern technology, consist of at least two components comprising a continuous matrix phase and an uncontinuous reinforcement material to obtain the best features from each component. ¹ Composites are generally divided into three basic classes according to the size of the reinforcement in the structures. These are macro composites, micro composites, and nanocomposites. Nanocomposites that provide quite outstanding features can be prepared by the application of reinforcement (below 100 nm in size) phase in the composite. ^{2,3} Because of the high surfaceto-volume ratio of nanocomposites, interaction between matrix and reinforcement is very high. Despite having a very short history, nanocomposites have been frequently used in many applications due to their superior properties. Applications of nanocomposites have been considerably developed in engineering, plastic, rubber, coating, adhesive, electronic and optic materials.⁴ However, this rapid growth has also brought some problems and created severe environmental problems due to the late decomposition periods of nanocomposites in nature. The most important solution to eliminate these problems is the preparation of nanocomposite components from bio-renewable resources. For this purpose, nanocomposites are obtained from bio-renewable resources by the use of vegetable oils, cellulose, starch (S), lignin, chitin, natural rubber, and proteins to name a few. These nanocomposites are mainly divided into three groups in terms of structural type. These reinforcements are composites obtained from bio-renewable sources, composites that their matrix is originated from bio-renewable sources, and composites that have both reinforcement and matrix component obtained from bio-renewable sources.

The most important common features expected in nanocomposites made from biorenewable resources are biocompatibility, biodegradability, easy preparation, low density, inexpensive and suitability for modifications.⁵ Besides these commonly seen features, low thermal conductivity, increased flexibility, low dielectric constant, good workability depending on the application are also general properties of these structures.^{6,7} However, the lower thermal, mechanical and chemical stability compared to petroleum originating structures has restricted their industrial applicability in many applications. To improve these properties, many studies are being carried out in this area.

Nanocomposites made from bio-renewable resources reveal a greener approach than petroleum-derived composites and they are used especially in food, packaging and biomedical industries. Besides, these nanocomposites exhibit high potential to have applications in several areas such as membrane, sensor, energy storage, optic, automotive and flame retardant (Figure 1).



Figure 1. Application areas of nanocomposites obtained from bio-renewable resources.

This review consists of a detailed discussion of chemistry, structure, advantage and disadvantage of the applications of nanocomposites made from bio-renewable resources in the aforementioned areas. Besides, this review aims to provide information on recent developments in polymer nanocomposites containing bio-renewable nanomaterials with special attention to several promising applications.

1.1. Overview of Nanocomposite Materials Containing Petroleum-Based Polymers

Nowadays, petroleum-based polymers are present almost everywhere in our daily life. Polypropylene, polyethylene, nylon, polytetrafluoroethylene, and polyester are the most common examples of synthetic polymers. These polymers have originated from petroleum hydrocarbons. ⁸ In our daily life, synthetic polymers are used since most of them have versatile characteristics such as chemical inertness, resistivity, strength, and flexibility.^{9–11} For instance, related to their high tensile strength, petroleum-based polymers have such a variety of applications from tires to sails. When petroleum-based polymers are used as a woven material, it is especially beneficial for underwater applications. ¹² Unfortunately, lots of important problems have been associated with the usage of synthetic polymers. ^{12,13} Most desirable features of many synthetic polymers have many advantages such as inertness, resistance against chemical and biological degradations. However, these features also mean that they will last a long time after being discarded. For instance, researchers have reported that five hundred years are needed to disintegrate a plastic bag. ¹⁴

Until the recent past, synthetic polymers have been widely used for manufacturing of composites. ¹⁵ However, the usage of these polymers exhibits huge challenges and problems. ^{13,16} These challenges include a scarcity of organic reagents because of decreasing oil and gas sources year by year and at the same time rising in oil and gas prices. Other disadvantages of using synthetic polymers have environmental issues related to their incineration, global

warming effects, and cross-contaminations as well as toxicity risks for consumers. ^{12,17,18} These concerns have brought solutions for the new generation materials that can defeat these handicaps and proceed with the desired features for different applications. Thus, to diminish the extensive usage of petroleum-based polymers, researchers have been investigating the design of polymer composites in terms of better performance and cost. Moreover, graphite, glass fibres, clays silica, carbon nanotubes, and silica have been often used as reinforcement materials during the production of these polymer composites. ⁹ However, these reinforcements are generally non-degradable, inorganic and occasionally petroleum-based materials. Thus, engineers and researchers are still trying to easily produce nanocomposites that are made of natural, bio-renewable and completely biodegradable resources. Some researchers have reported that bio/natural fibres reinforced polymer exhibit a positive effect on the advancement of product characteristics.^{8,10} Bio-renewable nanocomposites have been extensively researched since there are urgent needs to develop biodegradable polymers, extinguishing in the usage of fossil-based raw materials, and decreasing of CO2 release. The use of agricultural sources for the preparation of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources is one of the reasons why biorenewable nanocomposites have been getting attention for researches recently. The utilization of these nanocomposites is hoped to elevate the speed of manufacturing and recycling with increased environmental friendliness. The significance of the bio-renewable nanocomposites in different industries has become very imperative because of their desired mechanical, flame retardancy, resistance, electronic, and thermal isolation characteristics. ^{19,20}

1.2. Need for Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources

In recent years, serious problems related to petroleum-based polymers have arisen. These petroleum-based polymers cause the gigantic amount of wastes that are stockpiled on our earth facing with huge negative environmental impacts and extremely high recycling costs. ^{21,22} Soon,

especially in 2050, it is anticipated that the magnitude of petroleum-based polymer wastes will be grown by at least three-fold, unfortunately. ²³ Even though petroleum-based polymers have lots of negative impacts on the environment, they have a constructive and synergic blend of structural features such as flexibility, thermal performance, transparency and strength. Until now, petroleum-based polymers have become the most chosen polymers for many industrial applications because of their excellent chemical and physical properties. Nevertheless, according to the plastics recycling and recovering data results, post-consumer plastic waste that can be reused is estimated to be only 39.5%. ²⁴ The remains have harmful effects on soil, water, and air, so, it affects wildlife, habitat and also human health. Therefore, we also face an increased risk of falling victim to illness and disease. To minimize the negative environmental effects of post-consumer petroleum-based waste, bio-renewable and eco-friendly materials are the most suitable resolutions. ^{25,26}

Natural polymers offer attractive advantages such as biodegradability (by an enzymatic or hydrolytic mechanism), renewability, biocompatibility, non-toxicity, eco-friendly and low cost. Additionally, they can be easily functionalized according to their application potentials. However, low mechanical properties and little water resistance are the main disadvantages of the materials, thereby, their use is heavily limited. To eliminate the natural material's disadvantages, nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources have been produced via various techniques to enhance the mechanical features (tensile, flexural and impact). So far, bio-renewable sources such as chitosan (CH), cellulose, β -Cyclodextrin (β -CD), alginate have been extensively utilized as a matrix or fillers to fabricate Bio-Nano composites. In today's world, nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources have a wide role and will play an increasing role in numerous industrial applications. These applications include drug delivery, tissue engineering, fuel cells, electronics, food packaging, environmental remediation, genetic engineering, and biomedical sciences.²⁷

1.3. Bio-Renewable Resources Used for Nanocomposites Preparation

Bio-renewable nanocomposites can generally be evaluated in three groups. These are nanocomposites containing renewable additives, nanocomposites containing bio-renewable resource matrix and nanocomposites having both additive and matrix structure based on bio-renewable resources. Examples of such bio-renewable materials include cellulose, starch, chitin, chitosan, pectin, hyaluronic acid, lignin, terpenes, vegetable oils, proteins (keratin, silk, gelatin, gluten, albumin, etc.) and natural rubber.²⁸⁻¹⁵

Starch and cellulose have an important place as a plant-based additive and matrix material. It is the most widely used biopolymer especially in the field of starch composite.^{29–32} It is generally employed as a matrix because of its ease of availability, low cost, the advantage of biodegradability and ease of processing. These are used to increase biocompatibility in medical applications and to increase the adherence of active substances to the composite structure. Mixtures with more than 85% starch can be used in injection moulding and foam manufacturing.³³ Starch-based composites and starch structure have deprived physical properties for example high hydrophilicity, high biodegradability, low thermal strength, and low decomposition temperature.³⁴ Therefore, in the manufacturing of starch-based composites, modification of the starch structure may sometimes be required. The cellulose structure is generally preferred for imparting mechanical strength to the nanocomposite structure as a natural fibre. ³⁵ Cellulose is one of the most natural polymeric structure found in the environment. It is generally used in wood structures, as cellulose fibres, as microcrystalline cellulose or as hemicellulose, and as cellulose nanocrystals extracted from bacteria, tunicate and algae, etc. in composite structures.³⁵ Cellulose improves biocompatibility and biodegradability as well as increases mechanical properties as additives.

Chitosan is a widely available linear amino polysaccharide in nature and has been used in the production of many different composites.^{36,37} It is insoluble in organic solvents, alkali, and

water.²⁹ However, it is soluble in some diluted inorganic/ organic solutions and has antimicrobial properties, high absorption ability, radiation stability, bioinert and biocompatibility. Because of these properties, water treatment, drug release, food packaging, synthesis of biocompatible structures is very important in applications. Due to these common properties, it is very popular in composite chemistry. Chitin is a non-toxic, physiologically inert, biodegradable polysaccharide with high mechanical stability and strength.³⁸ After cellulose, it is one of the most common natural polysaccharides.³⁹ Therefore, chitin has been frequently used in polymer composite structures to enhance the mechanical properties of materials.

Another important edible source used in composite structures is vegetable oils.²⁹ This source, which is quite cheap and widely used, is employed in composite structures in two ways. The first method is the synthesis of polymers and composites of unsaturated oils through double bonds. The second method is the preparation of polymers and composites by obtaining fatty acids. The unsaturation levels of fats are important in both methods. Polymer syntheses can be made directly via double bonds in oil or polymeric structures can be made by modifications such as epoxidation and acrylation. Today, polyester, polyurethane, polyolefin copolymers or polymeric resins have been successfully synthesized from vegetable oils. Composites of these synthesized polymers can be widely seen in many applications.

Detailed bio-renewable resources used in the nanocomposites are also given in Table 1 with chemical structures, advantages, and disadvantages.

Natural scaffolds	Chemical Structure	Advantages	Disadvantages
Chitin	HO OH O	Nontoxic, biodegradability, abundance and renewability	Low mechanical resistance
Chitosan	HO HO HO OH O HO NH ₂ O	Natural cationic copolymer, excellent biocompatibility, low toxicity, biodegradability, and broad-spectrum antibacterial activity ⁴⁰	Low mechanical resistance, low porosity
Cellulose	HO OH OHO OH	Biocompatibility, derivatizability, low density, nonabrasive, combustible, non-toxic, low cost, and biodegradable, renewability ⁴¹	Poor interfacial adhesion, low melting point, and water sensitivity
Starch	HOH_2C HOH_2C O HO O HO O O O O O O O O O	Nontoxic, biodegradability, abundance and renewability	Ageing, and poor mechanical performance

Table 1. Summary of chemical structures, advantages, and disadvantages of various bio-renewable resources

β-Cyclodextrin		High water solubility, low viscosity, low toxicity, and low immunogenicity	Poor mechanical performance
Alginate	HO HO OH OH COONa	Biocompatible, easily functionalized, good cell recognition biocompatible, simple gelation methods	Poor mechanical performance
Hyaluronic Acid	HO HO HO COOH	Consistency, biocompatibility, hydrophilicity, unique viscoelasticity and limited immunogenicity ⁴²	Rare allergic reactions





1.4. Processing Methods of Nanocomposites from Bio-renewable Resources

Nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources can be produced easily by those methods through which common composites are produced in general. These methods are melt mixing, in-situ polymerization, solution mixing, melt inter-chelation, precipitation, extrusion, sol-gel process and spray mixing, etc.³ Besides, layered composite structures can be synthesized by hand-lay-up and spray-lay-up technique using natural fibres. Also, many new methods such as electrospinning, nanofibre direct dispersion techniques are successfully being used in the preparation of nanocomposites from renewable sources. However, some of these methods remain at the level of academic study only and are not used in industrial production. In the industrial production dimension, generally simpler and less processing steps are preferred. Before all these techniques, the use of renewable resources is realized by two methods. Sustainable polymers and composites from bio-renewable sources may be produced by certain modifications of chitosan, starch, cellulose gluten, or gelatin.^{46,47} In this way, the basic properties of natural polymers such as biocompatibility, biodegradability, easy processability are transferred to the obtained composites. Biologically based polymers from renewable sources have been also produced from biomass or agricultural wastes in a two-step process ^{47–} ⁴⁹, which are abundant. In particular, techniques such as melt intercalation, extrusion, and insitu polymerization which are commonly applied to the production of polymeric nanocomposites, have been applied to bio-based polymeric composites in the last decade.



Figure 2. Preparation methods of nanocomposites from bio-renewable (A, B, C, and D are the types of bio-renewable composites).

1.4.1. Melt mixing

This technique is widely used for the preparation of composite .⁵⁰ In this technique, the matrix material is first made liquid by heating above the melting point. The composite is moulded or shaped by controlling the additive into this liquid melt. In this process, fusible structures, such as gelatin, which are generally isolated from renewable sources, are used as the matrix, while

most renewable sources can be used as additives. Structurally renewable fibre is a more appropriate technique for the production of particulate or layered additive composites.

1.4.2. In-situ polymerization

It is a technique performed mainly by polymerization of the monomer structure containing the additive.⁵⁰ At the time of polymerization, since the additive is present, the additive would be dispersed into the matrix. In this method, cellulose, chitin, starch, lignin, which are renewable additives, can be converted to composites during polymerization of commonly used organic monomers. Another renewable source-based composite synthesis in this technique is the polymerization of monomers obtained from renewable sources. Particularly during the polymerization of terpenes and terpenoids, nanocomposites can be synthesized by the addition of nanostructures such as clay, CNT and graphene. Another example is the conversion of double-bonded or epoxidized monomers from vegetable oils into nanocomposites with common additives. In composite production with the in-situ polymerization technique, additive agglomeration remains at a minimum level. Therefore, the homogeneity of the produced materials is quite high.

1.4.3. Solution mixing

This technique is generally preferred for academic studies. In general, the matrix material is dissolved with a solvent and mixed with the additive. Then the composite structure is obtained by coating, moulding or film casting techniques. The amount of the solvent used, its toxicity, and the removal of the solvent after composite formation are some of the disadvantages of this method.

1.4.4. Extrusion

Extrusion is the economically most important and most preferred production method for thermoplastic-based composites and nanocomposites. Extrusion allows the raw material to be melted and pushed through the melting channel having single or multiple screws to take the shape in the outlet block. During this process, nanocomposites can be readily prepared by incorporating nanoscale additives into the molten raw material. Some natural fibre reinforced PP composites had been prepared with an injection moulding process.⁵¹ Unsaturated polyester, epoxy, and vinyl ester resins were then used extensively in the preparation of such composites. Due to its suitability for mass production and practicality, the most common and important production technique is the extrusion and injection moulding techniques. However, the technique is only suitable for the production of thermoplastic composites. This increased production has led to the emergence of many technological products. Also, this increased production enables the application of new production methods.

1.4.5. Sol-gel process

The sol-gel technique is based on the hydrolysis of a metal alkoxide and subsequent hydrolysis.⁵² In this technique, metal oxide nanoparticles such as SiO₂, TiO₂, ZnO can be prepared or prepared in ceramic matrices. Therefore, it is a frequently preferred technique for the preparation of inorganic metal oxide additives in the process of manufacturing nanocomposites from renewable sources. However, metal requires expensive chemicals such as alkoxides that are moisture-resistant and expensive.

Sol-gel methodology and hybrid composite production techniques, which are used to overcome the mechanical strength problem, which is a fundamental problem in bio-based composites, are still at the academic level and are not frequently applied industrially. In particular, an adaptive molecule is bonded to the surface of the matrix to increase the mechanical properties and to eliminate the phase difference between the additive and the matrix material. The bonding technique with a strong covalent bond to the matrix structure is very promising for the future.

1.4.6. Hand-Lay-Up and Spray-Up techniques

In addition to the above mentioned innovative methods for the preparation of composites from renewable sources, traditional methods, for example, hand-lay-up and spray-up are also used.

The simplest production technique is hand lay-up technique to produce bio-based composites from renewable sources. In this method, composites containing up to 30% of additives can be produced. In this technique, bio-based additives are introduced into the preformed mould and matrix resin is applied to the fibre with simple hand tools such as a brush. In the hand-lay-up method, the fibre or fibre-structured additive is deposited on a mould and impregnated with liquid resin.²⁴⁻⁵³ This process is continued until the desired thickness of the material is obtained. In particular, this technique is frequently used in polyester, epoxy resins, vinyl ester, and phenolic resins. The hand-lay-up method is commonly preferred for a small number of productions. In this technique, resins obtained from renewable sources can be used very easily. There are many examples of composites prepared especially with vegetable oil-based resins. Mixing coating and spray-mixing (Spray-up) techniques are the mechanized forms of hand layup and are used to obtain several products. With a spray gun, the mixture of chopped fibres and liquid resin is sprayed onto the open mould to form the mould. In these techniques, natural fibres and resins are generally sprayed simultaneously into or onto the mould. The additive phase in the form of fibres, nanoplate, particles or fabrics is sprayed onto the surface of the container together with the resin mixed with the curing agent with an application-specific spraygun. After spraying, the surface is dried and the composite structure is obtained.

1.4.7. Resin Transfer Molding or Resin Injection Methods

Resin transfer moulding or resin injection is another common nanocomposite preparation technique. This method uses a two-piece mould, while the manual tilting system makes it faster and has a long service life. Felt, fabric and both of them are used as reinforcing elements. The reinforcing material is first placed in the mould and closed to fill the mould. It is coated with late-resins in the matrix to prevent the fibres from entering into the mould. The resin is pumped into the mould under pressure, but this process is very time-consuming. In this method, it can be vacuumed to evacuate the interior air and to thoroughly penetrate the resin into the fibres.

1.4.8. Other methods

Electrospinning, centrifugal casting, pultrusion or nanofibre direct dispersion techniques are also used to prepare nanocomposites from renewable sources. Electrospinning is generally accepted as a single-stage, simple, reliable, effective and inexpensive technique for producing different synthetic or natural polymer-based nanofibres in diameters ranging from micrometers to nanometers. ⁵⁴ Electrospinning and polymer-containing nanofibre production is the most advantageous method of nanofibre manufacturing and offers the user a wide range of biomaterial production. The use of nanofibres produced by this method is also quite high. Nanofibrous polymer materials designed with electrospinning have been preferred and have attracted great attention because of their excellent characteristics such as high aspect ratios, surface area-volume, variable pore sizes, and oxygen permeability. These properties make them outstanding candidates for a variety of applications, such as nonwoven mats of electrospun fibres, dressings, and drug delivery systems. In this method, the polymer solution prepared in the desired properties is dissolved in a suitable solvent and placed into the syringe. After this first step, the electrical solution is applied to the plate opposite to the syringe at a high potential ranging from 5 to 50 kV to generate an electrical field. At the end of the syringe needle, due to the surface tension force, the polymer solution appears as a hemispherical shape. At this time, when the potential difference reaches a certain threshold value, the spherical polymer droplet becomes conical and extends and forms fibre. The fibres formed are collected by a conductive collector. With this method, many nanocomposites based on bio-renewable resources have been produced especially as drug delivery systems, wound dressings, or tissue support systems.

2. Chemistry, Structure and Biomedical Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources

The first polymeric materials used by mankind are wool, starch and cellulose obtained from nature and protein-derived animal shell & horns. Many of these natural polymeric structures are still used in many industries. These natural sources are chemically structured as polysaccharides, proteins, polyester, and mixed composites. Guar gum, pectin, cellulose, chitin/CH, dextrin and dextran structures are used as polysaccharides. Among protein-based natural polymers, wool, silk, gelatin, collagen, casein, albumin, and fibrinogen are the most preferred structures. Besides, since natural polymers are originated from plants, frequently used natural polymers such as polyhydroxialconates, lignin, natural rubber (polyisoprene) and polyglutamic acid are renewable structures. These polymeric structures are produced in nature by plant or animal origins and the composites prepared by using these polymeric structures are bacterially or hydrolytically biodegradable in soil. The other basic feature of medical materials is biocompatibility; in other words, the desired applications are possible without causing any side effects in the human body. Although bio-based polymers are preferred as biocompatible materials for clinical applications, nanocomposites formed from renewable sources have recently received increased attention. ⁵⁵ Versatility and easily adaptation to many systems of nanocomposites obtained from bio-renewable resources are the main reasons for this interest over synthetic materials for being utilized in many biomedical applications. Particularly, the four major categories of medical applications for nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources have come to the fore: drug delivery, gene therapy, antimicrobial, and tissue engineering applications (Figure 3).

2.1. Drug Delivery Applications

Drug delivery systems include formulations that have been created for the delivery of pharmacological agents into desired regions more reliably. ⁵⁶ Being directed for the drug to the

target zone is important both for more effective treatment and reducing side effects. Therefore, the creation of drug delivery systems containing different components exhibits intense importance. In this context, especially nanocomposites and their types including bio-renewable components are promising, and many studies are being carried out on drug delivery applications. Drug releasing mechanisms in these studies include different stimulating factors such as temperature, pH, light, etc. (Figure 4).



Figure 3. Preparation methods of nanocomposites obtained bio-renewable sources for biomedical applications.

Specifically, the surface of the nanoparticles can be well functionalized with different groups and made suitable to attach the drug molecule (Figure 5). In this way, the release of many drugs in different structures and functions can be performed practically.

For instance, a biological nanocomposite, hydroxyapatite (HA)/collagen alginate had been improved not only as a bone filler but also a drug delivery tool. The nanocomposite was incorporated with the bone formation protein, which is a growth factor. ⁵⁷ Furthermore, the

HA/collagen scaffolds which have porous structures had also been used for fibroblast growth factor-2. This drug releasing system had given the desired results by inducing the regeneration of cartilage and bone for *in vivo* models. ⁵⁸ Apart from these, HA/CH nanocomposites had been used as a drug-delivery matrix and a precise release of vitamins had been realized from that matrix. ⁵⁹

For the controlled release of drugs, double-layered hydroxide nanocomposites have been presented as another fascinating strategy. In the production of nanocomposite structures, they can serve as hosts for the addition of biopolymers between the double-layered hydroxides. Anionic polysaccharides such as alginate, carrageenan, and pectin have been used to form *N*-hydroxyl layered double-hydroxide matrixes. ⁶⁰ Moreover, layered materials can also behave like a molecule transfer for biomedical applications. ¹²



Figure 4. Illustration of nanocomposites for the drug delivery system.



Figure 5. Modification of core-shell nanoparticles. (a; free surface, b; chloro functionalized particles, c; -SH functionalized particles, d; -NH₂ functionalized particles, e; epoxide functionalized particles, f; dendrimer containing particles, g; antibody, small organic group or drug functionalized particles, I; polymer bounded particles, j; florescent group containing particles, k; DNA bounded particles, l; protein bounded particles, m; enzyme-containing particles

Layered double-hydroxide polylactic acid composites have been functionalized with ibuprofen, an anti-inflammatory drug. ⁶¹ Natural biopolymer xyloglucan which is extracted from Jatoba seeds in Brazil with layered double-hydroxides has been produced as a means for slow release of enalaprilat, an anti-hypertensive agent. ⁶²

The multifunctional core-shell nanogels have been also prepared by Wu et al. for simultaneous optical temperature and targeted tumor sensing. ⁶³ The targeting ligand was the

hyaluronic acid chains. Also, the thermoresponsive nanogels based on polyethylene glycol (PEG) had an Ag-Au bimetallic nanoparticle core used for imaging. To initiate the release of the therapeutic drug depending on the local temperature increase of the targeted area, near-infrared (NIR) irradiation was used. For the encapsulation of different compounds, lignin is also used as nanoparticles since it is cheap, bio-renewable and eco-friendly material. There are lots of pharmaceutical applications in which lignin is commonly utilized. Because of having economic and positive ecological characteristics, lignin is a good candidate for encapsulation of different nanoparticles in a variety of pharmaceutical applications. For instance, using an anti-solvent precipitation method, Frangville et al. have prepared lignin nanoparticles that had sizes ranging from 100 nm to microns. Different production methodologies were used during the synthesis of LNPs (Figure 6). ^{64,65} Nanoparticles today have significant potential in drug delivery systems. Lignin nanoparticles (LNPs) didn't exhibit any toxicity in terms of cells, especially for yeast and microalgae. So, these LNPs are being utilized as desired tools not only for drug delivery applications but also for cosmetic and pharmaceutical products.

Furthermore, LNPs may be utilized as adsorbents to eliminate environmental contaminants from the contaminated regions. Richter et al. have used a precipitation method to assist the synthesis of LNPs. These LNPs were prepared using Ag⁺ and treated with poly diallyl dimethyl ammonium chloride (PDAC) for coating. ⁶⁶ The coated material was biodegradable and environmentally friendly. So, this coating also helped the adhesion of the LNPs to the bacterial membranes. At the end of this process, it could effectively kill different varieties of bacteria. Fortunately, by producing these metallic silver nanoparticles (AgNPs) having elevated antimicrobial activity as well as biodegradable cores, it is possible to reduce the negative environmental impact.



Figure 6. The different production processes of LNPs. Reproduced with permission from ref 57. Copyright 2018 Elsevier.

Lievonen et al. had used a solvent exchange method to make spherical LNPs. In this method, lignin was dissolved in tetrahydrofuran (THF). Subsequently, water was added without any chemical modification of lignin. ⁶⁷ According to the results of the predialysis lignin amount, the diameter of prepared nanoparticles varied in a variety of 200-500 nm. Moreover, a nanoparticle suspension was gradually added into the PDAC solution. Thus, the surface of LNPs had been functionalized by the adsorption of an oppositely charged PDAC. Prepared LNPs were proposed to be utilized in nanocomposites, and antimicrobial materials as well as drug delivery applications.

Lintinen et al. had synthesized LNPs with iron to obtain particles which have different sizes from 50 to 400 nm (Figure 7). ⁶⁸ In this method, lignin was dissolved in THF. Then, this solution was mixed with $Fe(OiPr)_3$. A condensation reaction was initiated via this solution. The reaction was terminated by putting H₂O into a solution. At the end of the procedure, iron(III)-complexed LNPs were prepared. Besides, nanoparticles prepared with $Fe(OiPr)_2$ or $Fe(OiPr)_2/Fe(OiPr)_3$ exhibited different magnetic characteristics closely related to the volume

and form of these particles. As a result, LNPs might be utilized to make magnetic nanoparticles having antibacterial as well as biocompatible characteristics.

Figueiredo et al. had reported on the improvement of three types of spherical LNPs using the solvent exchange method (Figure 8). ⁶⁹ These three types had been prepared as pure LNPs (pLNPs), ⁶⁷ Fe-LNPs ⁶⁸, and Fe₃O₄-LNPs. Fe₃O₄-LNPs had been produced by adding a kind of lignin mix into oleic acid-coated with Fe₃O₄ nanoparticles. The superparamagnetic behavior of synthesized materials was promised to be used for the cure of cancer. ⁶⁹ LNPs showed less cytotoxic effect over different cancer cells. Besides, they exhibited less hemolytic rates after 12 hours' incubation with red blood cells. Thus, pLNPs were used for the encapsulation of hydrophobic drugs. The encapsulation developed releasing systems and increased the anticancer role. Consequently, it presented significant properties for drug delivery and biomedical applications. Especially for cancer therapies, LNPs have enabled the researchers to modulate compartments to make cellular uptake easily possible in target cells. ⁶⁹



Figure 7. (a) The schematic representation of LNPs. TEM micrographs of (b) pLNPs, (c) Fe-LNPs and (d) Fe₃O₄-LNPs and magnification of the Fe₃O₄-NPs in LNPs. Reproduced with permission from ref ⁶⁸. Copyright 2017 Elsevier.

Lignin nanocapsules had been synthesized by Li et al. In their method, lignin was found to be first completely soluble in ethanol. After that, H₂O was mixed in the solution. ⁷⁰ The size of the prepared nanocapsules was changeable in a variety of tens to hundreds of nanometers. These nanocapsules were suitable for different applications due to their excellent properties such as biodegradability, low cost, biocompatibility, and environmentally friendly characteristics.



Figure 8. The scattered light intensity (a.u.) versus water content (w%) in the solution graph with kraft lignin in ethanol (left) and kraft lignin nanocapsules in ethanol and water solution $(right)^{69}$. Reproduced with permission from ref 69. Copyright 2016 Elsevier.

Chen et al. had reported their studies on the production of pH-responsive lignin capsules. They had used the interfacial miniemulsion polymerization method. ⁷¹ Firstly, they vigorously mixed oil phase including azobisisobutyronitrile (oil-soluble initiator), butyl acetate, hexadecane (co-stabilizer), and trimethylolpropane tris(3-mercapto propionate) (cross-linker) with H₂O phase including lignosulfonate with/out sodium dodecyl sulfate (SDS). Thus, droplets made from oil-in-water mini emulsions were prepared using an ultrasonicator. Then, for forming nanocapsules, the cross-linking was added into lignin. By dissolving coumarin-6 in butyl acetate, nanocapsules were also prepared using the same procedure. Finally, the diameters of capsules were found to be varied in the range of 50-300 nm. Coumarin-6 has a hydrophobic character and its release from the capsule shell was achieved in changing pH because of β -thiopropionate cross-linkings (Figure 9). The lignin capsules are one of the desired materials especially in controlled releasing applications for drugs, antioxidants, and essential oils.



Figure 9. (a) TEM micrographs of lignin capsules. (b) Releasing of coumarin-6 for lignin nanocapsules (pH 4.0 and pH 7.4). Reproduced with permission from ref ⁷¹. Copyright 2016 American Chemical Society.

Graphene-based nanocarriers exhibit a large specific surface area. Besides, they also prevent drugs from the early release of target cells. On the other hand, agglomeration in aqueous solutions is a big problem. In the research of Luo et al., graphene oxide (GO) had been homogenously embedded into 3-D porous networks of bacterial cellulose (BC) to make a new BC/GO nanocomposite drug nanocarriers (Figure 10). ⁷² In this study, ibuprofen (IBU) was loaded onto BC/GO nanocomposites for the first time. The characterization results revealed successful drug loading onto these BC/GO nanocomposites. Drug releasing researches indicated that IBU@BC/GO releasing corresponds to a non-Fickian diffusion mechanism. A significant feature of this BC/GO nanocarriers was also that they had higher cell viability compared to BC.



Figure 10. The mechanism of surface interactions between bacterial BC/GO and IBU. Reproduced with permission from ref⁷². Copyright 2017 Elsevier.

L-asparaginase (L-asparagine amino hydrolase, E.C 3.5.1.1) is one of the most widely used drugs in leukemia chemotherapy.⁷³ This drug is immobilized to various materials due to the side effects and short half-life of the enzyme. Natural and/or hybrid materials are the most preferred carriers. For instance, calcium-alginate/multi-walled carbon nanotube hybrid composite beads were used for immobilization of L-asparaginase.⁷⁴ After immobilization, L-ASNase displayed better stability and reusability. The authors reported that calcium-alginate/multi-walled carbon nanotube hybrid composite beads are promising carrier matrix for L-ASNase such as commercial enzyme-drugs. In another work, maltose functionalized magnetic core/shell Fe₃O₄@Au hybrid nanoparticle composite was synthesized for an efficient L-asparaginase immobilization ⁷⁵. According to the obtained results, pH and thermal stability of immobilized L-ASNase were significantly improved in comparison to the free enzyme-drug. Consequently, hybrid composites supports are good candidates for drug delivery or immobilization.

Samples of drug delivery applications of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources are also given in Table 2 as summary information.

Nanocomposite	Applications	Releasing	Ref.
Hydroxyapatite (HA)/collagen alginate	Inducing the regeneration of bone and cartilage for <i>in vivo</i> models	Fibroblast growth factor-2	58
HA/CH nanocomposite	Drug-delivery matrix	Vitamins	59
Double layered- hydroxide polylactic acid	Releasing of an anti-inflammatory drug	Ibuprofen	61
Double layered- hydroxide xyloglucan	Slowly releasing of an anti- hypertensive agent	Enalaprilat	62

Table 2. Drug delivery applications of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources
Lignin nanoparticles	Drug delivery	Benzazulene [®] and Sorafenib [®]	64,65
Silver-infused lignin- core nanoparticles	Antibacterial materials and drug delivery	Silver ions	66,67
Lignin nanoparticles with Fe ₃ O ₄	Antibacterial materials and drug delivery	Oleic acid	68
Spherical LNPs	The encapsulation of hydrophobic drugs	Hydrophobic drugs	69
pH-responsive lignin capsules	Controlled releasing applications for drugs, antioxidants, and essential oils	Coumarin-6	71
BC/GO nanocomposite	Controlled releasing of an anti- inflammatory drug	Ibuprofen	72

2.2. Tissue Engineering Applications

Tissue engineering aims to support tissue regeneration and growth of healthy cells or create materials that can be replaced. Materials to be developed in this field should include specific characters for application areas in terms of either morphological or structural sense. In this context, nanocomposites that are very good at mimicking the natural morphology of extracellular matrix surrounding cells are very suitable for the promotion and repair of tissue structures (Figure 11). The extracellular matrix has three main characteristics. ⁷⁶ The first of them, the extracellular matrix is the sum of macro-sized molecules, for example; protein and saccharides. Secondly, macromolecules in extracellular matrix exhibit **fibre** structures that have a length/diameter ratio higher than one hundred. Lastly, macromolecules in the extracellular matrix are generally less than 500 nm of diameter in nanoscale. In this context, it is clear that especially the extracellular compounds containing renewable bio-macromolecule structures and similar-sized nanocomposites have attracted great interest in this area.



Porous polymer matrix composite

Figure 11. Schematic illustration of tissue engineering applications of porous bio-renewable composites.

When we look in general to the field of tissue engineering, we can say that the most largescale application of nanocomposites generated from bio-renewable resources is bone-tissue engineering. Natural bone occurs by the hierarchical organization of collagen protein fibres, HA mineral nanocrystals, and proteoglycans in nanoscale. ⁷⁷ Collagen allows bone a structural matrix and flexibility with a high level of strength. Bone stiffness and tensile strength are provided by HA nanocrystals. Collagen, whose length of a fibre is 500 nm, is a triple-helical protein and these fibres form the structure of each collagen helical chain having 10 nm in length. During the recreation of the natural structure of bone, nanocomposites are formed by synthesizing polymer building blocks and HAs. ⁷⁸ In clinical orthopedics, biodegradable and bioabsorbable nanocomposites that have to induce and encouraging novel bone formation are essential for bone regeneration in the area of implementation. Furthermore, nanocomposites for bone tissue engineering should also include enough microporosity helping novel tissue formation. For this purpose, HA-collagen nanocomposite material prepared from bio-renewable resources was synthesized at 37 °C and pH 7. It had been determined that under these physiological conditions, collagen fibrils and HA nanoparticles led to a porous structure at the same time.⁷⁹ These kinds of scaffolds have been found to show high elasticity. Fortunately, they have also been successfully implanted into animals to repair and reconstruction of bone defects.⁸⁰ Scaffolds material can gain high flexibility and shape memory properties with ice crystal growth and its subsequent dry ice of 3-D pore structure of HA-collagen nanocomposites. ⁸¹ The homogeneous structure of CH-HA composites has been produced by the coprecipitation method. ⁸² Eventually, these composites can be implanted into bone marrow without any inflammation response. Besides, novel bone growth has occurred around implanted CH-HA nanocomposites. Another application from renewably resourced nanocomposites was that HAgelatin nanocomposite fibres were prepared by a process comprising electrospinning followed by precipitation. ⁸³ It was determined that bone derived osteoblast cells grew and multiplied by adhering on this prepared gelatin-HA fibre mesh. These nanocomposites can also allow the development of functional activity and differentiation of osteoblast cells. ⁸⁴

Besides, HA/CH-gelatin network composites composed of three components were produced by phase separation method. ⁸⁵ These composites have shown that osteoblasts hold this network and the extracellular matrix containing collagen I and proteoglycan were synthesized. Then, these HA/CH-gelatin network composites were found to induce bone-tissue generation. Furthermore, the composite including three components of gelatin/montmorillonite (MMT)-CH was produced. ⁸⁶ It had been found that mouse bone marrow-originated stromal stem cells adhered to gelatin/MMT-CH membranes to proliferate.

Nanocomposites formed by the alginate and HA polysaccharides are used for bone regeneration. In this structure, alginate serves as a polymeric sponge for tissue engineering scaffolds. Thus, biomimetic nanocomposite materials were formed by directly core-forming of apatite crystals on the spontaneous alginate chains allowing the development of osteoblast. ⁸⁷ Furthermore, in another work silk fibroin and HA nanocomposites had been synthesized with the method of coprecipitation. ⁸⁸ Besides, three-dimensional scaffolds made of porous structured silk fibroin network/nano-HA composites were produced. It had been reported that the silk-HA scaffold increases the vitality of osteoblasts as well as being tissue compatible with osteoblasts. Moreover, it had been shown that silk-HA fibril components forming in the scaffold

interact with cells and layers and locate in the extracellular matrix. ⁸⁹ In tissue engineering applications, nanocomposites were developed using bio-renewable resources of proteins (BSA, casein, etc.) and formed with nanocrystalline structured HAs. ^{90,91}

In another work, a uniform blend of chitin and poly (butylene succinate) (PBS) composite containing Chondroitin sulfate nanoparticles (CSnps) was developed and characterized. ⁹² The porosity of the blend scaffold increased with the incorporation of CSnps. For the proper gas and nutrient exchange, optimum porosity and controlled swelling were achieved. Human dermal fibroblasts attachment and proliferation also increased due to the macro-porous and bioactive nature of the nanocomposite. These nanocomposites may be utilized as a scaffold in skin tissue engineering (Figure 12). Poly-L-lactide (PLA) based nanocomposites are located in the elimination of bone tissue damages in tissue engineering. PLA in bone tissue is insufficient to withstand load resistance applications. Therefore, increased mechanical properties were obtained by doping of nanodopers such as fibres, clay, and HA to the structure of PLA based nanocomposites. It is an example of improving the flexural modulus and the strength of PLA-based nanocomposites and organically modified MMT into the PLA matrix enhanced the mechanical and thermal properties. ⁹⁴ It had been proved that such bio-renewable resourced PLA nanocomposites are successful in the bone repair processes in animal models. ⁹⁵



Figure 12. Schematic representation of preparation, scanning electron microscopy (SEM) micrographs and application of Chitin/PBS/CSnps scaffold. Reproduced with permission from ref ⁹². Copyright 2014 MDPI.

The widest range of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources in orthopedic applications is to repair bone with a certain part of the damage. Bone is a kind of nanocomposite including a polymer matrix (generally collagen) with nano-sized ceramics (generally HA). Recently, scientists related to the area in bone growth have said that once nanomaterials were prepared to mimic bone in terms of its proper characteristics, we would be able to have advanced osteoconductivity. ^{96,97} Du et al. ⁹⁶ had made nanocomposites consisting of HA/collagen, which creates porous microstructures. Since these structures are similar to bone in nanoscale, these kinds of materials help the formation and growth of bone. Furthermore, HA in the bone structure has another unique characteristic because of not having a big size and small surface. Particularly, Webster et al. ⁹⁷ had shown an important increment in preliminary

protein adsorption. Consequently, advanced adhesion in osteoblastic was observed compared with the conventional ceramic materials (HA, alumina, and titania). 98-100 The surface characteristics of scaffolds that are similar to natural bone in terms of the surface grain sizes will help in the growth of novel bone at the cells/biomaterial surface. Thus, the design of nextgeneration scaffold structures has to unify different nanosized materials. Implants that cause osteointegration by promoting cell and tissue interactions are required. Superficial properties are mostly dependent on any material' size. Therefore, nanosized materials generally possess high surface areas having some defects, which are currently unclear for the medical area. Roughness on the surface affects the relationships in adhesion, adsorption, and activity of proteins. 97,101-103 Liu et al. 104 reported that titania/poly(lactic-co-glycolic acid) (PLGA) composites showed osteoblast adhesion and calcium-containing mineral deposition. In another work, ¹⁰⁵ the authors showed high protein adsorption on nano-HA/PLA scaffolds compared to micro-HA/PLA scaffolds for osteoblast adhesion. A lot of researches focuses on the detailed points of elevated osteoblastic for nanomaterials. Some in vitro studies have shown the grain size in the nanometer scale for enhancing ceramic cytocompatibility as the primary parameter. For instance, ceramic formulations, and large grain size, elevated the adhesion of osteoblasts and diminished the adhesion of fibroblasts, which are the cells that are responsible for fibrous encapsulation and callus formation situations which are closely related to the success and failure of the implant, had been observed on nanosized HA alumina and titania. ⁹⁸ Decrease of the alumina grain size had elevated osteoblast adhesion and had decreased in fibroblast adhesion. Researches of the main points showed that the conformation, amount, and activity of vitronectin, which is a kind of protein and has a role to maintain osteoblast adhesion, were closely related to the selection and increased the adhesion of osteoblasts on these new ceramics. Vitronectin is adsorbed into the small pores in nanocomposite ceramics. For instance, vitronectin adsorption had been 10% higher on nanocomposite compared to the alumina. 106

Moreover, protein conformation has an important characteristic in the continuum of cell/cell relations. Increment in unfolded vitronectin was collected on nanocomposite ceramics. ¹⁰⁶ It had been demonstrated with competitive inhibition studies that the unfolding of vitronectin supported the specific cell-adhesive epitopes, for example, the arginine-glycine-aspartic acid-serine sequence for enhancing the osteoblast adhesion. ¹⁰⁶

Nanosized biocomposites can be synthesized to achieve some physical properties such as compressive, bending, and tensile strengths which are like natural bone. It has been demonstrated that bio-composites containing nano-sized ceramic particles exhibit good mechanical behavior. McManus et al. ¹⁰⁷ reported that the modulus of a blend of PLA composites having weight percent of 40-50 nanocomposites with HA, titania and alumina were much higher than composites that are currently being used in coarse-grained ceramics.

According to the mechanical deformation theory, if the grain size decreases, most of the interfacial regions increase the deformation amount compared to bulk materials with boundary change of grain and healing of diffusion in a short time. Therefore, ductility increases in nanocrystalline ceramics. Unlike conventional ceramics, nanocomposite ceramics present an elevated roughness depending on the decrease in size and pore diameters. Furthermore, because of great surface roughness and grain boundaries on their surfaces, nanocomposite ceramics show enhanced surface wettability.

A few studies have also exhibited utilization of lignin for advancement in current materials as aerogels, hydrogels, and nanofibres. ^{75–78} Diao et al. had performed research with the production of lignin-based copolymers by the ATRP technique. ¹¹¹ Authors have used multiple graft polymer chains including polyN-isopropyl acrylamide (PNIPAAm), PEG, and polypropylene glycol (PPG) and a lignin core. In solutions, the copolymers exhibited thermogelling characteristics. Thermogelling behavior means that changing from a solution firstly to a hydrogel and later to a dehydrated gel by increasing temperatures (Figure 13). The

block structure of the copolymers located in lignin is important for the formation of hydrogels. The hydrogel is obtained once the lignin-based PNIPAAm-block-PEG/PPG copolymer is utilized. On the other hand, once a lignin-based PNIPAAm-random-PEG/PPG copolymer is utilized, the formation of hydrogels wasn't obtained at any temperature. Moreover, thermogel copolymers showed less critical gelation amounts. In these concentrations, the PNIPAAm block is crucial to prepare gels. Also, PPG may help H₂O retention with the hydrophilicity/phobicity balancing. Thus, resulted in copolymer solutions had a higher thermogelling transition temperature. This phenomenon suggests that prepared hydrogels with the usage of stem cells can be beneficial especially for tissue engineering and drug delivery applications.

Quraishi et al. had synthesized alginate-lignin gels for the release of Ca^{2+} from the crosslinking of alginate–lignin. They had used CO_2 as an acidifier because CO_2 enables the gelation procedure with the help of solvent exchange and supercritical drying. ¹¹² These alginate-lignin gels exhibited superficial and morphological properties as well as cytocompatibility and very good cell adhesion.



Figure 13. The preparation procedure of alginate-lignin hybrid aerogels for biomedical applications¹¹¹. Reproduced with permission from ref 111. Copyright 2015 Elsevier.

Polymeric nano**fibre** matrices fabricated from lignin are novel materials that mimic the extracellular matrix for the future development in tissue engineering applications as scaffolds.

^{113,114} Kai et al. had synthesized polylactic acid (PLA)–lignin copolymers by using PLA into alkylated lignin with ring-opening method utilizing in various proportions of lignin as 10–50%. ¹¹³ The research group reported that the resulting copolymers' PLA chain lengths were different. Then, these copolymers were mixed with poly-lactide (PLLA) to produce nanofibrous composites using the electrospinning technique (Figure 14). Obtained nanofibres presented well antioxidant activity and biocompatibility results being incubated with PC12, dermal fibroblasts, and mesenchymal stem cell lines.



Figure 14. The SEM micrographs of nanofibres containing different ratio lignin: (a) PLLA; (b) 10%; (c) 20%; (d) 30%; (e) 40%; and (f) 50%. Reproduced with permission from ref ¹¹³. Copyright 2016 American Chemical Society.

Mezzenga et al. ¹¹⁵ developed a novel method to prepare a hybrid nanocomposite using amyloid fibrils and hydroxyapatite which exhibits a couple of bone-mimetic properties. Physical characteristics of the new hybrid nanocomposite were far better than clinically used bone types of cement. Besides, human trabecular bone-derived pre-osteoblastic cells were used to show effective adherence and growth on the hybrid nanocomposite including amyloid fibrils and hydroxyapatite. Maji et al. ¹¹⁶ prepared a graphene-amyloid hybrid nanocomposite film for alignment and differentiation of cells on glassy-like materials to mimic in vivo conditions using a novel type of scaffold. Human neuroblastoma cells were used because of ease of observation of the conductive nature and cellular alignment of these types of cells.

As being seen from all of these examples, nanocomposites having two or three components derived from bio-renewable resources are generally used particularly in bone tissue engineering. In this regard, bio-renewable sources such as polysaccharides and proteins are very important. Especially in terms of tissue engineering applications, it is clear that bio-renewable-based nanocomposites would be an important research area in the near future.

Samples of tissue engineering applications of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources are also given in Table 3 as summary information.

Nanocomposite	Fabrication Techniques	Applications	In Vitro Studies	Ref.
HA-collagen	The biologically inspired mineralization process	Bone tissue generation	Human expanded chondrocytes and sheep bone marrow stromal cells	79
СН-НА	Coprecipitation method	Tissue regeneration	-	82
HA-gelatin nanocomposite fibre s	Electrospinning followed by precipitation	Guided tissue regeneration	Bone derived osteoblast cells	83
HA/CH-gelatin network	Phase separation technique	Bone-like tissue formation	Rat calvaria osteoblasts	85
Gelatin/montmorillonite (MMT)-CH	Solution intercalation process	Tissue engineering	Mouse bone marrow-derived stromal stem cells	86
Alginate-HA polysaccharides	Neutralization synthesis	Bone replacement needs and	Osteoblast-like cells (MG-63)	87

Table 3. Tissue engineering applications of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources

		drug-delivery devices		
Silk fibroin-HA	Coprecipitation	Tissue engineering	-	88
Chitin-poly (butylene succinate) (PBS) with chondroitin sulfate nanoparticles	Ionic gelation method	Skin tissue engineering	Human dermal fibroblast cells	92
Titania/poly(lactic-co- glycolic acid) (PLGA)	Multiple-point BET method	Bone tissue engineering	Human osteoblast cells	104
Polylactic acid (PLA)– lignin copolymers	Ring-opening method	Tissue engineering scaffolds for locally attenuating cellular oxidative stress	Rat adrenal gland cells (PC-12), dermal fibroblasts, and mesenchymal stem cell lines	113
Amyloid-Hydroxyapatite	The "bottom- up" approach	Tissue engineering	Human trabecular bone-derived pre-osteoblast cells	115
Graphene–Amyloid	Chemical oxidation of graphite using a modified Hummers method	Cell alignment and differentiation	Human bone marrow neuroblastoma cells (SH-SY5Y)	116
Amine functional n- HA/chitosan	Freeze-drying method	Bone tissue engineering	Human bone marrow mesenchymal stem cells	117
Aspirin-loaded (graphene oxide/chitosan - hydroxyapatite)	Layer-by-layer assembly technology combined with biomimetic mineralization method	Bone tissue engineering	Mouse mesenchymal stem cells	118
Bacterial cellulose/silk fibroin sponge	Soaking, shaking, and freeze-drying	Tissue engineering	Mouse fibroblast cells (L-929) and Chinese hamster fibroblasts (V79 cells)	119
Carbon nanotubes/chitosan/gly- cerophosphate	Freeze drying	Bone tissue engineering	Osteoblast-like cells (MG-63)	120
Chitosan/PVA/hydroxy- apatite	Electrospinning	Periodontal regeneration	VERO cell line of epithelial cells	121

Chitosan-chitin nanocrystals	Freeze drying	Bone tissue engineering	MC3T3-E1 osteoblast cells	122
Chitosan-graft- poly(acrylic acid- coacrylamide)/hydroxy- apatite	Multistep freeze-drying method	Implants and drug carriers in bone tissue engineering	Human fibroblast gum (HuGu) cells	123
Dexamethasone-loaded poly(glycerol sebacate)PCL/gelatin	Coaxial electrospinning	Soft tissue engineering	Gingival fibroblast cells	124
Gelatin collagen bioactive glass	Freeze drying	Myocardial tissue engineering	Endometrial stromal stem cells and mouse fibroblast cells (L-929) cells	125
Keratin-modified bacterial cellulose	Fermentation	Skin tissue engineering	Human skin keratinocytes and human skin fibroblast cells	126
Multilayer scaffold of PLA, sulfated cellulose nanocrystals and phosphate cellulose nanocrystals	Thermally- induced phase separation	Cartilage tissue engineering	Human fetal chondrocytes of second passage (primary cells)	127
Poly(ethylene glycol)- grafted cellulose nanocrystals incorporated in PLA	Electrospinning	Bone tissue engineering	Human mesenchymal stem cells	128
Chitosan-modified montmorillonite	Solvent casting and particulate leaching	Tissue engineering	Simulated body fluid	129
Polyacrylamide grafted cellulose and hydroxyapatite	Freeze drying	Bone tissue engineering	Human fibroblast gum (HuGu) cells	130
Polyamide-6,6 blended with biopolymer chitosan	Electrospinning	Tissue engineering	Pre-osteoblast (MC3T3-E1) cells	131
SrAl ₂ O ₄ : Eu ²⁺ Dy ³⁺ /chitosan-Poly caprolactone	Electrospinning	Retinal tissue regeneration	Murine retinal progenitor cells	132
Starch/ethylene vinyl alcohol/forsterite	Sol-gel method and shaking	Bone tissue engineering	Simulated body fluid and osteoblast-like cells (MG-63)	133
Zirconium oxide doped chitosan-organically modified montmorillonite- hydroxyapatite nanoparticles	<i>In situ</i> cationic polymerization technique	Bone tissue engineering	Osteoblast-like cells (MG-63)	134

2.3. Gene Therapy Applications

Biomaterials present significant potentials for many biomedical areas. For controlled gene delivery applications, much interest and focus are on biodegradable cationic polymers. Gene therapy applications have great potentials for curing different important illnesses. However, the main hindrance is a safe and efficient vector requirement for gene delivery. Biosafety issues such as oncogenicity, cytotoxicity, and immunogenicity of these viral vectors are still uncertain, yet. Otherwise, non-viral gene delivery vectors such as cationic polymers would overcome the handicaps.

Lipid-based bio-renewable sources can be easily self-regulated by supramolecular interactions and form stratified, tubular and spherical structures (Figure 15). These structures are very suitable alternatives for composites obtained from bio-renewable sources. In particular, composites obtained from lipid/DNA structures are very important. In gene therapy, renewably resourced nanocomposite structures have received substantial attention recently. In this context, lipoplexes and polyplexes are intensively investigated in gene therapy. Lipoplexes had been prepared to make either large aggregates surrounding with thin fibres or condensed DNA coating with a lipid bilayer.





Similar to the structure of micelle complexes, the liposomes which stick to DNA strands are differently charged polyelectrolytes. ¹³⁵ Not only the supramolecular structures but also the thermodynamic stability of lipoplexes had been researched. ^{136–140} For hexagonal packing of DNA coated by these lipids, the "sliding columnar phase" had been especially suggested Without losing the orientation of the chains, this is a kind of coherence between DNA molecules in neighboring layers. ¹⁴¹

Most of the cationic polymers are well-known for the attachment of DNA in the preparation of polymer/DNA complexes and positively charged surfaces causing measurable transfection activity *in vitro*. After a couple of repeated administration, other clinical

transfections are restricted due to the low transfection efficacy and high cytotoxicity. An et al. ¹⁴² have reported the preparation of a new 4-arm PEG-b-poly(disulfide histamine) copolymer of PEG vinyl sulfone and amine-capped poly(disulfide histamine) oligomer (4-arm PEG-SSPHIS) for cancer therapy. The synthesized copolymer had been found to condense DNA into nanoscale polyplexes. The transfection experiments had demonstrated that under acidic conditions, polyplexes of 4-arm PEG–SSPHIS showed increased transfection efficacy.

LNPs have been utilized for gene delivery applications. Ten and his colleagues have reported their studies on the synthesis of lignin nanotubes. ¹⁴³ They had used nanopore alumina membranes. Lignin was found to interact with amine groups located on the alumina membranes nanoporous surface. By using a catalyst, the polymerization of the monolignols was achieved. At the end of the reaction, phosphoric acid was used for the preparation of lignin nanotubes. The physicochemical characteristics of nanostructures were closely related to the composition, and origin as well as the extraction method of lignin. These properties were found to change both the size and reactivity of lignin. The lignin nanostructures exhibited high properties in biocompatibility as well as DNA binding capacity. Both characteristics are appropriate and beneficial to make these nanotubes suitable for delivering genes.

2.4. Antimicrobial Applications

Nanocomposites obtained from bio-renewable resources are also being designed for antimicrobial purposes. In these nanocomposites, polysaccharides and proteins have been commonly used as the main matrix elements. Inorganic metals/ metal oxides such as Au, Ag, TiO₂ and antibacterial organic compounds like essential oils are used as antibacterial agents. In this area, especially food packaging and surface coating materials have come to the fore. The most important reason for this is the biodegradable characteristics of discarded bio-renewable materials produced from plant and animal resources. For this purpose, films and coatings made from biopolymers can be prepared from different proteins, for example; casein, collagen, gelatin, soy protein, and wheat gluten. ^{137,138} The prepared material acts to block the passage of moisture, gas, and solvent as a selective barrier as well as increasing food safety with the antimicrobial property. However, having some disadvantages such as cost and the mechanical strength of such nanocomposites limits their use. ^{139–141} In particular, to eliminate the mechanical disadvantages, metal oxide nanoparticles, nanoclay, metal, carbon nanofibres, and nanotubes are doped. ^{138,142,144–146}

Nanocomposites with Zein protein are one of the examples of antibacterial food packaging from bio-renewable resources. Zein is abundant in corn gluten meal and it's all features are very well known. ^{147,148} Especially, at low water activity films obtained from maize Zein protein are very brittle and its mechanical characteristics are importantly affected by moisture. With the participation of plasticizers such as glycerol and PEG, the fragility and processability properties of the corn Zein films have been improved. ^{147,149–151} Nanoenhancers are used to increase the mechanical performance of corn Zein films. The other biopolymer research for film applications is whey protein isolate, which is the byproduct of cheese making industry. Although these protein films show stable mechanical properties, they show poor tensile strength along with high-water vapor transmission in packaging applications related to the food. ¹⁴⁵ Whey protein-polymer matrixes had been reinforced by using nanofillers such as nano clay. ¹⁵² In another study, the mechanical behaviors of WP and corn Zein films had been increased via SiO₂ coated TiO₂ particles as nanoenhancers. ¹⁵³ Films and coatings for packaging applications with antimicrobial function have been presented as an effective method to control microbial contamination in ready-made food. ¹⁵⁴ Due to the photocatalytic activity of TiO₂ nanoparticles exhibiting protective properties against microorganisms transmitted by food, they show antimicrobial properties as TiO₂/SiO₂ nanoenhancers under UV light. The addition of TiO₂/SiO₂ nanoenhancers to biopolymer matrixes like proteins not only incorporates antimicrobial function but also enhances the mechanical strength of the films. From another point of view, nanocomposites that have inhibitory effects on *E. coli* and *Salmonella typhimurium* especially in the packaging of meat had been prepared by adding EDTA to biorenewable films comprising of nisin and lysozyme.

CH has antimicrobial ¹⁵⁵, antiviral ¹⁵⁶ and antitumoral ^{157,158} activities. Since CH has excellent characteristics that interact with the human body, in the field of biomaterials it has numerous applications such as bioactivity, chemotactic movement, mucoadhesion, enzymatic biodegradability and epithelial permeability allowing the different cell to adhere and proliferate ¹⁵⁹. Even though the antimicrobial mechanism has not been fully understood, there is a common conviction that CH interaction with the negatively charged cell membrane leads proteins and other cell structures to leak outside of the cells. CH coating of vegetables and fruits with a film provides antimicrobial preservation extending the product's shelf-life. ¹⁵⁹ It had been determined that chitin and CH increased the movement of biological organisms that have plaque control such as Bacillus and Trichoderma species and they were also good candidates for the encapsulation of biocides. ¹⁶⁰ CH has some problems such as low solubility and miscibility with other positively charged polyelectrolytes. Therefore, chitlac (1-deoxylactit-1-yl CH), lactosesubstituted CH, had been formed. Then, these branched polysaccharide nanosilver structures were used in the production of CH nanoparticles. Hydrogels were prepared by mixing the solution of alginate with CH-nanoparticles (Figure 16). It had been demonstrated that these hydrogels exhibit antibacterial properties against S. aureus, S. epidermidis, E. coli, and P. aeruginosa microorganisms.¹⁵⁶



Figure 16. The TEM micrograph of AgNPs dispersed in chitlac, which is a natural saccharidic polybase, at different magnifications (a,b); The particle size of AgNPs based on the TEM micrograph c); The TEM micrograph of AgNPs formed on the polymeric chains of chitlac. By using lead citrate and uranyl acetate solution, chitlac chains had been stained (d); The diagrammatic illustration of polymeric chains of chitlac. Nitrogen atoms had been utilized for the coordination and stabilization of AgNPs (e). Reproduced with permission from ref ¹⁶¹. Copyright 2009 American Chemical Society.

Cellulose is one of the most widely used carbohydrates to prepare bio-renewable resource based polymer nanocomposites. Raghavendra et al. 162 developed cellulose–silver nanocomposite fibres having wonderful antimicrobial properties from an eco-friendly process in which AgNO₃ had been reduced using gum acacia (GA) and guar gum (GG). The prepared nanocomposites had been characterized with spectral, and thermal, morphologic techniques. The data had indicated that AgNPs homogenously distributed in the cellulose matrix with strong interaction between cellulose and polymer/AgNPs. The cellulose-silver nanocomposite fibres (CSNCFs) had shown antibacterial activity against *E. coli*. Consequently, it was clearly understood that the AgNPs containing composite cellulose fibres could be utilized as an effective tissue scaffold for burn or wound healings. The fibres could be used for both longlasting use as an antibacterial material in the textile industry and fabrics in surgical procedures (Figure 17).



55

Figure 17. The SEM images of pure cotton fibres (a), polymer-coated cotton fibres (b), and polymer AgNPs coated cotton fibres (c). Reproduced with permission from ref ¹⁶². Copyright 2013 Elsevier.

The nanocomposite for antibacterial purpose obtained from another polysaccharide had been used as a carrageenan matrix and composites had been prepared with the chitin nanofibrils (CNF). The prepared carrageenan/CNF nanocomposite films had been studied for their antimicrobial activities against *E. coli* and *L. monocytogenes*. Only carrageenan films showed no antimicrobial activity for both bacteria. Although carrageenan films including CNF had shown antimicrobial effect against *L. monocytogenes*, there had been no clear case for *E. coli*. Furthermore, the antimicrobial activity against *L. monocytogenes* had depended on CNF content. Although the total mechanism of antibacterial activity of CNF has not been explained so far, it has been believed that CNF makes bacterial clustering and inhibits growth depending on the mass transfer limitations resulted from the lack of oxygen and nutrients. ¹⁶³ CH-nanocellulose films, in which both matrix and reinforcements are from bio-renewable resources, were prepared for the aim of antimicrobial property. It had been reported that since the thermal resistance was increased and CH-nanocellulose films could store food against both gram-positive like *S. aureus* and gram-negative such as *E. coli* and *S. enteritidis* bacteria for 6 days at room temperature. ¹⁶⁴

Essential oils are also being used in the nanocomposite based food protective films because of their strong antimicrobial character. In this context, alginate/clay containing a certain percentage of the essential oil films had been prepared. It had been found that these prepared films showed antimicrobial effects for 12 days against *S. aureus*, *E. coli*, and *L. monocytogenes* pathogens, which could widely reproduce in food. ¹⁶⁵

In another work, green tea (GT) based Ag^0 nanocomposite hydrogels were prepared successfully as an antibacterial hydrogel. The spherical Ag^0 nanoparticles were generated at the

56

average size of 10 nm. The Ag^0 nanoparticles were developed by reducing of Ag^+ ions loaded hydrogel solution by ammonia gas. It was found that poly (green tea-acrylamide) P(GT-Am) hydrogel extremely stabilized the Ag^0 nanoparticles throughout the network of the hydrogel. These nanocomposite hydrogels were found to exhibit high significant antibacterial activity against *Escherichia coli* and *Staphylococcus aureus*. Therefore, these nanocomposites hydrogels have potential to be used for wound dressing and antimicrobial agent's applications.

Recently, bacterial nanocellulose has been using in biomedical applications. Bacterial nanocellulose has taken more attention as a new wound dressing material. However, bacterial nanocellulose hasn't demonstrated any antimicrobial activity. Liyaskina et al. ¹⁶⁷ had obtained bacterial nanocellulose with fusidic acid as an antibiotic. The bacterial nanocellulose was produced using *Gluconacetobacter sucrofermentans* (B-11267). The prepared biocomposites had demonstrated strong antibiotic activity against *Staphylococcus aureus* and have potential be utilized as a wound dressing material, especially in medicine.

Samples of antimicrobial applications of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources are also given in Table 4 as summary information.

Nanocomposite	Fabrication Techniques	Applications	Antimicrobial Activity Studies Against	Ref.
Cellulose–silver nanocomposite fibre s	The reduction of AgNO ₃ using gum acacia (GA) and guar gum (GG)	Tissue scaffold for burn or wound healings	E. coli	162
Carrageenan/CNF nanocomposite films	Solution-casting technique	Food safety	<i>E. coli</i> , and <i>L. monocytogenes</i>	163
CH-nanocellulose films	Agitation and sonication	Food storage especially for the meat industry	S. aureus, E. coli, and S. enteritidis	164

Table 4. Antimicrobial applications of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources

Alginate/clay containing essential oil films	Addition of essential oil during the production procedure	Food protection as well as edible films	E. coli, S. aureus, and L. monocytogenes	165
Green tea (GT) based silver nanocomposite hydrogels	The reduction of Ag+ ions loaded hydrogel solution by ammonia gas	Wound dressing and antimicrobial materials	S. aureus, and E. coli	166
Bacterial nanocellulose with fusidic acid	A static culture medium by <i>Gluconacetobacter</i> sucrofermentans B-11267	Wound dressing material	S. aureus	167

3. Chemistry, Structure and Separation Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-

Renewable Resources

In today's technology, applications of the membrane are quite widely used in purification, enrichment of active ingredients, recycling of industrial byproducts and reducing the toxicity of wastes. Biocompatible nanocomposite membranes prepared from many renewable resources have been widely used in membrane technology. In these membranes, matrix structures which can particularly be adjusted in terms of pore size and distribution are preferred due to longlasting usage.

3.1. Water Purification Applications

The porous and high polar structure of bio-renewable composites provides an important advantage for water purification applications. In particular, natural fibre-reinforced composites have significant potential in this field. Cellulosic plants and wood fibres, plant waste-based fibres and protein-derived fibres are the most preferred reinforcements. The strong interaction between polar groups and pollutants in these structures is the basis for good purification. Therefore, column fillers or membranes made of such bio-renewable reinforcement-based composites are frequently used in water purification processes.

Water resources have been exposed to intensive contamination by human activities such as agriculture, chemical, and material production, improper sanitation, manufacturing, electricity generation, mining and over the years. ¹⁶⁸ Every year, the World Health Organization anticipates that more than 3.4 million people, especially children, die due to water-related diseases, and also 10% of diseases on the world can be prevented by developing the supply, management, hygiene and sanitation of water resources. ¹⁶⁹ Therefore, shortage and pollution of global drinking water have increased the efforts in the area of developing highly effective water treatment methods. Recently, developments in engineering and nanotechnology show that many of the present problems concerned with the quality of water can be reduced by using nanocomposite-based treatment membranes. In particular, nanostructures having high adsorption efficiency, a large surface area and active groups that interact with contaminants have great potential in this area. ^{170,171} For the elimination of contaminants located in drinking water supplies methods such as membrane filtration, ion exchange, chemical precipitation, absorption and electrochemical are commonly used. Among these methods, membrane-based methods are widely used because of the advantages such as low energy consumption, using very low concentrations, high purification efficiency, simple operation, high selectivity, proper for green chemistry and lower operating costs. ^{172–174} Besides, the pore structure of the membrane to be used in this field can be easily adjusted by nanostructured reinforcements and whereby it is possible to remove different contaminants.

Membrane technology meets more than 53% of the production methods of freshwater in the world. ¹⁷⁵ Due to the negative effects of contaminants such as insecticides, pesticides, heavy metals, paints, and industrial wastes on the environment and living beings the removal of these contaminants by membrane technology has become important. In particular, selective, polymeric membranes and polymer matrix nanocomposite membranes have become an important issue with their water separation performances. A significant ratio and speed of the

use of membranes in the industrial field had also brought certain problems. The regeneration or destruction after using membranes has become a major problem. Therefore, the synthesis and use of membranes from natural and nontoxic components have been quite effective in solving these problems. In particular, nanocomposite membranes can be produced using natural or synthetic sources. Compared to natural polysaccharides or biopolymer-based nanocomposites, synthetic polymer-based nanocomposites have many properties such as better mechanical strength, higher chemical resistance, better stereospecific applications and longer life. However, since synthetic nanocomposites are not biodegradable, in particular, they lead to environmental pollution which is one of the biggest challenges in developed countries. Therefore, renewably sourced biopolymer-based nanocomposites are commonly used instead of synthetic polymers because of their unique characteristics such as low cost, non-toxicity, biodegradability and biocompatibility. ¹⁷⁶ Such membranes are very useful for continuous use and are controlled with pore structures. In the research, Zirehpour et al. prepared composites including Boehmite (Bo) nanoparticles in cellulose acetate (CA) and cellulose triacetate matrix and had examined osmosis characteristics and water purification properties (Figure 18). ¹⁷⁷





Industrialization is the leading factor in the accumulation of toxic wastes containing many poisonous chemicals including heavy metals. Some of the most common heavy metals such as copper, chromium, lead, cadmium, nickel, mercury, and arsenic are released into the environment in dental applications and industries of tanning, textiles, electrolysis, metal salt production, paper and pulp. ^{178,179} As opposed to the traditional organics pollutants, heavy metals do not deteriorate and tend to get accumulated in living organisms particularly in the liver tissue. ¹⁸⁰ The above-mentioned excessive accumulation of heavy metals damages the body's central nervous system, skin, dermatitis, and many systems. Therefore, bio-renewable resource-based nanocomposite membranes have been used for the elimination of heavy metals from water sources. Bio-renewable resources compared to synthetic polymeric membranes

have many polar groups in their structures. Thus, they have a particularly important advantage in heavy metal binding. Therefore, protein, lignin and polysaccharides such as cellulose and chitin are widely utilized in nanocomposite membrane structures due to their cheap, renewable, environmentally friendly and biodegradability characteristics. ^{146,181,182} In particular, because they are insoluble and non-corrodible, these structures ensure advantageous properties in membrane applications. In this way, more resistant structures against the process pressure and deterioration can be obtained being used as a membrane.

Khan et al. ¹⁸³ used anti-BC nanocomposites as a matrix for the assessment of wastewater (Figure 19). Nanocomposite structures had been synthesized by doping ZnO into the CA matrix. The authors anticipated that their synthesized nanocomposite structures could act as the membrane for removal of Mn²⁺, Zn²⁺, Pb²⁺, Ni²⁺, Cd²⁺, Fe²⁺, Al³⁺, Sr³⁺, and Sb³⁺ metals in the wastewater. The obtained results have also confirmed that cellulose acetate-ZnO nanocomposites could be used in the applications of water purification.



Figure 19. Schematic view of water treatment using nanocomposites. Reproduced with permission from ref ¹⁸³. Copyright 2015 Elsevier.

In a similar study, Badawi and his team ¹⁸⁴ demonstrated that carbon nanotube-CA nanocomposites could be used in water purification as a membrane. Nevarez et al. ¹⁸⁵ used biopolymer-based nanocomposite membranes in which lignin and cellulose triacetate were doped at different rates to remove fluoride, arsenic, calcium, sodium and magnesium elements from the wastewater. They had shown that such structures exhibit a high absorption capacity, especially in metal treatment.

It is well known that because of the chelating effect of the amide ends of CH in the glucosamine group, it adsorbs many heavy metal ions. Recent studies are having been focused on the removal of heavy metals by creating nanocomposites of CH nanoparticles with clay types such as bentonite, kaolinite, and montmorillonite. As chitin and CH, clays have a natural ability to remove heavy metals.

Bleiman and Michael ¹⁸⁶ designed polymer-clay nanocomposites to absorb selenium from water. CH-montmorillonite nanocomposites showed the highest adsorption efficiency of selenium. In a similar study, Khedr et al. ¹⁸⁷ suggested modified CH-montmorillonite nanocomposites to adsorb lead. Pandey et al. ¹⁸⁸ used the CH-montmorillonite nanocomposites to remove the chromium metal from an aqueous solution. CH-coated bentonite nanocomposites had been used by Futalan et al. ¹⁸⁹ to remove Cu (II) metals from an aqueous solution.

In a recent study, two new functionalized chitosan nanocomposites, (CH-Cinnamaldehyde (Cin) and Fe₃O₄@CH-Cin) were synthesized as adsorbent and used to remove toxic Cr (VI) from aqueous solution. The morphological, structural, and magnetic properties of composites were investigated. Toxic Cr (VI) adsorption mechanism was performed by batch experiments as a function of adsorbent dosage,_contact time pH, and initial hexavalent chromium concentration. At 298K, the CH-Cin adsorbent reached adsorption equilibrium within 35 minutes, while the Fe₃O₄® CH-Cin adsorbent reached adsorption equilibrium within 80

minutes. The maximum adsorption capacity for CH-C in adsorbent was 61.35 mg/g at pH=2, while the maximum adsorption capacity for Fe₃O₄@CH-Cin adsorbent was reported as 58.14 mg/g at pH=3. These results illustrated that two new functionalized nanocomposites will be promising candidate adsorbents for wastewater treatment applications ¹⁹⁰.

Apart from CH and cellulose, to remove metals from wastewater, bio-renewable resourced nanocomposite structures have been fabricated as membranes by a number researcher. Chauke and his colleagues synthesized GO- α -CD-polypyrrole nanocomposites to remove Cr (VI) from aqueous solutions. ¹⁹¹ Polypyrrole has remarkable properties such as easy preparation, high chemical stability, cheap and ion exchangeability for removal of heavy metals. Therefore, Chauke et al. synthesized GO- α -CD-polypyrrole nanocomposites for removing Cr (VI) metal and determined the optimum conditions. In another work, Badruddoza et al. ¹⁹² produced Fe₃O₄ nanoparticles modified with carboxymethyl- β -CD (CM- β -CD) polymer for selective elimination of Ni²⁺, Pb²⁺, Cd²⁺, ions from water. Due to having a loop structure, the CD is an important membrane matrix material for the transition metals having large radii such as Pb, Cd. Saad et al. prepared ZnO@CH core-shell nanocomposite by direct precipitation method (Figure 20). ¹⁹³ They used the nanocomposites to remove Pb²⁺, Cu²⁺, and Cd²⁺ ions as adsorbent due to its inexpensive and low biological toxicity. The metal ions adsorption capacity values were determined as 117.6, 135.1, and 476.1 mg/g for Cu²⁺, Cd²⁺, Cd²⁺, respectively.



Figure 20. Synthesis of ZnO@CH nanocomposite. Reproduced with permission from ref ¹⁹³. Copyright 2018 Elsevier.

Bolisetty et al. ¹⁹⁴ used amyloid–carbon hybrid membranes for the efficient purification of arsenic (both the arsenate (+5) and arsenite (+3))-contaminated water via a vacuum filtration technique. The amyloid fibrils were obtained from β -Lactoglobulin, which an economic milk protein (the key component of whey). Thanks to the suggested hybrid membrane, the As⁺⁵ and As⁺³ concentration decreased from 239 ppb to 3.3 ppb, and 258.3 ppb to 3.2 ppb, respectively. Also, the amyloid fibril adsorption capacity was approximately 7.4 and 18 times higher in comparison to the activated carbon for arsenate and arsenite adsorption, respectively. The authors reported that the prepared amyloid-carbon hybrid membranes can be reused for numerous cycles without any efficiency drop. The filtering efficiency was found to be 99.6% in real contaminated groundwater. Based on these results, the research team stated that amyloid-carbon hybrid membranes are a promising candidate for economic removal of arsenic from contaminated water.

In another study, amyloid fibril/ZrO₂ hybrid membranes were suggested for removal of fluoride (F^-) from wastewater and drinking water supplies.¹⁹⁵ These suggested amyloid fibril/ZrO₂ hybrid membranes exhibited an excellent performance such as superior selectivity, outstanding fluoride binding capacity, and fast purification to remove F^- by using filtration. Additionally, the authors highlighted that hybrid membranes have high potential to be applied for both low (several ppm) and high (even 200 ppm) levels to remove F^- .

3.1.1. Removal of Dyes

Recently, the removal of dyes and pigments from wastewater has become very important. The major one among organic and inorganic pollutants that contaminate water is organic dyes. These organic dyes are commonly used in many industrial areas such as plastic products production, tanning, food processing, papermaking, textile manufacturing, cosmetic preparation, and coating processes. It is hard to remove dyes from industrial wastewater and these dyes cause not only some toxic and carcinogenic effects on human health but also adverse effects on the environment. Therefore, when considering the potentials in environmental toxicity and damage to human health, renewably resourced nanocomposite membranes with different structures and reinforcements should be preferred to remove organic dyes from dirty water. ¹⁹² Carbohydrate type structures, which have strong interactions with dyes due to their polar groups, are very important in dye separation applications. Therefore, carbohydrate-based renewable composites have many applications in the field of dye removal and separation. Figure 28 shows the dyestuff structures in which cellulose fibres are used as a bio-renewable source in the removal processes of dyestuffs in wastewater. Strong secondary interactions between these structures and cellulose provide rapid and efficient treatments.

To eliminate cationic dyes from aqueous solutions Liu et al. ¹⁹⁶ used β -CD/poly(acrylic acid)/GO nanocomposites as the membrane. They had used methylene blue and Safranin T as

the cationic dye. Adsorption isotherm results showed that synthesized these nanocomposites kept more cationic dyes than other carbon-based adsorbents in the literature. Liu and his team had suggested that the new generation of β -CD/poly (acrylic acid)/GO nanocomposites would be an ideal material for removing dyes in wastewater. Carbohydrate-based bio-renewable resources are also used especially in the removal of anionic dyes. In another study with the anionic dyes such as reactive blue, Congo red and malachite green, Patra et al. ¹⁹⁷ examined the dye removal properties of silica doped guar and gum nanocomposites. According to UV spectra obtained at different times, the absorption took place very quickly for reactive blue and Congo red dyes.

Wang et al. ¹⁹⁸ used the magnetic β -CD/GO nanocomposites to remove malachite green from aqueous solutions. The results showed that the magnetic β -CD/GO nanocomposites have a promising adsorption ability to exclude dyes in water. Moreover, polyhydroxyethylmethacrylatemulti-walled carbon nanotubes (CH-MWCNT) nanocomposites were also used for the removal of methyl orange. ¹⁹⁹

Gomes et al. ²⁰⁰ reported that bio-renewable polysaccharide-based nanocomposites have the high potential to be used as membranes for the purification of wastewater (Figure 21). In their research, S/cellulose nano-hydrogel composite structures had been synthesized for adsorbing methylene blue which is a strong and effective dye. According to the obtained adsorption curves, the research group had reported that the S/cellulose nano-hydrogel composites had an effective ability to remove methylene blue from wastewater.



Figure 21. S/cellulose nano-hydrogel composite structures. Reproduced with permission from ref ²⁰⁰. Copyright 2015 Elsevier.

Another nanocomposite structure that was completely formed from bio-renewable source had been reported by Karim et al. ²⁰¹ The working team prepared a nanoporous membrane using cellulose nano nanocrystals functionalized with CH. The authors utilized the electrostatic attractive forces between cationic dyes (Rhodamine 6G, Methyl violet 2B and Victoria blue 2B) and negatively charged cellulose nanocrystals functionalized with CH to remove cationic dyes from water (Figure 22).



Figure 22. The removal efficiency of the cross-linked composite membrane. (a) Photograph of the membrane, water before and after adsorption test for (b) Methyl Violet, (c) Rhodamine 6G and (d) Victoria Blue. Reproduced with permission from ref ²⁰¹. Copyright 2014 Elsevier.

Sohni et al. developed CH/nano-lignin based composites as a novel adsorbent material to remove dye pollutant from aqueous solutions (Figure 23). ²⁰² Under natural pH conditions, the fabricated novel material exhibited a high separation of 83% for methylene blue (MB) dye.



Figure 23. The preparation of developed CH/nano-lignin based composites and usage of to remove MB. Reproduced with permission from ref ²⁰². Copyright 2019 Elsevier.

In a recent study, CH/silica/ZnO hybrid nanocomposites were prepared by Hassan et al. ²⁰³ The prepared nanocomposites were characterized structurally, thermally, morphologically and were used to remove MB from wastewater. Furthermore, the effect of ZnO immobilization on the adsorption properties of nanocomposites was investigated in detail. According to the results obtained, the highest adsorption capacity of MB was reported as 293.3 mg/g in a slightly basic medium. The authors believe that these hybrid composites prepared for the adsorption of aqueous solutions of organic dyes have a promising future as an effective and cost-effective adsorbent.

In another recent study, H₂SO₄ cross-linked magnetic CH nanocomposite beads were prepared and applied as adsorbents for MB removal. Structural, morphological and crystallinity properties of H₂SO₄ cross-linked magnetic CH nanocomposite beads were studied in detail by various methods. Also, the effect of three different parameters on contact time, pH values and MB concentration on MB adsorption was investigated. According to the results, the equilibrium of H₂SO₄ cross-linked magnetic CH nanocomposite particles of MB adsorption was reached in 25 minutes of contact time. As the pH of the solution increased, so did the adsorption capacity. Based on the Langmuir isotherm model, the maximum adsorption capacity of H₂SO₄ crosslinked magnetic CH nanocomposite beads on MB adsorption was reported to be 20.408 mg/g. ²⁰⁴

3.1.2. Removal of Other Contaminants

Besides heavy metals and dyes, organic compounds used in the industry also contribute to the contamination of water. One of these is nitrobenzene, which is used in the production of products such as pesticides, explosives and dyes.²⁰⁵ Wei and his team synthesized new HA-gelatin nanocomposites to remove nitrobenzene from aqueous solutions.²⁰⁶ According to Langmuir and Freundlich adsorption curves, the maximum adsorption capacity was measured as 42.373 mg/g. These results indicate that bio-renewable based new HA-gelatin nanocomposites are effective adsorbents to remove nitrobenzene from aqueous solutions.

In another study in which renewable materials originated nanocomposites were used as a membrane, Suratago et al. ²⁰⁷ developed BC/alginate (BCA) nanocomposites in which BC was used as the main matrix to separate the ethanol-water mixture. In the study, BC hydrogels had been modified with sodium alginate. The BCA membranes showed the more hydrophilic property and pervaporation performance was found to increase.

3.2. Gas Purification Applications

Technological applications of gas separation have been increasingly developed to solve various global issues and challenges in recent years. Today, the widest industrial areas where these technologies are being used include ²⁰⁸:

- Separation of nitrogen from the air
- Separation of water and CO₂ from natural gases
- Separation of hydrogen gas (for example, separation of H_2 /hydrocarbon in petrochemical applications and separation of H_2/N_2 in nitrogenous plants)
- Separation of organic vapors from air or nitrogen streams

Since the separation process of the gas mixture is complicated and difficult, different separation methods have been developed such as membrane, adsorption, extractive distillation, and absorption. ²⁰⁹ Because of an economic and environmentally friendly technology, membrane-based gas separation techniques are the most commonly used methods. However, when conventional membrane materials are used, one of the most important barriers may be a case such as the increase of the selectivity and decrease of the permeability and vice versa. The development of hybrid or nanocomposite membranes to overcome this problem has been one of the most promising research direction in recent years.

Because nanocomposite membranes have some advantages such as control over porosity, good mechanical stability, and ease of processing, they are attractive as an alternative material compared to conventional separation methods. However, because of the ecological problems and the restriction of raw materials on the use of nanocomposite structured petroleum-derived polymers, researchers have headed towards the use of renewable and natural products in the development of nanocomposites. In technological industrial gas separation, cellulose is the
most widely used renewable resource as a matrix material in nanocomposite membrane structures. CA and CNC had been tried successfully as the main matrix of the nanocomposite structure. Organic-inorganic nanocomposites are generally being prepared using zeolite, silica, alumina, carbon molecular sieve, etc. as additional reinforcements in polymer matrix because these materials increase the selectivity and permeability of nanocomposite hybrid membranes. Therefore, these inorganic reinforcements are usually supplemented up to the amount of 30-60%.

Two sections of the petrochemical industry are paraffin and olefins. Olefins have been used in the production of general plastics such as polypropylene and polyethylene as well as chemicals such as acetaldehyde, acrylic acid, acrylonitrile, ethylene oxide, and propylene oxide. One of the most significant and costly processes in the petrochemical industry is the separation of a mixture of olefins and paraffin. Today, the purification of olefins is performed by distillation. This process requires extremely much energy because of low bulk densities (1.09-1.15) of the components. Therefore, Naghsh et al. 209 used cellulose acetate-silicate nanocomposite membranes to separate the gas mixtures of ethylene/ethane and propylene/propane. The membranes were fabricated using the solution-casting method and characterized by SEM, FTIR and thermogravimetric analysis (TGA) methods. Besides, permeability and gas selectivity characteristics of the membranes were analyzed. Permeation experiments were conducted using a constant volume/variable pressure method under the pressure of 2 bar feed at 35°C. The obtained results had shown that when 30% of silica doped cellulose nanocomposites were used, the permeability of ethylene and propylene increased. Thanks to silica nanoparticles in the material, a physical barrier become against the path of gas diffusion and this barrier causes path long and winding. The diffusion coefficient and the resolution coefficient of prepared hybrid nanocomposite membrane had been indirectly determined using latency time (time lag method) and coefficients of permeability and diffusion,

respectively. As a result of the study, the diffusion coefficient of gas decreased, and the solubility coefficient increased since the interaction between the cellulose chain and silica particles increased with the mass ratio augmentation of silica. The synthesized hybrid nanocomposites showed positive results in gas permeability and diffusion experiments Therefore, the use of cellulose-silica hybrid nanocomposites is precious in terms of separating olefin and paraffin mixtures.

In another study, Kim et al. had prepared nanoporous layered silicate/cellulose nanocomposite membranes to separate CO_2/CH_4 gas mixture. ²¹⁰ For the gas permeation characteristics of CO_2 and CH_4 , swollen silicate/CA composite membranes were investigated. The CA membrane's CO_2/CH_4 gas separation performance was importantly improved by combining 2–6 wt. % of swollen silicate flakes. A significant rise in CO_2 permeability was observed due to the preservation of selectivity. The present approach can prevent aggregation of particles and poor interfacial adhesion due to the excessive amount of inorganic filler.

3.3. Dye Purification Applications

Reactive dyes meet approximately 20-30% of the total paint market and interest on dyes is increasing every day since these dyes are widely utilized in several applications such as textiles, plastics, rubber, and leather tanning. ^{211–213} Inorganic salts and intermediate compounds which have low molecular weights along with other residues occur in synthetic processes. For improving the quality and purity of reactive dyes, the residual impurities and inorganic salts should be separated. The methods applied in conventional dye purification may cause high energy consumption, a low purification ratio, and severe environmental pollution. ^{214–216} Therefore, many innovative and green chemistry studies on the purification and decontamination of dyes from salts are still ongoing. Much of these works are about producing

cheap, low energy consumption, environmentally friendly and bio-renewable materials. In this context, the most common method used for the purification of the organic dyes having a molecular weight of from 100 to 1000 Da is bio-renewable based nanocomposites membranes. In the literature, nanocomposite materials containing bio-renewable resources in the purification applications of dyes are limited. Therefore, the studies on such materials must be increased due to their advantages.

In the field of purification of dyes, clay/polymer hybrid nanocomposite materials have received a greater attraction due to their hydrophilic structure, high mechanical strength, and better thermal stability (Figure 24).



Figure 24. Preparation of clay/polymer hybrid nanocomposite materials.

Zhu et al. have prepared CH-MMT hybrid nanosheets with the phase inversion method for the applications in dye purification. ²¹⁷ From these prepared materials, CH-MMT-polyether sulfone (PES) hybrid membranes were synthesized by doping of 0%, 0.5%, 0.75%, and 1% weight ratios. The synthesized membrane had been structurally and morphologically characterized by a variety of methods. After the addition of CH-MMT nanosheets, hydrophobicity and mechanical properties of hybrid membranes were found to be substantially improved. Also, the hybrid membranes had shown the antifouling property. More importantly, these prepared membranes, unlike traditional nanofiltration membranes, had shown low rejection for divalent salts, and high rejection for Reactive Black 5 and Reactive Red 49. Thus, membranes prepared by this method will be utilized for the purification of dyes in low pressure and high efficiency.

3.4. Other Membrane Applications

Besides the purification of water, dye and gas with nanocomposite membranes including biorenewable resources (as matrix or reinforcement), different membrane applications such as the removal of phenolic compounds, the purification of alcohols like isopropanol, ethanol, methanol and the preparation of fuel cell membranes are also available in the literature.

Yang et al. ²¹⁸ synthesized CdSe/BC nanocomposite membranes by *in situ* addition of CdSe nanoparticles to BC nanofibres (Figure 25). The study aimed to obtain luminescence nanocomposite membranes utilizing the optical property of CdSe quantum dots and biocompatibility, high crystallinity and mechanical properties of BC. Membranes prepared for this purpose were structurally, morphologically, thermally and mechanically examined. XRD patterns and FE-SEM images indicated that CdSe nanoparticles were evenly dispersed on the BC nanofibres. The thermostability of BC highly improved due to CdSe nanoparticles. The CdSe/BC nanocomposite showed good photoluminescence properties and better mechanical

properties. The research team had reported that the study provided a simple method for the preparation of flexible BC membranes and the membranes can be used in advanced applications such as sensors, security papers, and flexible luminescent membranes.



Figure 25. A schematic presentation of the preparation of CdSe/BC nanocomposites. Reproduced with permission from ref ²¹⁸. Copyright 2012 Elsevier.

Flexible BC/polyaniline (PANI) nanocomposite membranes had been prepared using oxidative polymerization of aniline with BC by Park et al. ²¹⁹ The prepared membrane had been characterized by a different technique. BC had been developed using both mechanical properties and solvent stability of the BC/PANI nanocomposite membrane. Also, because of the presence of PANI, the nanocomposite membrane had increased electrical conductivity. As a result, the flexible membrane with high conductivity could be applicable for fuel cell barrier, electromagnetic shielding, chemical sensors and flexible display shortly.

In another study, the new conductive PANI/BC nanocomposite membranes were prepared by Hu et al. ²²⁰ The obtained results indicated that the prepared membrane exhibited high electrical conductivity (5.0 x 10⁻² S/cm) and mechanical properties (Young's modulus was 5.6 GPa and tensile strength was 95.7 MPa). Furthermore, the electrical conductivity of the membrane was sensitive to the strain. The research group reported that prepared flexible films may be used in flexible electrodes, sensors, and flexible displays. Besides BC, CH is also widely used because of being easily modified, ease of isolation and mechanical properties in the membrane applications of nanocomposites. For instance, Yang and Wang ²²¹ prepared novel graphene-modified polyvinyl alcohol/CH blend membranes or sulfonated graphene-modified polyvinyl alcohol/CH blend membranes. The ionic conductivity, thermal property, methanol permeability, and KOH uptakes of the PCG and PCsG nanocomposite membranes were determined. According to the obtained results, the research team reported that both nanocomposite membranes can be promising materials for future alkaline direct methanol fuel cell applications.

Ethanol and isopropanol should be of high-purity to be used in various applications, such as cosmetics, paints, adhesives, pharmaceuticals, coatings, and cleaning agents in the semiconductor industries. However, they form azeotropes at little water concentrations and are miscible with water. ²²² Following this purpose, Dharupaneedi et al. ²²² fabricated modified graphene/CH nanocomposite membranes to dehydrate ethanol and isopropanol. The prepared membranes were analyzed via contact angle, SEM, XRD, and optical profilometry methods. Compared to the ethanol-water mixture, the nanocomposite membranes indicated high separation efficiency for the isopropanol–water mixture.

Samples of separation applications of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources are also given in Table 5 as summary information.

4. Chemistry, Structure and Electronic Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources

Today's technology is continually minimizing dimensionally, being accelerated and evolving to keep up with the pace of modern human life. This change in technology directly affects both chemistry and materials science and is forced to develop making our lives more active and efficient than we currently have right now. The development and the production of innovative materials that can particularly have multifunctional properties have become an important expectation. Use of multifunctional and smart technologies in electronics, medical, defense and automotive industry is an indispensable requirement today. Since the electronics industry is indispensable for modern human beings, advanced material designs are needed in this area. Sensors, capacitors, resistors and magnetic materials are constantly being developed. A continuous increase in the number of used products and unemployed devices in this area causes several environmental problems. Increased demand requires continuous production and biorenewable resources are capable of responding to this request. In another aspect, this very fast technology change leaves an unemployed stack. Therefore, many types of researches are ongoing in the recycling of electronic waste today. The use of bio-renewable eco-friendly materials in the electronics industry will end the problem of electronic waste. Nanocomposites obtained from bio-renewable resources have been also used in the production of sensors, energy storage units, coatings, circuit components, and optoelectronic materials.

4.1. Chemistry, Structure, and Sensing Applications

Due to the serious problems related to the use and production of energy, the bio-renewable energy sector has begun to develop and use nanotechnology applications. Because of the advantages like adjustable porosity, high thermal and chemical stability, high selectivity and easy design, nanocomposites and hybrid nanocomposite are widely being used as ideal materials in various sensor technology (metal, gas, humidity, pressure, biomolecules, etc.). ²²³

In sensor applications, bio-renewable resources are used such as chitin, CH, cellulose, CD, alginate, and guar, in particular. Figure 26 shows the preparation of a sensor for nanocomposites obtained from bio-renewable resources.



Figure 26. Schematic preparation steps of the sensor from bio-renewable sources.

Composite	Contaminants	Adsorption capacity	Ref.
CA-ZnO	Fe (II)	7549.123 mL/g	183
CH-Cin	Cr (VI)	61.35 mg/g	190
Fe ₃ O ₄ @CH-Cin		58.14 mg/g	
CH-Montmorillonite	Se	18.4 mg/g	186
CH-Nanoclay (Cloisite 10A)	Cr (VI)	357.14 mg/g	188
CH-Bentonite	Cu (II)	14.92 mg/g	189
CH-Montmorillonite	Pb (II)	92 mg/g	187
GO-αCD-PPy	Cr (VI)	606.06 mg/g	191
CM-β-CD/Fe ₃ O ₄	Pb (II), Cd (II), and Ni (II)	64.5, 27.7 and 13.2 mg/g	192
ZnO@CH	Pb (II), Cd (II) and Cu (II)	476.1, 135.1 and 117.6 mg/g	193
β-CD/PAA/GO	MB and ST	247.99 mg/g and 175.49 mg/g	196
Guar gum/SiO ₂	RB and CR	-	197

Table 5. Separation applications of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources

Fe ₃ O ₄ /β-CD/GO	Malachite green	740.74 mg/g	198
pHEMA-CH-f-MWCNT	Methyl orange	306 mg/g	199
Starch-g-PAAc/CNWs	MB	~2050 mg/g	200
CNC/CH	Methyl Violet 2B, Victoria Blue 2B, and Rhodamine 6G,	-	201
CH/nano-lignin	MB	74.07 mg/g	202
CH/silica/ZnO ₂	MB	293.3 mg/g	203
CH/Fe ₃ O ₄	MB	20.408 mg/g	224
HAP-GEL	Nitrobenzene	42.373 mg/g	206
Amyloid–carbon	As (V) and As (III)	0.266 μ g/mg and 1.133 μ g/mg	194

4.1.1. Biosensor Applications of Chitosan-Based Nanocomposites

CH is widely used in sensor applications after being modified with metal oxide compounds because of some properties such as ease of film formation, high mechanical strength, biocompatibility, high water permeability, the susceptibility of chemical modifications and inexpensive. ²²⁵ The metal oxide nanoparticles exhibit some unique features such as having high catalytic activity, strong adsorption properties, large surface area and high surface to volume ratio. Metal oxides such as SnO₂ ²²⁶, ZnO₂ ²²⁷, TiO₂ ²²⁸, ZrO₂ ²²⁹ and CeO₂ ²³⁰ have been used as possible materials in biosensor applications. In particular, in the production of glucose sensors without enzyme and H₂O₂ sensors metal oxides have significant potential. In keeping such metal oxides on the surface of the electrode, bio-renewable saccharide-based polymers have been used as a matrix. In these structures, a strong interaction among -OH groups of the metal oxides surfaces and -OH groups of the matrix structure occur and therefore, the surface adsorption of metal oxides increases. ²³¹

Malhotra et al. ²²⁵ developed a cholesterol biosensor by synthesizing cerium oxide (CeO₂)/CH nanocomposites on indium-tin-oxide. Cholesterol sensors which have high selectivity and are easily designed are needed since the determination of cholesterol level is important for the diagnosis of coronary heart diseases. ²³² CeO₂ nanostructures are known for many advantages such as being processed at low temperatures, being adjusted of the physical parameters, optically transparent, inert and thermal stability. ²²⁵

In the context of work, CeO_2 nanoparticles had been successfully doped into the CH matrix and cholesterol oxidase (ChOx) had been immobilized to these nanocomposite structures for cholesterol determination. During this immobilization, the structure and the functional groups of the CH molecule increase the adsorption of the enzyme but do not inhibit the activity. In this system since CeO_2 increases the electroactivity on the surface, it accelerates electron

transfer and thus shortens the response time. Furthermore, because of the porous and cavital structure of the electrode surface, the prepared sensor had been less sensitive to the concentration of the analytes. Therefore, the detection ranges of CH-Nano-CeO₂/ITO sensors as 10-400 mg/dL had been determined. The response time and detection limit of the CeO₂ nanoparticle-based sensor were found 10 s and 5 mg/dL, respectively. Km value as 3.5 mg/dL and regression coefficient value as 0.994 has also been seen.

Yu et al. ²³³ developed an electrochemical CH-Fe₃O₄ nanocomposite sensor for the recognition of Bisphenol A (BPA) as amperometric. BPA, especially today, plays an active role in the production of substances such as plastic, nylon, polyester and polyvinyl chloride. The polycarbonate is used as a coating material in plastics and inside of the food packages such as cans and juice boxes. In our daily lives, BPA appears much more in water bottles, containers, bottles, and glasses. The food contamination of bisphenol A which has carcinogenic effects is dangerous to our health. Also, BPA is assumed to cause sperm disorders and birth defects and cause various types of cancer, such as prostate, testicular and breast cancer. ²³⁴ Thus, the improvement for practical, effective and accurate electrochemical sensors to detect BPA has become an important issue. In this study, the quantity of CH-Fe₃O₄, deposition potential, measurement time and the pH effect had been optimized. Oxidation peak current had been commensurate with Bisphenol A concentration between 5.0×10^{-8} mol/dm³ and 3.0×10^{-5} mol/dm³. The detection limit of the electrode and the correlation coefficient had been determined as 8.0×10^{-9} mol/dm³ and 0.9992, respectively. The prepared sensor had been successfully used to determine BPA. The study team had reported that this method is more suitable for practical electrochemical determination of BPA in industrial applications.

In a recent work ²³⁵, self-assembled graphene nanoplatelets (GNPs)-MWCNT-CH nanostructures were suggested for selective and highly-sensitive determination of BPA in milk samples. The GNPs-MWCNTs-CH composite was characterized concerning interaction,

morphology, surface composition, surface charge and stability. Afterwards, the electrochemical performance of the GNPs-MWCNTs-CH composite modified sensor was studied. The linear response range under optimum conditions, for QR, was found to be from 0.1 to 100 μ M with a low detection limit of 0.05 nM. In the meantime, the suggested modified sensor exhibited high resistance to interference, good repeatability and excellent reproducibility.

Nivethaa et al.²³⁶ synthesized polymer matrix based CH-Ag nanocomposites containing silver in various proportions of weight %. The study aimed to show that CH-Ag nanocomposites, whose matrix is an edible biopolymer, could be used as mercury (Hg) sensor. Hg is an important and toxic heavy metal on the earth. Hg (II) is highly reactive, toxic, and the most common form of mercury. ²³⁷ It is required that the amount of mercury in water has to be known because it damages the endocrine system of the brain and kidneys. Therefore, various methods and techniques for the removal of Hg²⁺ ions from water and wastewater have been investigated. From some different sensor applications, colorimetric sensors depending on the colour change by the addition of mercury have attracted much attention because they not only have a simple technique but also give economical and reliable results. ²³⁴ AgNPs have many applications such as antibacterial activity, the determination of various ions, the inhibition of HIV-like diseases and tumors and the determination of pH and glucose. However, the increase in the particle size of silver occurs as a major problem because of its disadvantage related to the accumulation. As a consequence, the binding of silver particles to the receptor is more difficult and the specificity decreases. ²³⁸ A surfactant and CH, which gains some features to a composite such as biocompatibility and biodegradability, eliminate the harmful effects of nanoparticles. The presence of AgNPs in the CH matrix synthesized as the nanocomposite structure had been displayed by the working team with TEM (Figure 27). Moreover, the bonding of NH₂ and OH groups, which CH have, with silver had been proved by FTIR and XPS measurement techniques. The absorbance increase in the results of UV-Vis analysis had confirmed that the

amount of silver in the nanocomposite structure increased. Face centered cubic structure of silver and semi-crystalline property of CH had been determined by XRD analysis. The interaction of nanocomposite material which was used as a colorimetric sensor to detect mercury had been confirmed by a decrease in the intensity of UV-Vis measurements. The detection limit had been found as approximately 7.2×10^{-8} M. According to the obtained results, Nivethaa et al. reported that nanocomposites containing high selective, non-toxic and environmentally friendly bio-renewable resources are ideal materials for the determination of mercury in low concentrations.



Figure 27. FE-SEM image (a) and HRTEM images (b, c, d) of CH–Ag nanoparticles. Reproduced with permission from ref ²³⁶. Copyright 2015 Elsevier.

In a recent study, Sadani et al. suggested CH-gold nanoparticles based optical sensor on bovine serum albumin (BSA) for detection of low concentration of Hg (II) ion in different samples such as water, soil, and food samples. ²³⁹ Figure 28 depicts the schematic fabrication procedure of the sensor. The developed optic **fibre** sensor can detect Hg (II) ion in different water, soil and food samples with a LOD of 0.1 ppb. Besides, it was highly stable and repeatable and this sensor measures with a handheld reader previously reported.



Figure 28. (a) The general structure of CH - gold nanoparticles based optical sensor (b) preparation of the sensor (i) amine functionalization using (3-Aminopropyl) triethoxysilane (APTES) (ii) glutaraldehyde treatment (iii) immobilization of the BSA on glutaraldehyde (iv) immobilization of CH capped gold nanoparticles on BSA. Reproduced with permission from ref ²³⁹. Copyright 2019 Elsevier.

Chromium (Cr), which is as toxic as mercury, is another heavy metal that is extensively used in diverse industries such as metallurgy, metal melting, coating and electroplating industry, rechargeable battery industry, pigment production, wood preservation, and free tanning. ^{240,241} It is a form of Cr (III) and Cr (IV) having some physicochemical properties and toxicities as heavy metal. ^{242,243} Cr (III) is recognized as a necessary nutritional element for living organisms. Besides, it is an indispensable element in mammals and has an effective role in carbohydrate, lipid, glucose and protein metabolisms.²⁴⁴ Both lack and excess of this element lead to negative effects on the human body. For this reason, some important techniques such as AAS, AES, inductively coupled plasma mass spectrometry (ICP-MS), chemiluminescent, fluorescence resonance energy transfer assay, colorimetric, hyper Rayleigh scattering, fluorescent and spectrometric analysis have been established for the detection of Cr (III) in industrial and biological samples. However, most of these methods are expensive, take much time, tedious in terms of sample preparation and required special equipment. Thus, for the determination of Cr (III), highly efficient in terms of electrochemical oxidation, versatile, easily manipulated, environmentally friendly and cheap alternative methods have been investigated. Today, nanotechnology science has begun using new nanomaterials to produce chemically modified electrodes. In this regard, bio-renewable natural products and metal oxides have the most ideal structures. Salimi et al.²⁴⁵ prepared a novel electrochemical Cr (III) sensor. In their study, the manganese oxide (MnO_x)/MWCNTs/CH nanocomposites had been prepared. MnOx has excellent nanostructure and is a suitable candidate as an electrode material having advantages such as low cost, non-toxic, natural wealthy, environmentally friendly and relatively high energy density. Therefore, it is being widely used as biosensors/ chemical sensors. In the study, primarily glassy carbon electrode (GCE) was modified with CH/MWCNTs nanocomposite thin films. Then, MnOx nanostructures were immobilized onto the surface of CH/MWCNTs modified glassy carbon electrode with a combination of constant potential (0.6 V) and cyclic voltammetry (0.3-0.6 V) measurement techniques. Prepared MnO₂ based electrode had shown a good pair of redox for the Mn^{2+/}MnO₂ system. The charge transfer coefficient, the constant of electron transfer rate and surface concentration had been measured as 0.394, 3.44 s^{-1} , $3.3 \times 10^{-11} \text{ mol cm}^{-2}$, respectively. Modified electrode had shown high electrocatalytic activity toward the oxidation of Cr (III) in neutral pH. Cyclic voltammetry and hydrodynamic amperometric methods had been used to determine chromium. The detection limit, the selectivity and linear concentration range of the prepared sensor had been measured as $0.3 \,\mu$ M, 18.7 nA μ M⁻¹ and from 3 μ M to 200 μ M. In addition, the sensor had remained 90% of its authenticity after even being waited 3 months in favorable conditions. As a result, it had been seen that CH, which was in the structure of the synthesized nanocomposite material for the detection of Cr (III), played an important role in especially binding of reinforcement and extending the shelf life of the sensor.

Phenols and simple phenol-derived phenolic compounds are extensively used in several industries such as polymeric material industry, pesticides, dye industry, petrochemical products, and wood preservatives. ²⁴⁶ Many of these compounds are in the water, food, and drugs. They are extremely harmful to human health when inhaled or taken by mouth and skin. ²⁴⁷ Therefore, due to the persistence in environment and toxicity, it is extremely important to develop simple techniques for the rapid measurement of phenolic compounds. Chromatographic and spectrophotometric measurement techniques have been used to detect phenolic compounds in water samples, However, these measurement techniques are expensive, time-consuming, limited and complicated in terms of the implementation. Electrochemical biosensors are considered to be promising due to the high selectivity, the fast and simple implementation for the determination of phenolic compounds. Therefore, Han et al. ²⁴⁸ tried to develop a highly selective and simple amperometric biosensor for phenols. In this context, using CH as a bio-renewable resource, CdS quantum dots/CH nanocomposite structure had been

prepared and tyrosinase had been immobilized into the nanocomposite matrix to be used as a biosensor for the determination of catechol. CH had incorporated biocompatibility and hydrophilic characters to the nanocomposite structure. Moreover, the structure of the CH had increased the absorbed analytes compounds on the electrode surface and thereby increased the effectiveness of the sensor. It had been observed that the activity of the tyrosinase enzyme, which was immobilized onto the new nanocomposite structure, had been largely preserved. CdS quantum dots/CH nanocomposite films had been characterized by SEM and electrochemical impedance spectroscopy. Also, biosensor parameters had been optimized with a variety of experiments. Under optimum conditions, the proposed biosensor had given a response in the range of 1.0×10^{-9} - 2.0×10^{-5} M catechol concentration and the selectivity and the detection limit had been measured as 561 ± 9.7 mA M⁻¹ and 0.3 nM (signal-to-noise ratio of 3), respectively. Han et al. showed that for the determination of phenolic compounds and the development of biomatrix and biocatalysts in nanotechnology, CdS quantum dots/CH nanocomposites could be used. Besides, Carlo et al. used gold-CH nanocomposite material for the determination of caffeic acid. ²⁴⁹ Caffeic acid is a recently explored interesting antioxidant because of its pharmacological properties and benefits to human health. Therefore, a rapid and simple determination of caffeic acid is important with electrochemical sensors. In recent years, AuNPs have shown unique physical and chemical properties and these nanoparticles have been increasingly used in some important industrial applications such as electronics, biotechnology, medical, optics, biomaterial, and catalysis. Nanocomposite structured CH and AuNPs had been used for the sensing of caffeic acid. In this study, colloidal AuNPs had been immobilized into the CH matrix using the green chemistry method. In the aqueous solution of CH and some organic acids (acetic, ascorbic, malonic or oxalic acid, etc.) the reduction of Au^{III} to Au⁰ had been provided with a synthesis reaction performed in situ. CH, which is biocompatible and a bio-renewable resource through having amino and hydroxyl groups, provides a simultaneous

synthesis and surface modification of gold nanoparticles. Hybrid nanocomposite films of AuNPs-CH had been obtained with the good film ability of CH. Au-CH nanocomposites were successfully used as selective and sensitive electrochemical sensors for the determination of caffeic acid. Limit of detection and concentration range had been measured as 2.50×10^{-8} M and from 5.00×10^{-8} M to 2.00×10^{-3} M, respectively. Carlo et al. reported that the new green synthesis method used in the study and the high performance of Au-CH hybrid nanocomposites would give a direction to the new approaches.

Yang et al. ²⁵⁰ developed an impedimetric electrochemical DNA sensor. MWNTs-CH-SnO₂ hybrid nanocomposites had been synthesized to be used as a biosensor. CH had been used in the nanocomposite structure because of its properties related to biodegradability and biocompatibility. Inorganic oxides are widely used to improve the transfer of electrons between the electrodes and biomolecules. Due to the advantages such as outstanding photo electronic features, short response time, high selectivity and conductivity, SnO₂ are used in microelectronic, photonic, solar cell and biosensor applications. Therefore, SnO₂ had been preferred as the inorganic oxide compound in the study. Yang et al. characterized the Au electrode modifying with MWNTs-CH-SnO₂ composite with electrochemical impedance spectroscopy and cyclic voltammetry. This prepared nanocomposite structure demonstrated the most significant electrochemical signal compared to MWNTs-CH, SnO₂-CH, and bare gold electrode. The electrochemical DNA had been used to determine the phosphinothricin-acetyltransferase gene in transgenic maize. The detection limit and the dynamic detection range had been measured as 2.5×10^{-12} M, and from 1.0×10^{-11} to 1.0×10^{-6} M. As a result, based on the performed research, it had been demonstrated that this designed biosensor has unique advantages such as simplicity, stability, and high selectivity.

Baccarin et al. showed the simultaneous electrochemical detection of paracetamol (PAR) and dopamine (DA) amount in urine samples using reduced graphene oxide(rGO)/carbon

black(CB)/CH composite modified GCE (Figure 29).²⁵¹ This electrochemical sensor showed good analytical performance for DA with a wide concentration range from 3.2×10^{-6} to 3.2×10^{-5} M. This modified electrode also showed a low detection limit $(2.0 \times 10^{-7} \text{ M})$. For PAR, the prepared sensor displayed a wide concentration range from 2.8×10^{-6} to 1.9×10^{-5} M and a detection limit of this sensor was 5.3×10^{-8} M. This sensor was not affected by other interfering species during urine measurements. The developed sensor can be a promising biosensor candidate because of the advantages such as low cost, easy preparation, selective and fast response. Therefore, it may be used to detect paracetamol and dopamine in some biological models. Thus, this sensor can be used for many biomedical applications.

In the literature, there have been many reports including CH-based hybrid nanocomposite for the preparation of a glucose biosensor. Figiela et al. ²⁵² fabricated a non-enzymatic glucose biosensor with the help of copper oxide-CH nanocomposites by a biomimetic approach (Figure 30). The sensor showed suitable analytical performances with good sensitivity $(503 \ \mu A.mM/cm^2)$ in a wide linear range, low detection limit (11 μ M) and very short response time (within 6 s). Furthermore, the novel sensor can be suitable for the detection of glucose in biological fluids.



Figure 29. Schematic representation of the preparation of reduced graphene oxide and the RGO/carbon black/CTS composite modified GCE sensor fabrication process. Reproduced with permission from ref ²⁵¹. Copyright 2017 Elsevier.



Figure 30. The fabricated novel a non-enzymatic glucose biosensor with the help of copper oxide-CH nanocomposites by a biomimetic approach. Reproduced with permission from ref ²⁵². Copyright 2018 Elsevier.

4.1.2. Biosensor Applications of Cellulose-Based Nanocomposites

Cellulose is one of the non-toxic organic bio-renewable material. It is the most abundant colourless resource on earth. ²⁵³ Furthermore, because it has some important features such as mechanic stability, flexibility, biocompatibility, biodegradability, it is often used in industrial applications such as pharmaceutical, biomedical, biotechnology, textile and food technology. Cellulose can be easily obtained particularly by two different sources as vegetable and bacterial and can be used in nanocomposite structure as crystalline cellulose, fibre, nanofibrils, cellulose fibres, and modified cellulose structures. Recently, the cellulose sensor has been discovered because of the suitability for flexible electronic applications as a smart material. Cellulose is usually in the structure of a hybrid nanocomposite along with the materials increasing the

electron transfer such as inorganic oxides, carbon nanotubes and graphene for sensor applications. Researches on this subject have increased with the incremental demand for environmentally friendly and flexible materials in modern electronic applications.

Kafy et al. ²⁵⁴ preferred to use the structure of cellulose/graphene nanocomposites for sensor applications. Since the graphene sheets have important electrical properties such as electron transport, high catalytic and electrocatalytic activity, they are used in the applications of electrochemical supercapacitor, microelectronic and optoelectronic devices as gas sensors, chemosensor, and biosensors. Currently, polymer-graphene composite materials are being researched and improved as a sensor in chemical and biomedical applications due to their low cost and flexibility. In this study, cellulose/graphene nanocomposites had been used due to their high mechanical, dielectric and electrical performances. The synthesized nanocomposites had been characterized by FTIR, XRD, and SEM. At the same time, synthesized nanocomposites had been evaluated as the solvent sensor by determining the varying capacitance measurements with the reaction between a variety of solvents (n-hexane, chloroform, toluene, acetone, and ethanol) and nanocomposites. At the end of the experiment, the highest capacitance variation had been observed in ethanol (polar) solvent, while the lowest capacitance variation had been seen in the n-hexane (nonpolar) solvent. From the study of Kafy et al., it is seen that since the production of synthesized nanocomposite material is quick, easy and sensitive, it can be used instead of expensive and disposable solvent sensors.

Having easy deformable structure, high adsorption on the electrode surface, being porous and biocompatible, cellulose had brought the consideration, not for only liquid analytes but also determining the availability of the components in the gas phase. In this area, ammonia, volatile organic molecules, toxic gases or even natural gas sensors had been studied. Ammonia is a colourless mater with a distinctive odour. Because of the strong smell of ammonia vapor, it is detected easily in high doses by people. However, the use of highly sensitive and selective sensors is required for the sensing of small amounts of ammonia. ²⁵⁵ In general, the detection of gaseous ammonia is carried out by infrared devices or potentiometric electrodes. However, these devices are expensive and slow. ²⁵⁶

Mun et al. ²⁵⁷ synthesized cellulose-titanium dioxide (TiO₂)-MWCNT for the detection of ammonia gas. The nanocrystalline structure of TiO₂-MWCNT nanocomposites was determined with XRD and TEM. Then, cellulose was doped into this nanocomposite structure. Cellulose-TiO₂-MWCNT hybrid nanocomposites had been prepared and used as an NH₃ gas sensor at room temperature. Ammonia gas which is in the range between 50 ppm and 500 ppm had been quickly and effectively determined with the prepared sensor. The study team demonstrated that these hybrid nanocomposites which are flexible, inexpensive, highly selective and reproducible could be applied as a gas sensor.

Bacterial-cellulose nanofibre-SnO₂ composites were successfully prepared by Sakwises et al. For Ni²⁺ adsorption and electrochemical detection, these composites were used as a novel platform (Figure 31). ²⁵⁸ To determine their physicochemical properties, the composites were characterized via various techniques such as XRD, TGA, atomic force microscopy (AFM), SEM and energy dispersive X-Ray spectroscopic (EDX) analysis. The obtained results indicated that SnO₂ particles (1wt%-10wt%) were successfully embedded onto the bacterialcellulose surface. Also, the morphological analysis showed the presence of the SnO₂ particles within the prepared composites and these composites exhibited a uniform topography, porosity and surface roughness. For determination of the Ni²⁺ adsorption, CV measurements were carried and the relationships between the current-response signal and applied potential were investigated. The authors proposed that these prepared composites can be utilized as an appropriate carrier for Ni²⁺ adsorption and the direct electrochemical Ni²⁺detection system. ²²⁷



Figure 31. The bacterial-cellulose nano**fibre**-SnO2 composites for Ni²⁺ adsorption and electrochemical Ni²⁺ determination. Reproduced with permission from ref ²⁵⁸. Copyright 2017 Elsevier.

In another study, the graphene oxide/carboxymethyl cellulose/glutathione (rGO/CMC/GSH) modified electrode was fabricated for the detection of Cd (II) (Figure 32). ²⁵⁹ The prepared electrode showed high reproducibility, selectivity and stability for the detection of Cd (II) due to the prepared nanocomposite's good stabilizing ability, chelating property and high surface area. The detection limit for the prepared rGO/CMC/GSH electrode was 0.05 nM and its sensitivity was 4.5 μ A/nM. The developed rGO/CMC/GSH electrode-based sensor was also applied to detect Cd²⁺ in the milk samples, and egg albumin and the obtained Cd²⁺ measurement results showed good agreement with the measurement results of AAS method.



Figure 32. The preparation of the reduced graphene oxide/carboxymethyl cellulose/glutathione modified electrode and the results of Cd (II) peak with increase Cd(II) concentration by this electrode. Reproduced with permission from ref ²⁵⁹. Copyright 2018 Elsevier.

Colloidal semiconductor quantum dots (QDs) are very important materials for electronic and optoelectronic application and they are known to be widely used in both optical and electrochemical biosensors. QD exhibit distinctive properties such as light conductivity, high surface area, good surface modification properties, and optical propagation due to the interesting excitation wavelength. Recently, an innovative electrochemical sensor based on nanocrystalline cellulose decorated QDs for phenol determination was reported (Figure 33). The biosensor was fabricated by immobilizing tyrosinase enzyme onto QDs nanocomposite. The fabricated sensor exhibited high electrocatalytic activity towards phenol, which is accredited to good conductivity, high surface area and biocompatibility of the nanocomposite. The QDs based sensor displayed good detection response with a detection limit of 0.082 μ M, 0.078 μ A/ μ M sensitivity and a linear detection range up to 5-40 μ M. ²⁶⁰



Figure 33. Schema of preparation and measurement mechanism of the nanocrystalline cellulose decorated QDs biosensor. Reproduced with permission from ref ²⁶⁰. Copyright 2019 Elsevier.

4.1.3. Biosensor Applications of β-Cyclodextrin-Based Nanocomposites

Electrochemical sensors are simple and effective instruments for the rapid determination of various chemicals. New nano-materials in the nanosensor applications have been improved together with the development of nanotechnology science. While the materials to be used as sensors are synthesized, there is generally an orientation on the use of natural, cheap and biorenewable resources. One of these resources is also β -Cyclodextrin. Cyclodextrin, which consists of seven glucose units and is produced by the enzymatic degradation of S, is a biorenewable cyclic oligosaccharide having the hydrophilic outer part and hydrophobic inner part. ^{261,262} Cyclodextrin are extensively used in several industrial applications such as hydrogels, hydrophobic drug carriers, drug targeting, separation and detection, pharmaceutical reinforcements, paint purification, and electrochemical sensors.

Wang et al. ²⁶³ synthesized β -Cyclodextrin/Fe₃O₄ hybrid magnetic nanocomposites as a tryptophan sensor (Figure 34). Tryptophan is a non-essential amino acid constituting proteins

and is an essential component that is indispensable to ensure the nitrogen balance in human nutrition. However, when taken in high doses of tryptophan, it may cause some side effects such as loss of appetite, nausea, drowsiness and dizziness.²⁶⁴ Hence, sensitive simple and rapid detection of tryptophan is very important in terms of public health. To determine tryptophan, some analytical methods such as liquid chromatography, fluorescence spectroscopy, capillary electrophoresis measurements and electrochemical analysis are used. Among these methods, electrochemical methods are the most preferred techniques due to the high sensitivity, simple and easy implementation in recent years. Therefore, new materials are needed for electrochemically identifying of tryptophan. In electrochemical sensor applications, polymers, nanocomposites, and inorganic polymeric films are used for the modification of the electrode. Nanocomposites are very promising and important materials for the design of electrochemical sensors because of having a high surface area, better distribution, and functionalization properties. Therefore, Wang et al. prepared nanoparticle-based nanocomposite material for sensor applications. In nanocomposite material, they had used β -CDs a bio-renewable resource for its characteristics and Fe₃O₄ nanoparticles (MNPs), which showed the magnetic property, as reinforcement. In recent years, MNPs are among very interesting nanomaterials in terms of easy preparation, high adsorption ability, and electrical properties as electrochemical sensors and biosensors. The working team characterized the synthesized β-CD-MNPs hybrid nanocomposites with TEM, FT-IR, and TGA methods. β-CD grafted onto Fe₃O₄ magnetic nanoparticles had been used to determine tryptophan with modifying glassy carbon electrode by the electrochemical impedance spectroscopy method and cyclic voltammetry. β-CD-MNPs hybrid nanocomposites had increased the electron transfer amongst the solution and the electrode. Some important parameters such as the amount of nanocomposite, pH of the solution, and the rate of voltammetry scan had been also optimized. Under optimum conditions, tryptophan measurement concentration range, the detection limit and the consecutive 8 measurements of relative standard deviation for 1.0×10^{-4} M tryptophan had been measured as from 8.0×10^{-7} to 3.0×10^{-4} M, 5.0×10^{-7} M and 4.2%, respectively. The procedure recommended by the study team had been successfully used for the detection of tryptophan and positive results had been obtained.



Figure 34. Preparation of β -CD-MNPs hybrid nanocomposites. Reproduced with permission from ref ²⁶³. Copyright 2012 Elsevier.

Catechol (CT) is a natural phenolic compound that is found in tea, vegetables, fruits, tobacco, and some traditional Chinese drugs. ²⁶⁵ CT has a biological significance as it has the activity of some enzymes, antioxidants, and anti-virus features. However, when taken in high doses of CT, it causes toxic effects in both humans and other creatures. ²⁶⁴ Therefore, researches on the determination of CT have increased to protect living organism health, check food quality, and control of environmental pollution. Today, spectroscopy, liquid and gas chromatography are used for the determination of the CT level, but these methods are expensive and timeconsuming. Instead of these methods, researches related to the production of fast, simple, cheap and sensitive sensor technology have increased. Han et al. ²⁶² developed a nanocomposite modified sensor to determine CT, which is an important phenolic compound, with an electrochemical method. Nanocomposite structure was comprised of the bio-renewable natural oligosaccharide β -CD and cobalt ferrite (Co_xFe_{3-x}O₄) magnetic nanoparticles. Because of the cheap and good electro-active properties of cobalt (Co)-based nanomaterials and biocompatibility and selectivity properties of magnetic nanoparticles, they had been preferred in the structure of nanocomposite. Catechol measurement concentration range and detection limit had been measured as from 1-200 µM, and 0.12 µM. As a result, to determine catechol in water samples a nanocomposite modified sensor having the properties of high selectivity and repeatability had been designed.

Another study using bio-renewable β -CD in the nanocomposite structure had been performed by Zhang et al. ²⁶¹ New β -CD/graphene nanocomposite films had been prepared to detect quercetin. Graphene had been used in the nanocomposite structure because of the high surface area and the electronic properties. Quercetin, a natural pentahydroxyflavone, is an important component found in various drinks, medicinal plants, flowers, fruits, and leaves. ²⁶⁶ Since quercetin shows some biological activities such as antioxidant, antitumor activity, estrogen, antiallergic and anti-inflammatory effect, it is a crucial component. However, its

overuse had been reported to cause kidney cancer. ²⁶⁷ Therefore, the determination of the amount of quercetin is important in medical and food researches. For the scope of work, the morphology, physical properties and chemical structure of synthesized β -CD/graphene nanocomposite films had been characterized with instrumental analysis methods, and the electrochemical properties had been determined with differential pulse voltammetry and cyclic voltammetry measurement techniques. Under optimum conditions, the determination range for quercetin and the value of the detection limit had been measured as from 0.005 to 20 mM and 0.001 mM, respectively. The sensor had also exhibited good stability and high selectivity. As a result of the study, Zhang et al. reported that the sensor that was designed by them gave satisfactory results and could be used for the analysis of real samples in further studies.

Zhou et al. reported the 1-pyrenebutyrate based rGO/mercapto- β -CD/Au composite based electrode for the quantitative analysis of quercetin (Figure 35). The developed sensor showed that the linear response range for quercetin was from 0.005 to 0.4 μ M. At the same time, the prepared sensor exhibited a low detection limit (1.83 nM). Furthermore, prepared nanocomposite based sensor also displayed very high sensitivity and good stability for the determination of quercetin and several other flavonoids do not interfere. ²⁶⁸



Figure 35. The preparation and sensing schema of the PB-rGO/TCD/AuNPs/GCE. Reproduced with permission from ref ²⁶⁸. Copyright 2019 Elsevier.

In a recent study, Zhao et al. ²⁶⁹ using MoS₂-carbon nanotube@graphene oxide nanoribbons/HS-Cyclodextrin/graphene quantum dots composite film designed and developed a novel electrochemical sensor to determine ultrasensitive quercetin. Under optimal conditions, the linear response range for quercetin was from 2.0×10^{-9} to 1.6×10^{-6} M with a low detection limit of 8.2×10^{-10} M. In the practical application of this sensor, a satisfactory result was achieved for the determination of quercetin in the real samples such as juice and honey. Besides, the sensor displayed good repeatability, high selectivity, and good storage stability. Overall, the designed sensor is promising for the detection of quercetin in comparison with other counterparts.

Hui et al. ²⁷⁰ synthesized silver- β -Cyclodextrin/graphene (AgNPs- β -CD/GR) nanocompositebased biosensors in their research. The prepared sensors had been used in the simultaneous determination of adenine and guanine bases. In the previous studies, it had been mentioned that β -CD and GR had been frequently used in electrochemical sensor design and nanocomposite structures because of their properties. In this study, especially for the detention of Ag nanoparticles, β -CD had been used and it prevented the leakage of these nanoparticles from the electrode surface during the application. Graphene created a conductive channel at the coating of the electrode surface and generating an electrocatalytic effect had allowed simultaneous analysis of adrenaline and graphene. At the same time, graphene had increased the electrode surface area by creating a highly porous surface. In this way, it enabled the determination of lower analytes concentrations.

DNA and RNA are well known for having vital functions such as transfer of the genetic features and *in vivo* protein synthesis. Adenine and guanine are the essential components of some DNA and RNA. ²⁷⁰ Therefore, the analytical determination of these two bases is significantly important in molecular biology, genetics, bioscience, and clinical analysis. The electrode which would be used as the sensor had been modified with the synthesized nanocomposite material and the measurements of both bases had been made by the differential pulse voltammetry method. The range for the determination and the detection limit of Adenine had been measured as $0.3-200 \,\mu$ M and $0.09 \,\mu$ M; whereas, the range for the determination and the detection limit of Guanine had been determined as $0.5-25 \,\mu$ M and $0.15 \,\mu$ M, respectively. These results had shown that that prepared nanocomposite materials have the potential to be used in the implementation of electroanalytical biosensors.

Polypyrrole (PPy) decorated graphene/β-CD composite film was fabricated with chemical oxidation method of PPy monomer (Figure 36) and its application in electrochemical detection of low concentration of mercury (II) was investigated by Palanisamy et al. ²⁷¹ The developed sensor showed low LOD, high sensitivity, and broader linear response range to detect Hg (II). Even in the active metal ions presence, the sensor showed also good selectivity for the determination of Hg (II) amount. Additionally, the team reported that the LOD value of the

prepared sensor was lower than the advised level of Hg (II) set by the U.S. EPA (Environmental Protection Agency) and the WHO.



Figure 36. The possible Hg(II) detection mechanism of the GR-CD/PPy composite electrode. Reproduced with permission from ref²⁷¹. Copyright 2017 Elsevier.

In recent years, copper oxide nanoparticles doped graphene(GR)- β -CD composites have been reported for the detection of metronidazole as an antibiotic drug (Figure 37). ²⁷² The fabricated electrode displayed a linear electrochemical response between 0.002 and 210.0 μ M concentration range and 0.6 nM metronidazole detection limit. The electrochemical results suggest that the prepared graphene(GR)- β -CD composites based electrode exhibited excellent catalytic activity, high selectivity and low reduction potential for the detection of metronidazole. Furthermore, the sensor was also effectively applied to determine the metronidazole amount in pharmaceutical tablets.



Figure 37. The CuO nanoparticles doped GR- β -CD composites for the detection of metronidazole. Reproduced with permission from ref ²⁷². Copyright 2018 Elsevier.

Karthika et al. ²⁷³ synthesized CuO/ β -CD nanocomposites via the sonochemical method to develop an electrochemical sensor for L-tyrosine detection. The nanocomposites were characterized using FE-SEM, UV–vis, FT-IR, Raman, XRD and mapping analysis methods. In comparison to the CuO, modified β -CD, and bare GCE electrodes, the CuO/ β -CD modified electrode showed higher electrocatalytic activity towards the L-tyrosine. According to obtained measurements, the CuO/ β -CD modified electrode exhibited an outstanding amperometric i-t current response to determine the L-tyrosine with a broad range from 0.01 to 100 μ M, high sensitivity 442 μ A μ M⁻¹cm² and little detection limit (0.0082 μ M). The electrode exhibited

decent repeatability, selectivity, stability, and reproducibility. Besides, it displayed good sensibleness to detect L-tyrosine in the food samples, urine samples and blood serum.

4.1.4. Biosensor Applications of Guar Gum-Based Nanocomposites

Biopolymers are the most frequently used structures for designing multifunctional materials because they are biocompatible, biodegradable, hydrophilic, inexpensive and have chelating abilities to name a few. Guar gum (GG) is a biopolymer structure containing galactose and mannose units. GG is a commonly used source to prepare the advanced materials due to the strong hydrogen bonds, good film properties, emulsifying and stabilizing agents. Besides, GG has a wide range of pH which may be compatible with various inorganic and organic materials, and exhibit high solubility and viscosity properties. Due to all these features and being a biorenewable resource, GG is an important polymer for nanocomposite materials and their advanced applications. Especially, they are often used in the preparation of the sensor structures, the distribution of the active sensitivity molecules, the attachment onto the electrode surface and the forming of stable films on the surface.

Malik et al. ²⁷⁴ synthesized SnO₂/Guar gum hybrid nanocomposite materials using SnO₂ nanoparticles. They had prepared appropriate sensors for the determination of hydrazine using this synthesized material to modify the electrode surface. Hydrazine and its derivatives, pharmaceutical by-products, antioxidants, pesticides, plant growth regulators, reducing agents and corrosion inhibitors are of great importance. However, sometimes hydrazine can be toxic and carcinogenic. Thus, the hydrazine affects the brain, DNA, blood, nerve system and cause some disorders. ²⁷⁵ In the diagnosis and treatment of all of these diseases, prepared sensor structures are very important. In the study, the prepared SnO₂/Guar gum hybrid nanocomposite based sensor showed low detection (in the range of 2–22 mM), suitable low detection limit
(2.76 mM) and high sensitivity $(5.72 \ \mu\text{A cm}^{-2})$ for hydrazine determination. In other guar gumbased sensor structures, nanoparticles such as SiO₂, TiO₂ and CeO had been doped into guar matrix components and relatively high efficiency of the sensor was obtained.

Samples of biosensor applications of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources are also given in Table 6 as summary information.

Table 6.	Biosensor	applications	of nanocom	posites from	bio-renewable	e resources
----------	-----------	--------------	------------	--------------	---------------	-------------

Composite	Analytes	Electrode	Method	Linear range	LOD	Sensitivity	Ref.
NanoCeO ₂ -CH	Cholesterol	ITO	CV, EIS	10–400 mg/dL	5 mg/dL	$47 \ \mu A/mg \ dL^{-1} cm^{-2}$	225
CH–Fe ₃ O ₄	BPA	GCE	CV, DPV	0.05–30 μmol dm ⁻³	$0.008 \ \mu mol \ dm^{-3}$	-	233
GNPs-MWCNT-CH	BPA	GCE	CV, DPV	0.1-100 μΜ	0.05 nM	-	235
CH-Ag	Hg (II)	-	Colorimetric	-	7.2×10 ⁻⁸ M	-	236
MnOx/MWCNTs/CH	Cr (III)	GCE	CV, hydrodynamic amperometery	3 μΜ-200 μΜ	0.3 μΜ	18.7 nA μM ⁻¹	245
Quantum dots/CH	Catechol	GCE	EIS	1.0×10 ⁻⁹ -2.0×10 ⁻⁵ M	0.3 nM	561±9.7 mA M ⁻¹	248
Au-CH	Caffeic acid	Gold	CV, DPV	$5.0 \times 10^{-8} - 2.0 \times 10^{-3} \mathrm{M}$	2.50×10 ⁻⁸ M	-	249
MWCNT-SnO ₂ -CH	DNA	Gold	CV, EIS	$1.0 \times 10^{-11} - 1.0 \times 10^{-6} \mathrm{M}$	2.5×10 ⁻¹² M		250
RGO-CB-CH	DA	GCE	CV, SWV	3.2×10 ⁻⁶ -3.2×10 ⁻⁵ M	2.0×10 ⁻⁷ M	-	251

				, -	â		
	PAR			2.8×10 ⁻⁶ -1.9×10 ⁻⁵ M	5.3×10 ⁻⁸ M		
CuO-CH	Glucose	GCE	CV, AD	0.050-1 mM	11 μΜ	503 µA.mM/cm ²	252
rGO/CMC/GSH	Cd (II)	GCE	CV, EIS	2–20 nM	0.05 nM	4.5 μA/nM	259
NCC/CdS QDs	Phenol	SPCE	CV, EIS, DPV	5-40 μΜ	0.082 μΜ	0.078 μA/μM	260
β-CD/Fe ₃ O ₄	Tryptophan	GCE	CV, EIS	8.0×10 ⁻⁷ -3.0×10 ⁻⁴ M	5.0×10 ⁻⁷ M	-	263
β-CD-cobalt ferrite	Catechol	GCE	CV, DPV	1-200 μM	0.12 μΜ	-	262
β-CD/graphene	Quercetin	GCE	CV, DPV	0.005-20 mM	0.001 mM	-	261
rGO/mercapto-β- CD/Au	Quercetin	GCE	CV, DPV, EIS	0.005-0.4 μΜ	1.83 nM	-	268
MoS ₂ - CNT@GO/HS- CD/graphene QDs	Quercetin	GCE	CV, DPV, EIS	2.0×10 ⁻⁹ -1.6×10 ⁻⁶ M	8.2×10 ⁻¹⁰ M	-	269
AgNPs-β-CD/GR	Guanine Adenine	GCE	CV, DPV	0.3-200 μM 0.5-250 μM	0.09 μM 0.15 μM	-	270

GR-β-CD/CuO NPs	Metronidazole	GCE	CV, Amperometry	0.002-210.0 μM	0.6 nM	-	271
CuO/β-CD	L-tyrosine	GCE	CV, Amperometric	0.01-100 μΜ	0.0082 μΜ	442 $\mu A \mu M^{-1} cm^2$	272
SnO ₂ /Guar gum	Hydrazine	ITO	CV, DPV	2–22 mM	2.76 mM	5.72 μA cm ⁻²	274

4.1.5. Other Sensor Applications

Researchers have recently focused on the development of flexible humidity, temperature, and mechanical (strain, compress, etc.) sensors as well as biosensors. Dai et al. ²⁷⁶ developed CH/zinc oxide/single-walled carbon nanotube composite film based chemiresistive humidity sensor. They characterized the developed sensor by using XRD, SEM and FTIR techniques. Additionally, they performed humidity sensing properties of the sensor in a broad range of relative humidity (RH) (11%, 23%, 33%, 43%, 52%, 67%, 75%, 86%, and 97%) at room temperature. According to the results obtained, it displayed high sensitivity and good reproducibility. Hence, the authors suggested that the sensor may be further improved by a distinct dispersion technique or composite structure optimization, such as hierarchical structure or organic-inorganic coaxial hybrid because of good sensing performance.

Qi et al. have fabricated a quartz crystal microbalance (QCM) humidity sensor using the graphene quantum dots and CH composites 277 . The composite was examined for structural and morphological characteristics by using FTIR, SEM, TEM, and HR-TEM. The humidity sensor displayed short response/recovery time (36 s/3 s), high response sensitivity (a frequency shift of -3291 Hz at 95% RH), tiny humidity hysteresis (~1.6% RH), long-term stability, excellent reproducibility, and reversibility. As a result, it was concluded that the fabricated QCM sensor is quite reliable to monitor water vapor content in a broad humidity range.

Sadasivuni et al. ²⁷⁸ proposed cellulose/rGO composite films and investigated their morphology and structural properties through FTIR, XRD, SEM and Raman spectra methods for flexible temperature sensor application. The temperature sensor exhibited linearity concerning the temperature change between 25 and 80 °C. In conclusion, the authors anticipated that such devices exhibit high potential to be used in a number of applications including wearable devices and electronic equipment.

Besides the above studies, some sensors were reported to simultaneously measure relative temperature and humidity. For instance, Mahadeva et al. ²⁷⁹ fabricated flexible temperature and humidity sensor using cellulose–polypyrrole nanocomposite. With the increment in the humidity, the capacitance of the flexible sensor was found to be increased. Besides, similar results were obtained for change in temperature. Moreover, it displayed the best linearity and superior reversibility with good response and recovery behavior.

In another example, Li et al. ²⁸⁰ produced an optical fibre sensor based on CMC/CNT film to simultaneously measure the temperature and relative humidity. The humidity sensitivity of the proposed sensor with CMC film was found to be 170.55 pm/%RH. On the other hand, the CMC/CNTs composite film sensor exhibited the sensitivity of 230.95 pm/%RH with an enhancement of 35.41%. On the other hand, the sensor can also simultaneously measure the temperature having a sensitivity of 26.35 pm/°C.

As an example of mechanical sensors, Zheng et al. ²⁸¹ used cellulose nanofibres and graphene co-incorporated poly (vinyl alcohol)-borax hydrogel to prepare self-healing and highly stretchable strain sensors. The strain sensor showed superb viscoelasticity (3.7 kPa storage modulus), great stretchability (break-up elongation up to 1000%), high healing efficiency (97.7 \pm 1.2%), and fast self-healing ability (20 s). The hydrogel strain sensor can be used for several promising applications such as in intelligent wearable electronics.

In another study, Biswas et al. prepared a strain sensor using flexible ZnO nanowire-cellulose paper composite ²⁸². The developed strain sensor exhibited high gauge factor, good stability, and good repeatability. Therefore, the proposed robust and sensitive strain sensor can be utilized in the fields of MEMS devices, biomedical sciences, and structural health monitoring to name a few.

4.2. Chemistry, Structure and Energy Storage Applications

Energy is an imperative factor in the development of both developed and developing countries. With the increase in the human population and life quality, energy is needed in much more amount. At the same time, standard energy resources are based on fossil fuels and are also limited. Furthermore, these fuels cause pollution and global warming. Therefore, renewable energy storage, conversion materials, and their devices are very useful. To prevent this energy crisis, many scientific research centres worldwide are already funded on new solutions and also improved in the existing energy sector. These problems can be solved in two ways. Firstly, energy can be efficiently converted from endless sources such as oxygen reduction reaction, solar power, and water to the applied forms such as electricity and fuel. For this purpose, the fuel cells, solar cells, and water divider catalysts (water splitting catalysis) are the most widely used materials. ²⁸³⁻²⁸⁵ Secondly, economic, environmentally friendly, practice and highperformance energy storage devices are required. Most of these properties are in renewable energy resources. In particular, lithium-based batteries such as lithium-ion, lithium-air, and lithium-sulphur are the most useful and promising devices for storage purposes. ^{286–288} Another important and efficient energy storage devices are supercapacitor capable of storing and eliciting energy in a few seconds.²⁸⁹

4.2.1. Energy Storage Applications of Chitosan-Based Nanocomposites

Electrochemical capacitors having high power and energy density are regularly used as a versatile solution for emergency power applications. Due to the physicochemical properties of amino polysaccharide CH, one of the bio-renewable resources is an important polymer for the production of electrochemical capacitors. The crystallinity number and the degree of deacetylation of repeating glucosamine units of the CH are other important properties. Hassan and his team ²⁹⁰ synthesized the organic-inorganic nanocomposite consisting of the organic

portion from CH and an inorganic portion from MnO₂ for electrochemical capacitors and energy storage applications. For electrochemical processes, manganese oxide compounds have attracted considerable interest as active electrode materials owing to their capacitance, low cost, abundance and environmentally friendly. MnO₂-CH (low and high molecular weight of the films) hybrid nanocomposite films had been synthesized by Hassan and his team with a onestep cathodic electrodeposition method on nickel foam substrate for the applications of electrochemical capacitors. It had been reported that MnO₂-CH hybrid nanocomposite films showed better specific capacitance and speed capability compared to MnO₂ films without CH and the highest capacitance value was determined as 424 F/g at 1 mA/cm². Nanocomposite film had shown a very stable capacitance feature by being charged and discharged over 400 cycles and only 3% of the capacity loss had been seen at 3 mA.cm⁻². Moreover, it had been found that CH enhanced the transition of electrons and ions and porous films with no crack were obtained. In another study, to obtain supercapacitor from bio-renewable sources, Pandiselvi et al. ²⁹¹ researched the supercapacitor properties of CH-ZnO/polyaniline (CH-ZnO/PANI) triple nanocomposite materials. CH-ZnO/polyaniline composites had been prepared after being doped with ZnO and CH in different proportions using a sample preparation method by in situ polymerizations of aniline. Chemical structure, morphology and surface properties of prepared CH-ZnO/PANI nanocomposites had been thoroughly characterized using SEM, EDXS, Fourier transform infrared spectroscopy, N₂ adsorption/desorption measurement, UV-Vis spectroscopy, TEM, X-ray diffractometric, and thermal analysis. The electrochemical properties of the CH-ZnO/PANI nanocomposites had been investigated using electrochemical impedance spectroscopy and cyclic voltammetry. In addition, galvanostatic charge-discharge measurements were also performed. The maximum specific capacitance of CH_{0.12}-ZnO_{2.5}/PANI had been measured as 587.15 F g^{-1} cm in the potential range of 0-0.8 V, at the capacitance value of 175 mA cm⁻² and the capacitance value of $CH_{0.12}$ -ZnO_{2.5}/PANI electrode had been

deteriorated about 80% after 1000 cycles. The specific capacitance and cyclic voltammetry performance of $CH_{0.12}$ -ZnO_{2.5}/PANI structure increased since CS macromolecule had acted as a bridge between ZnO nanocomposites and PANI.

In another study, Hosseini and Shahryari prepared high-performance supercapacitor based on CH/GO-MWCNT/polyaniline ternary nanocomposite (Figure 38) ²⁹². The specific capacitance of the obtained nanocomposite was obtained as 609.2 F/g (48.5 m.F/cm²) at a scan rate of 10 mV/s¹. Moreover, the prepared nanocomposite showed great stability with a reduction of only 4% after 500 times due to its porous structure and pseudocapacitive mechanism of charge-storage.



Figure 38. Preparation of the CS-based nanocomposites. Reproduced with permission from ref ²⁹². Copyright 2017 Elsevier.

In another study, Torvi et al. prepared a series of binary (CH/polyaniline) and ternary (CH/GR/polyaniline) nanocomposites by using *in-situ* polymerization of aniline (Figure 39). ²⁹³ They also characterized physicochemical properties of the nanocomposites with FTIR, XTD, TGA, and SEM. The electrical conductivity of CP₅ and CG₃P composite samples was recorded as 4.165×10^{-1} and 2.9745 S/cm, respectively. CG₃P composite exhibited more specific capacitance than PANI (495 F/g) and CP₅ (939 F/g). Moreover, it retained 88% of the initial capacitance after repeating 1000 cycles.



Figure 39. The synthesis steps of CGP nanocomposites by in-situ polymerization and their photographs. Reproduced with permission from ref ²⁹³. Copyright 2018 Elsevier.

In recent work, Suneetha and Vedhi prepared Zn doped iron oxide/GO/CH nanocomposite by simple solution mixing-evaporation method for supercapacitor application. ²⁹⁴ They investigated the structural properties and electrochemical behaviours of the synthesized nanocomposites. The obtained results showed that the Zn doped iron oxide/GO/CH

nanocomposite displayed good adherent, high thermal stability, and excellent synergistic super capacitive behaviours.

In another recent study, Yu et al. ²⁹⁵ prepared N-doped rGO/C@Silicon (Si) composite using bio-renewable CH for lithium-ion batteries to overcome the shortcomings of Si. Here, while CH was used as the donor of nitrogen and carbon, rGO/C was responsible for conductivity and supporting of the composite materials. N doping can efficiently increase the electrode interface and wettability of electrolyte. According to the obtained results, the proposed N-doped rGO/C@Si anode material exhibited higher cycling performance (1115.8 mAh g⁻¹ after 150 cycles at 420 mA g⁻¹) and an improved rate capability (1077.4 mAh g⁻¹ at 4200 mA g⁻¹).

4.2.2. Energy Storage Applications of Cellulose-Based Nanocomposites

Cellulose as a bio-renewable biopolymer is an inexhaustible resource of raw materials for numerous eco-friendly devices. ²⁹⁶ Cellulose-based composites have the potential to be widely used in coating, laminate, optical films, pharmaceutical, food packaging, and textile industries. ^{297–299} Cellulose is used in the design of flexible electronic materials due to its cheap, lightweight, relatively high thermostability, high absorption capacity, the variability of optical appearance and biocompatibility properties. ³⁰⁰ The chemical and morphological structure of these composite materials has the advantage of having very strong interaction with reinforcement particles, and therefore it is used much more compared to other bio-products. In the structure of bio-renewable-based nanocomposite materials, cellulose fibres, bacterial cellulose, nanocrystalline cellulose, and modified cellulose structures are used in electronic applications.

Xu et al. ³⁰¹ synthesized BC-based nanocomposites by using BC produced by some bacteria using D-glucose as a good carbon source. BC has some features such as high purity, biocompatibility, crystallinity good mechanical property, and the ability to keep high water.

Besides, the chemical structure of BC provides an important and suitable hydrophilic matrix to form nanoparticles in the presence of hydroxyl and ether. Therefore, Xu et al. prepared polypyrrole-BC (PPy/BC) nanocomposites for making a flexible supercapacitor electrode. Conductive PPy/BC nanocomposites had been produced *in situ* with the oxidative polymerization of pyrrole.

The FeCl₃ and BC were used as oxidizing agent and matrix, respectively. The prepared materials were structurally and morphologically characterized by ATR-FTIR and SEM. Besides, the conductivity and electrochemical properties were studied. In a controlled reaction, the electrical conductivity of the prepared PPy/BC nanocomposite was measured as 3.9 Scm⁻¹. To explore the electrochemical property of PPy/BC structure, PPy/BC containing 106 wt.% of PPy had been used as a flexible electrode and cyclic voltammetry curves had been recorded at different scan rates. PPy/BC nanocomposites had shown a stable electrochemical behaviour across a wide range of potential ranging from -0.9 to 0.9 V. At the current density of 0.16 A g⁻¹, the maximum discharge capacity of PPy/BC membrane was measured as 101.9 mAh g⁻¹. Besides, significant degradation in the electrochemical performance of the obtained PPy/BC membrane electrode had not been seen as a result of measurements. Based on all these results, this nanocomposite membrane can be used as a flexible and wearable energy storage electrode.

Liew et al. ³⁰² used cellulose nanocrystals (CNXLs), whose average size was about 6×6×150 nm, extracted from cotton as a bio-renewable resource in electrochemical applications. For this purpose, polyaniline-cellulose (PANI/CNXL) and poly (ethylene dioxythiophene)-cellulose (PEDOT/CNXL) nanocomposites had been synthesized. To determine the electrochemical properties, both synthesized nanocomposite structures had been characterized using different electrochemical techniques such as CV, electrochemical impedance spectroscopy, and galvanostatic charge/discharge measurement. PANI/CNXL and

PEDOT/CNXL nanocomposites showed higher capacitance and higher charge-discharge rates compared to cellulose-free electrodes.

Kafy et al. ³⁰³ used cellulose as a bio-renewable resource. They designed cellulose modified GO nanocomposites based on energy and memory storage material. Nanocomposites had been prepared with a simple casting/solvent evaporation procedure and were structurally characterized. The dielectric and ferroelectric properties of nanocomposites including bio-renewable resources had been controlled with the changes in temperature and voltage. These features can benefit from energy and memory storage areas. The study team had reported that the cellulose modified GO nanocomposites were quite suitable materials for environment-friendly energy storage devices.

Yu et al. prepared sodium carboxymethyl cellulose/collagen-based magnetic composite aerogel that was doped with N to develop an electrochemical supercapacitor (Figure 40). ³⁰⁴ The specific surface area, saturation magnetization and pore-volume for the selected sample were determined as 589.6 m²/g, 11.38 emu/g, and 0.27 cm³/g respectively. In a 6 M KOH electrolyte, the sample exhibited a specific capacitance of 185.3 F/g at the current density of 0.5 A/g. Furthermore, after 5000 charges/discharge cycles, it maintained 90.2% of the initial specific capacitance. All results indicate that the prepared sodium carboxymethyl cellulose/collagen composite based aerogel can be used as a supercapacitor for application due to the ease-to-prepare and low-cost.



Figure 40. The preparation methods of magnetic N-doped carbon aerogel from sodium carboxymethyl cellulose/collagen composite aerogel. Reproduced with permission from ref ³⁰⁴. Copyright 2018 Elsevier.

In another work, Li et al. synthesized core-shell nano fibrillated cellulose/ polypyrrole (PPy)/tubular graphitic carbon nitride composite film by using a simple polymerization method (Figure 41). 305 The electrochemical performances of the obtained electrode were investigated in detail and these electrodes showed high capacitance of 2.53 F/cm² at the current density of 5 mA/cm², equivalent to a specific capacitance of 158 F/g.



Figure 41. Schematic preparation steps of core-shell NFC/PPy/TGCN composite film and their SEM images. Reproduced with permission from ref ³⁰⁵. Copyright 2019 Elsevier.

In a similar study, a fibre composite electrode of PPy@cobalt oxyhydroxide/cellulose was prepared by the liquid-phase reduction method and characterized by using FTIR, SEM and XPS techniques. Besides, this electrode was compared with previously reported conductive polymers electrodes. The composite electrode showed outstanding electrochemical properties with high specific capacitance as well as capacitance retention. A maximum specific capacitance (571.3 F g⁻¹) was obtained at 0.25 A g⁻¹. Besides, the specific capacitance of the composite electrode does not show a significant loss, indicating high cycle stability (93.02% after 1000 cycles). Based on all results, the authors stated that these outstanding electrochemical

properties can be due to the presence of cobalt oxyhydroxide, which limits volumetric polypro replacement in the electrochemical redox process .³⁰⁶

4.2.3. Energy Storage Applications of Other Bio-renewable Resource-Based Nanocomposites

Today, the extinction of fossil fuel-based energy resources has increased and so is the importance of fuel cell applications. In particular, the design and energy efficiency of batteries that fuel cell-powered cars can use has been studied quite often in the transportation and automotive industries. Hydrogen storage materials have begun to attract interest in the production of fuel cell vehicles working with H₂ as a transportation alternative in recent years. However, the most important innovative approaches in this field are to design membranes which may pose a higher potential difference and new materials for storing hydrogen as fuel in fuel cells. In hydrogen storage applications, metal alloys such as Mg₂Ni, TiFe, LaNi₅, and ZrMn₂ are located in nanocomposite structures. Lei et al. ³⁰⁷ synthesized Mg-Ni/C nanocomposites for storing H₂. They used Vitamin C, which is a bio-renewable resource, as carbon source and Mg₂Ni and Mg-Ni₂ as metal alloys. The prepared structures had been characterized by several analysis techniques. XRD results had shown the formation of nanocomposite forms of Mg₂Ni and Mg-Ni₂ alloys with C. As a result, it had been reported by the study team that Mg-Ni/C nanocomposites would be the new nanocomposite materials in applications such as H₂ storage, electrocatalysts, optical switching, and gas adsorption.

Graphene/silk fibroin-based carbon nanocomposites (GCN-S) were prepared by Wang et al. ³⁰⁸ to develop high-performance supercapacitor. The obtained GCN-S materials had shown a high specific area, very good electrochemical performance, multi porous structure, and high electrical conductivity. For example, the specific capacitance value of GCN-S-0.5 material at the current density of 0.5 A/g had been measured as 256 F/g. Furthermore, when the current

density increased to 50 A/g, the material had shown specific capacitance property at 188 F/g. Furthermore, at the charge-discharge rate of 5 A/g after 10000 cycles, the capacitance retention rate of GCN-S-0.5 had shown such a high rate of electrochemical stability as 96.3%. These study results show that GCN-S material as a new nanocomposite could be used for supercapacitor applications due to its high performance and cheapness.

Sun et al. prepared hybrid supercapacitor materials by bio-renewable corn silks based on porous carbon and redox-active electrolytes (Figure 42). In this study, the prepared material showed high specific surface areas of 1764.8 m²/g, the large specific capacitance of 358.0 F/g at 0.5 A/g, 67% of the capacitance retention at 20 A/g, and retained 99.2% of initial specific capacitance after even 5000 cycles. ³⁰⁹



Figure 42. The general structure and working mechanism of the hybrid symmetric supercapacitor by bio-renewable corn silks based porous carbon and redox-active electrolytes. Reproduced with permission from ref ³⁰⁹. Copyright 2018 Elsevier.

In a study of Bolisetty et al.³¹⁰, they first developed amyloid fibrils, an inorganic oxide (TiO₂), and π -conjugated polymers (polythiophene (P3HT)) based hybrid material capable of serving in heterojunction photovoltaic solar cell. To synthesize TiO₂--coated amyloid hybrid nanowires, protein fibrils act as templates to produce closely packed TiO₂ nanoparticles on the surface of the fibrils, while titanium (IV) bis (ammonium lactate) dihydroxide was used as a precursor. TiO₂ nanowires were found to behave as an electron acceptor, while P3HT as an electron donor. In this way, amyloid-TiO₂ hybrid nanowires can serve in photovoltaic devices. The C-V features of these photovoltaic devices displayed an outstanding fill factor of 0.53, the power conversion efficiency of 0.72% and the photovoltaic current density of 3.97 mA.cm⁻². The obtained results revealed that these photovoltaic devices may play a major role in amyloidbased templates in organic electronics, donor-acceptor devices and hybrid solar cells.

All these studies indicated that high technology products such as sensors, biosensors, batteries, energy storage systems, supercapacitor or solar panels can be prepared and applied from biorenewable sources. In these areas, bio-renewable sources can be used as a film, foam, bulk material or coating material. Bio-renewable species have great potential in distributing or attaching important structures such as nanoparticles to a particular surface. Again, in sensor applications, they are of great importance in the bonding of electrocatalytic conductor types to the electrode surface as a selective film or membrane.

Samples of energy storage applications of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources are also given in Table 6 as summary information.

Composite	Specific capacitance	Cycling performance	Density	Ref.
MnO ₂ -CH	424 F g ⁻¹	400 (97%)	1 mA cm^{-2}	290
CH-ZnO/PANI	587.15 F g^{-1}	1000 (80%)	175 mA cm ⁻²	291
CH/GM/PANI	609.2 F g^{-1}	500 (96%)	5 A g ⁻¹	292
CH-graphene-PANI	1519 F g ⁻¹	1000 (88%)	0.1 A g^{-1}	293
PPy/BC	459.5 F g ⁻¹	100	0.16 A g ⁻¹	301
N-doped rGO/C@Si	1077.4 mAh g ⁻¹	150	4200 mA g^{-1}	295
N-doped carbon aerogels	185.3 F g ⁻¹	5000 (90.2%)	$0.5 \mathrm{~A~g^{-1}}$	304
NFC/PPy/TGCN	158 F g^{-1}	2000 (~91%)	5 mA cm^{-2}	305
PPy@cobalt oxyhydroxide/cellulose	571.3 F g^{-1}	1000 (93.02%)	0.2 A g^{-1}	306
Silk fibroin and graphene-based carbon (GCN-S)	256 F g^{-1}	10.000 (96.3%)	0.5 A g^{-1}	308

Table 7. Energy storage applications of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources

5. Chemistry, Structure and Packing Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources

Plastics are the most widely used packaging materials because of their superior mechanical, thermal and physical behaviors. The packaging is one of the largest plastics markets in Europe. The main advantages of plastics are that they are cheap, lightweight, have high transparency, good processability and clarity, good barrier properties in terms of water vapor and gases compared to other packaging materials. However, the vast usage of plastics comes with environmental problems. The plastic packaging industry consists mainly of disposable products and is usually produced by oil. Therefore, it is necessary to use more environmentally friendly products to decrease the negative impacts on our environment and to make the packaging industry green.

Green packaging includes reusable packaging, degradable packaging, and packaging with recycled content. Polymer nanocomposites have great advantages because of their physical, thermal, mechanical and processing properties. Polymer nanocomposites used in packaging technology both improve the properties of polymer materials and provide additional functions for packaging. Nanoclay is one of the most used and researched nanofillers among polymer nanocomposites. Besides, nanoclay improves the mechanical and thermal properties of the material, the barrier properties to chemical vapors, moisture, gases, flavors, and solvents. The inclusion of nanoclay to the high-density polyethylene (HDPE)/rice husk improved its tensile strength, storage modulus, tensile modulus and loss modulus. ³¹¹ Compositions of nanoclay containing 2 phc (parts per hundred content) were found to have the best morphology as nested

structures among other composites. Moreover, crystallization temperature, crystallinity level and crystallization enthalpy of HDPE/rice husk increased because of nanoclay. The author proposed that a fully dispersed morphology could be achieved by increasing the compatibilizer load.

The mechanical properties and water absorption properties of nano silicon carbide-filled recycled cellulose **fibre** (RCF)-reinforced epoxy econanocomposites had been reported by Alamri and Low. ³¹²

It is believed that nanofillers high aspect ratio increases the barrier performance of the materials by generating tortuous ways to diffuse into the composites of water molecules. The maximum water uptake of RCF/epoxy composites containing 5% w n-SiC decreased with 47.5% compared with without filling.

Bio-renewable resources based polymers such as vegetable oils and fats, corn starch or pea starch are commonly called biopolymers. Furthermore, some biopolymers may also be produced as biodegradable, which may be degraded by other living organisms or bacteria. Most biodegradable polymers are generally designed to be compostable. PLA, S, and polyhydroxy butyrate (PHB) are typical biodegradable biopolymers from bio-renewable resources. There are many reports about nanofillers reinforced biopolymers. Although pure biopolymers have high hydrophilicity, poor processability, and poor mechanical properties, nanofillers reinforcements increase the mechanical and thermal properties of the material. ^{313–315} Wu et al. ³¹⁶ showed the graft polymerization of PLA on the surface of nano-SiO₂ and investigated the properties of PLA/PLA-grafted SiO₂ nanocomposites. It was observed that PLA-grafted SiO₂ could hasten the crystallization rate and enhance the PLA's degree of crystallinity. The shear rheology test demonstrated that PLA/PLA-grafted SiO₂ nanocomposites displayed the typical homopolymer-like behavior in the final structure, even in the low-frequency range, even at a SiO₂ content of

5% by weight of PLA grafted. Li and Sun ³¹⁷ fabricated PLA/g-MgO nanocomposites via thermal compounding of g-MgO/MgO nanoparticles and PLA. It was observed that PLA/g-MgO nanocomposites showed improved thermal stability and higher tensile strength in comparison to the pristine PLA and PLA/g-MgO nanocomposites. Polymer foams are commonly used since they are very significant as packaging materials. They protect the products with controllable performance. Generally, important properties of polymer foams are dimensional and thermal stability, surface quality, and mechanical properties including force and shock absorption. The integration of the nanofillers into the polymer foam improves the performance of the foams for the packaging materials.

In another study, Sanchez-Garcia et al. ³¹⁸ determined the association between barrier and morphology properties of PHB/clay nanocomposites. They found that the nanoclay exhibited a great dispersion in the PHB matrix owing to the clay modification. Besides, they reported that the high dispersion caused improvement in the water and oxygen barrier properties of PHB/clay nanocomposites.

In 2015, Salaberria et al. ³¹⁹ explored the effect of nanochitins of different morphology on the functional and structural properties of thermoplastic starch-based films manufactured by the evaporation casting method. The barrier properties of the S matrix were significantly influenced by both the chitin nanocrystals (CHNC) and the chitin nanofibres (CHNF) and their quantity. For nanocomposite films prepared with CHNC and CHNF, the oxygen permeability of the thermoplastic starch-based matrix decreased by 30% and 25%, respectively. Considering the water vapor permeability, water vapor transmission values were reduced in the presence of up to 10 percent by weight of the CHNC. Poor barrier properties were founded beyond this concentration. There are two reasons for these findings. One is the presence of excess residual amino groups on the surface of the chitin nanomaterials, which exhibit greater affinity for water than hydroxyl groups. Another reason is the occurrence of agglomeration events induced by an

excessive amount of CHNC or CHNF content. The effective chitin in the matrix can reduce the amount of nano-injection, which indicates the barrier effects (Figure 43).



Figure 43. A. Effect of starch film, and CHNC and CHNF nanocomposite films on the growth of *Aspergillus niger*; B. Fungal Growth Inhibition (FGI, %) on the growth of *Aspergillus niger* on S/CHNC and S/CHNF for 10 and 20% of chitin nano-objects (error bar corresponds to standard deviation: SD, n=3); and C. Pictures of the agar plates containing *Aspergillus niger* in contact with the square films of S, CHNC10, and CHNF10 (7 days for contact time). Reproduced with permission from ref ³¹⁹. Copyright 2015 Elsevier.

Nafchi et al. ³²⁰ produced bovine gelatin and sago starch nanocomposite films containing ZnO nanorods (1–5 wt.%). All the prepared films were plasticized with 40% (w/w of total solid) of a combination of sorbitol/glycerol (3:1 ratio). The barrier properties of the biopolymer matrix were improved due to the ZnO nanorods. The oxygen permeability of starch and gelatin films containing 5% of ZnO nanorods were reduced by 40% and 55%, respectively.

Bhat and his colleagues 321 improved the poor barrier and mechanical properties of starch-based films with the incorporation of different weight percent of lignin (1–5 wt.%). A significant reduction (~35%) was observed in the water vapor permeability of composite materials containing 1% or 2% by weight. The authors reported that this reduction was due to the compatibility and hydrophobicity of the combinations of starch and lignin, which cause the water vapor of the diffusion to fall between the films.

Dash and Swain ³²² had used nano silicon carbide up to ten weight percent loadings for preparing starch-based composites. The oxygen permeability of the biopolymer matrix containing the highest nanofillers concentration was found to be reduced by 3.5 times (Figure 44).



Figure 44. FE-SEM images of S, silicon carbide (SiC) and S/SiC bionanocomposite at a different weight percent of SiC (SSC1, SSC2, SSC5, SSC8 and SSC10). Reproduced with permission from ref ³²². Copyright 2013 Elsevier.

Dash et al. ³²³ produced albumin bovine based bionanocomposite containing different amounts of organoclay (1, 2, 5, 8 and 10 percent of weight). The oxygen barrier properties of the resulting nanocomposites were determined and the reduction in the permeability of the sample containing 10% by weight of clay was observed. This reduction is due to the intercalation of albumin bovine into the clay.

In 2012, Luduena et al. ³²⁴ prepared PCL-based biodegradable composites containing different types and amount of lignocellulosic for packaging applications and examined the effects of these fillers on the morphology, mechanical, crystallization behavior and thermal, and barrier properties. Moreover, the barrier properties of the prepared materials were investigated. However, in contrast to the type of lignocellulosic filler used, it was found that the water vapor permeability values increased by increasing the filler amount due to the tendency of the fillers to agglomerate.

Follain et al. ³²⁵ fabricated PCL/CNC based nanocomposite films via a film casting/evaporation technique. The effect of CNC (3-12%) by weight on the barrier properties of PCL was evaluated using water absorption/passing processes. According to the obtained results, the rod-like morphology of the CNC reduces water permeability as it extends the diffusion path of the molecules emitted due to tortuosity structure.

Swain et al. ³²⁶ prepared a series of soy protein nanocomposites containing Cloisite 30B (one to eight percent by weight) via a solution intercalation technique. In their study, it was found that oxygen permeability of nanocomposite samples containing 8% nanoclay decreased 6-fold compared with unfilled one.

In 2011, Rhim and his colleagues ³²⁷ fabricated agar-based nanocomposite films containing several nanoclay samples (Cloisite 20A, Cloisite Na⁺, and Cloisite 30B) through a solvent casting technique. The water vapor permeability of the fabricated materials was found to be dependent on the kind of nanoclay in comparison to the unloaded agar films. For instance, the nanocomposite films containing Cloisite Na⁺ indicated low water vapor permeability, unlike the films that contain the organically modified nanoclay because of the surface hydrophilicity/hydrophobicity of the used clays.

Gonzalez and Alvarez Igarzabal ³²⁸ prepared starch nanocrystals reinforced soy protein isolate films in which the amounts of nanocrystals was varied from 0, 2, 5, 10, 20 and 40 w/w using a facile casting technique. The inclusion of the nanofillers has caused swelling of the protein film as well as lowering the water vapor permeability (Figure 45).



Figure 45. The macroscopic aspect of soy protein isolates films with 0, 2, 5, 10, 20 and 40% w/w of starch nanocrystals. Reproduced with permission from ref 328 . Copyright 2015 Elsevier.

Kumar et al. ³²⁹ used the melt extrusion method to obtain bionanocomposite films containing soy protein isolate and different contents of montmorillonite, Cloisite Na⁺ (5-15 wt.%). The nanoclay was used to significantly reduce the water vapor permeability. Only, for the film containing 5 wt.% of MMT, the water vapor permeability was reduced by 22.1%. "This decrease was because of the creation of a tortuous pathway for water vapor to diffuse out of the bionanocomposite". Besides, the other reasons could be the homogeneous distribution and high aspect ratio of the employed nanoclay.

In 2013, Abdollahi et al. ³³⁰ applied a solvent casting method for production of alginate-based nanocomposites containing montmorillonite and cellulose nanoparticles. It was found that both nanofillers having concentrations ranging from 1 to 5 wt.% significantly changed the water

solubility. The water vapor permeability's of the prepared material was reduced by 18% and 20% in alginate/cellulose and alginate/montmorillonite nanoparticles, respectively.

Kochumalayil et al. ³³¹ produced bionanocomposite coatings based on montmorillonite (Cloisite Na⁺) and xyloglucan also known as galactoxyloglucan. They used continuous waterbased processing method and obtained coatings at different ratios of 4.3, 8.9 and 20 wt.% (Figure 46). It was revealed that the biopolymer matrix containing the highest nano-layer is very efficient for oxygen permeability, which makes the bio-nano compound a promising material in the packaging industry rather than aluminum gas barrier films (Figure 47).



Figure 46. The preparation procedures of xyloglucan (XG)/MTM nanocomposite film. Reproduced with permission from ref ³³¹. Copyright 2013 American Chemical Society.



Figure 47. (A) The cross-sectional SEM micrograph of a nanocomposite containing 10 wt% MTM in xyloglucan (XG) matrix and X-ray diffractograms of a nanocomposite film containing 20 wt% MTM in parallel (B) and perpendicular (C) to the film surface. (D) XRD pattern of the XG-MTM hybrid material. (E) A TEM micrograph of the cross-section of XG-MTM nanocomposite containing 10 wt% of MTM showing the silicate layers as alternating dark lines. (F) The schematic image of an XG chain fragment modeled as a cylinder. R is the XG radius. Reproduced with permission from ref ³³¹. Copyright 2013 American Chemical Society.

The low-cost packaging materials are no longer having the most popular advantages concerning the deterioration of the environment and fast-depleting resources. Polymer nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources have valuable functions and advanced physical, thermal and mechanical properties. Therefore, biodegradable polymers are an excellent candidate as a matrix in green packaging.

Samples of the packing applications of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources are also given in Table 8 as a piece of summary information.

Composite	Barrier	Density, ρ	Permeability	Tensile strength	Ref.
	property	(g/cm ³)		(MPa)	
PHB/clay nanocomposites	O2	ρ _{PHB} : 1.25 ρ _{PCL} : 1.1	PHB-Blend: $4.2 \pm 0.0005 e^{-19}$ 1% Nanoter PHB-Blend: $3.8 \pm 0.3 e^{-19}$ 4% Nanoter PHB-Blend: $2.4 \pm 0.3 e^{-19}$ PHB: $2.3 \pm 0.002 e^{-19}$ 4% Nanoter PHB: $1.8\pm0.3 e^{-19}$ PCL: $58.0 e^{-19}$ PET: $3.3 e^{-19}$ [cc.µm/(m ² .day) kPa ⁻¹] (at 24°C, 0% RH)	-	318
S matrix with CHNC or CHNF	O ₂	-	S/CHNC: 30% decreased compared to S film S/CHNF: 25% decreased compared to S film (at 23 ± 2°C, 75% RH)	S/5 wt% CHNC: 2 S/20 wt% CHNC: 3	319
Sago starch and bovine gelatin bionanocomposite films containing ZnO nanorods (1–5 wt.%)	O ₂	-	Sago starch 0% ZnO nanorods: 79.88 ± 2.44 1% ZnO nanorods: 68.72 ± 1.28 2% ZnO nanorods: 56.98 ± 1.02 3% ZnO nanorods: 53.77 ± 0.50 5% ZnO nanorods: 48.20 ± 0.81 Gelatin	Sago starch 0% ZnO nanorods: 3.47 ± 0.34 1% ZnO nanorods: 5.19 ± 0.49 2% ZnO nanorods: 5.31 ± 0.32 3% ZnO nanorods: 5.45 ± 0.25 5% ZnO nanorods: 6.62 ± 1.02 Gelatin	320

Table 8. Packing applications of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources

			0% ZnO nanorods: 226.18 ± 7.92 1% ZnO nanorods: 207.94 ± 7.34 2% ZnO nanorods: 154.54 ± 3.75 3% ZnO nanorods: 136.31 ± 3.60 5% ZnO nanorods: 104.59 ± 6.14 $[cm^3.\mu m/ (m^2 day.atm)]$ (at 25°C, 50% RH with 21% O ₂)	0% ZnO nanorods: 15.63 ± 0.74 1% ZnO nanorods: 17.07 ± 0.69 2% ZnO nanorods: 18.71 ± 0.85 3% ZnO nanorods: 19.39 ± 1.09 5% ZnO nanorods: 21.13 ± 1.52	
Starch-based films with the incorporation of different weight percent of lignin as 1–5 wt.%	Water vapor	-	Control film: 0.017 1 wt% isolated lignin films: 0.011 ± 0.001 2 wt% isolated lignin films: 0.012 ± 0.001 (g.mm/m ² . h. kPa) (at 30°C, 58% RH)	 1 wt% isolated lignin films: 3.48 ± 0.15 2 wt% isolated lignin films: 3.76 ± 0.40 3 wt% isolated lignin films: 4.20 ± 0.42 	321
PCL-based biodegradable composites containing different types and amount lignocellulose	Water vapor	ρ _{PCL} : 1.2	PCL: 1.6 ± 0.1 5 wt% cotton: 2.0 ± 0.1 15 wt% cotton: 2.3 ± 0.1 5 wt% cellulose: 1.6 ± 0.1 15 wt% cellulose: 1.7 ± 0.2 5 wt% hydrolyzed-cellulose: 1.9 ± 0.2 15 wt% hydrolyzed-cellulose: 2.0 ± 0.4 (x 10 ⁻¹¹ g.m/m ² . s. Pa) (at 25°C, 68% RH)	PCL: 19.0 ± 0.5 5 wt% cotton: 16.2 ± 0.3 15 wt% cotton: 14.2 ± 0.3 5 wt% cellulose: 19.0 ± 0.7 15 wt% cellulose: 19.4 ± 0.9 5 wt% hydrolyzed- cellulose: 17.6 ± 0.5 15 wt% hydrolyzed- cellulose: 12.1 ± 0.7	324
Agar-based nanocomposite films containing several nanoclay samples	Water vapor	-	Neat agar film: 2.22 ± 0.19 Agar/Cloisite Na ⁺ : 1.68 ± 0.24 Agar/Cloisite 30B: 2.31 ± 0.14 Agar/Cloisite 20A: 2.62 ± 0.18 (x 10^{-9} g.m/m ² . s. Pa) (at 25° C, 50% RH)	Neat agar film: 29.7 \pm 1.7 Agar/Cloisite Na ⁺ : 35.0 \pm 2.1 Agar/Cloisite 30B: 28.6 \pm 1.0 Agar/Cloisite 20A: 29.3 \pm 0.9	327

Soy protein isolate (SPI) films with starch nanocrystals	Water vapor	-	SPI: 4.3 ± 0.2 SPI-5% starch nanocrystals: 4.8 ± 0.3 SPI-20% starch nanocrystals: 3.9 ± 0.1 SPI-40% starch nanocrystals: 3.57 ± 0.08 (x 10 ⁻¹⁰ g/m.s. Pa) (at 25°C, 65% RH)	SPI: 1.10 ± 0.20 SPI-2% starch nanocrystals: $1.42 \pm$ 0.22 SPI-5% starch nanocrystals: $1.34 \pm$ 0.07 SPI-10% starch nanocrystals: $1.79 \pm$ 0.27 SPI-20% starch nanocrystals: $2.61 \pm$ 0.26 SPI-40% starch nanocrystals: $5.08 \pm$ 0.48	328
Bionanocomposite films containing soy protein isolate (SPI) and different contents from 5 to 15 wt % of montmorillonite, Cloisite Na ⁺	Water vapor	ρ _{MTM} : 2.86	SPI: 3.80 ± 0.11 SPI-5% MMT: 2.96 ± 0.10 SPI-10% MMT: 2.49 ± 0.08 SPI-15% MMT: 2.17 ± 0.06 (g.mm/m ² . h. kPa) (at 22°C, 65% RH)	SPI: 2.26 ± 0.48 SPI-5% MMT: 6.28 ± 0.88 SPI-10% MMT: 12.62 ± 0.54 SPI-15% MMT: 15.60 ± 1.69	329
Alginate-based nanocomposites containing 5% montmorillonite and cellulose nanoparticles	Water vapor	0.600	Control film: $1.99 \pm 0.19 \times 10^{-10} \text{ g/m}^2$. s. Pa Nanocomposite with 5% MMT: ~20% decrease Nanocomposite with cellulose nanoparticles: ~18% decrease (at 20°C, 1.5% RH)	18.03	330
Bionanocomposite coatings based on montmorillonite (Cloisite Na ⁺) and xyloglucan	O ₂	ρ _{XG} : 1.5 ρ _{MTM} : 2.86	XG: 0.45 ± 0.00 XG + 4.3 wt % MMT: 0.18 ± 0.009 XG + 8.9 wt % MMT: 0.04 ± 0.001 XG + 20 wt % MMT: 0.05 ± 0.000	XG: 92.9 ± 5.8 XG/1 wt % MTM: 89.1 ± 6.9 XG/2.5 wt % MTM: 96.2 ± 6.7 XG/5 wt % MTM: 103.9 ± 2.7	331

[cc.µm/(m².day) kPa⁻¹] (at 23°C, 50% RH) XG/10 wt % MTM: 114.3 ± 6.3 XG/20 wt % MTM: 123 ± 7.4 (at 23°C, 50% RH)

6. Chemistry, Structure and Optical Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources

Recently, nanocomposites have received a greater interest because they have shown a pronounced potential to be used in several applications ranging from light-emitting diodes, solar cells, light filters, light-stable color filters, optical sensors, optic data communications, and optical data storage to name a few. Since nanocomposites are prepared from two or more different materials that have distinct mechanical, electronic and chemical characteristics, they have particular importance in selected applications. ³³² Nanocomposite structures provide a new method to improve the workability and stability of materials possessing interesting optical properties. ³³³ Recently, bio-nano composites having a low cost, renewable, biocompatible and environmental (green) processes have seen the upsurge in research and industry. Different kinds of nanocomposite structures have been synthesized using bio-renewable resources such as CH, cellulose, lignin, gelatin as the main ingredient or matrix materials and the optical properties of these structures have been examined in detail.

CH, consisting of *N*-acetyl-D-glucosamine and β -(1-4)-D-glucosamine, is the most popular candidate used in optical applications because of being a natural, biocompatible, biodegradable and non-toxic polymer, and capable of forming a superior film. ³³⁴ Furthermore, since CH has both hydroxyl and amino functional groups, bioconjugates can be prepared with various chemical modifications of proteins, DNA and other polysaccharides. ^{335–337} In nanocomposite structures, CH is widely used in several biotechnological applications due to its above-mentioned characteristics.

Bozanic et al. ³³⁸ prepared Ag-CH nanocomposites using in situ green chemistry methods and D-glucose as reducing agent from Ag-CH complexes. The synthesized nanocomposites had been characterized with TEM, UV-Vis, FT-IR, and photoluminescence spectroscopy and the optical properties were examined in detail. Especially, Ag-CH complexes doped with different amounts of Ag had shown different electronic properties due to the complexation of silver with CH chains. In particular, three different peaks had been seen from the UV spectrum of these complexes. The peaks seen at 376, 467 and 562 nm had grown with the increasing amount of Ag in a complex structure. The absorption band at 376 nm had taken place with an energy of 3.3 eV, whereas the absorption at 467 nm had required 2.7 eV energy. Finally, the absorption band observed at 562 nm was due to the formation of individual silver nanoparticles. This variable spectrum of the obtained optical film at 390 nm had led to show fluorescence properties with a strong emission band. In conclusion, this study had demonstrated that AgNPs such as Ag, AgO, AgI, and Ag₂S have important material characteristics in the preparation of semiconductor devices.

Mironenko et al. ³³⁹ used CH-Ag particles in electronic systems as a waveguide. They showed that the raised refractive index with increasing silver content in the film structure of such nanocomposites might be used as suitable surfaces in the preparation of many optical sensors.

In the preparation of significant optical materials, another important ingredient derived from bio-renewable resources is herbal and BC using as matrix material. Cellulose, which is a bio-renewable resource, is quite important in the design of optical materials as a matrix and a reinforcement. They had been used especially in semiconductors such as CdS-ZnS, ZnS-CdS, and CdS, ZnS, and this type of photoluminescence specific reinforcements into the cellulose matrix.

Hassan et al. ³⁴⁰ achieved strong optical emission peaks at 450 nm using semiconductors obtained from CdS doped cellulose nanocomposites. Besides, they had shown that many optical materials could be prepared with the strong dielectric property provided in such nanocomposites.

In another similar study, Zheng et al. ³⁴¹ achieved optical materials having a semiconductor feature with the application of ZnS nanoparticles into BC. These materials had shown two emission peaks at 424 and 468 nm and had been proposed as nanocomposite having strong fluorescence properties.

Cellulose matrix nanocomposites had been preferred in certain medical and sensor applications not only as semiconductors but also as transparent films due to their low environmental impact and biodegradability. Hambardzumyan et al. ³⁴² achieved 100% permeable surfaces prepared in different rates of cellulose-lignin films. They showed that both the transparent and the antireflective properties of the material were achieved in the coating of these surfaces with diverse layers especially in the ranges from 300 to 800 nm.

Cellulose **fibre**s had also been used in optical materials as a reinforcement obtained directly from natural resources (Figure 48). Nanocrystalline doped into the polyurethane matrix had increased the mechanical properties of cellulose polyurethane structure but it had caused a reduction in optical properties. ³⁴³ Although the nanocomposites prepared with cellulose doping in polylactic acid had shown 84% of optical transmittance, they exhibited very high mechanical properties. In the study, Herrera et al. ³⁴⁴ reported that mechanical strength would be increased without compromising the optical properties of polylactic acid.


Figure 48. Transmittance (%) levels and transparency of the films. Reproduced with permission from ref 344 . Copyright 2015 Elsevier.

When organo-modified clay was doped into PLA (a bio-renewable and environmentally friendly resource, derived from lactic acid), the optical transmission of the system was found to be around 85% despite the 7% of clay inclusion. Clay doped nanoparticles have shown the stable surface morphology and surface reflectance, however, the optical transmittance of the film was found to be affected. ³⁴⁵

All of these results indicate that many materials and surface films which can be used in biomedical, electronic and optoelectronic systems can be obtained with doping of nanoparticles having different features from renewable natural resources. Although such films have low mechanical and chemical stabilities, they are capable of competing with petrol-based polymers because of their optical, electrical, and dielectric properties. Using reinforcements and pure nanoparticles to strengthen the weak characteristics or to impart new properties of the natural polymers, carbon nanotube metal oxides are highly popular in contemporary daily applications. ³⁴⁶

In the study of Mahmoud et al. ³⁴⁷ transparent dressing films for wounds that can be used in cosmetics and biomedical applications had been prepared from an easily deformable renewable resource such as gelatin with silver particles doped into the pure gelatin. With increasing the amount of silver up to 1%, properties such as refractive index and dielectric constant had been examined. In these films, the gelatin structure had been reinforced and an antibacterial surface had been obtained in wound healing dressings.

7. Chemistry, Structure and Automotive Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources

Nanocomposites originated from bio-renewable resources have widely gained importance in automotive applications as sustainable alternatives to petroleum-based polymers. Especially, petroleum-based polymers have lots of environmental problems such as increasing greenhouse gas emissions, and water pollution as well as exceeding the current capacity of solid-waste management systems. Since bio-renewable nanocomposites are biodegradable, the replacement of petroleum-based nanomaterials with these bio-renewable nanocomposites for example in the usage of disposable products has some advantages such as reducing not only solid waste but also release of carbon dioxide into the atmosphere. Nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources are neutral in terms of carbon releasing because their lives finish via biodegradation with the carbon cycle, which means that the release of carbon dioxide related to these products is taken by plants and given back to the atmosphere as continuously occurring natural phenomena. ³⁴⁸ Besides, the automotive industry is an extremely user of bulk materials such as steel and plastics during the production of a vehicle. In the near future, most cars manufactured

from nanocomposites using bio-renewable resources will be a good resource of recyclable materials. Approximately eighty percent of a car can be recycled today. ³⁴⁹ Unfortunately, heavy composites used today in the structure of any vehicle importantly influence the fuel consumption as well. Thus, researchers in the automotive industry are trying to increase this ratio and improve lightweight and strong nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources day-by-day.

In general, both natural fibre and biopolymers from green nanocomposites lower processability and mechanical properties and increase some characteristics such as hydrophilicity and moisture absorbance. Particularly in the exterior automotive components, these disadvantages restrict their applications. To be applied in the automotive industry, researches and developments are needed to overcome these problems in the composites, which are ecological, lightweight and economic. To enhance the performance of these nanocomposites, use of nanofillers is among one of the best approaches. Chieng et al. ³⁵⁰ investigated the elongation and tensile strength at the disruption of epoxidized palm oil/poly(lactic acid) and found an increase of 60.6 %, and 26.5 % with 0.3 wt.% of nano-graphene, respectively. In another study, Nemati et al. ³⁵¹ researched wood-plastic composites obtained from nanoclay, wood flour and recycled polystyrene in terms of the mechanical properties. The lignin and natural fibre nanocomposites contained in either organically modified nanoclay or sepiolite were prepared ³⁵². It had been observed that the addition of 2-5 % w/w of sepiolite did not affect the thermal and mechanical properties of the natural fibre nanocomposites. On the other hand, nanoclaybased nanocomposites were found to show enhanced properties.

To prevent the dispersion of volatile products from thermal degradation of composites, the nanoscale clay layers have been used as an inert barrier. For example, nanocomposites were prepared from natural fibres, lignin and natural reinforcements. The prepared nanocomposites had demonstrated similar mechanical properties related to those of polyamides. However, in automotive applications, the fire resistance and thermal stability of the nanocomposites should be further improved. Principally, the addition of suitable compatibilizer is estimated to improve the miscibility of clay nanofillers and composite matrix. In the near future, these nanocomposites may replace petroleum-based polymer plastics in automotive applications.

8. Chemistry, Structure and Flame Retardancy Applications of Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources

Today, technology is rapidly increasing along with the need for increasing the performance of existing materials in human daily life. Therefore, it is very important to develop a new generation of high-performance materials. Since high-performance materials typically have strong secondary interactions and molecular structures, their chemical and thermal stability is very high. Besides such stabilizations, they are not biologically degradable because of their quite high biodetermination. After the usage, they are a prime cause of pollution because of being accumulated in nature. To prevent this contamination, renewable polymers that degrade in nature have been used. However, this situation has brought new problems. The foremost problem among these is that these polymers are not very resistant to thermal effects. One of the major disadvantages of such polymeric materials is that the resistance of the materials against burning namely flame-retarding property is extremely low. Nanocomposite technology has come to the fore to prevent this situation. Some metal oxides, clay species and the water releasing molecules at high temperatures are used as reinforcement to increase the flame resistance and thermal stability of these structures.

Renewably resourced bio-polymeric nanocomposites have come to the forefront in material science recently because of their superior properties. However, since such polymers have very high proportions of carbon, hydrogen and oxygen-containing compounds, they burn easily and quickly and during the burning of these polymers toxic and flammable gases as byproducts with heat are released. These gases are unsafe to human health at least the flames. Moreover, with the fragmentation of the polymer chains into small pieces or molecules by the effect of heat the medium becomes more flammable than the initial conditions. Therefore, researchers are exploring the use of flame retardant materials to prevent the burning of polymers in order to improve the performance of polymeric nanocomposite materials. The composite structure obtained from different reinforcements having flame retardant property gains flame retardancy and are achieving the security levels of applications that restrict the use of such polymers. ³⁵³ However, since these materials are very dangerous, it is much more prominent to develop efficient, cheap and environmentally friendly flame retardants. In various aspects, flame retardant reinforcements can be classified according to their basic mechanisms, targeting polymer types, containing an element or compound types. Flame retardants are the compounds having metal hydroxide compounds and one or more elements from phosphorus (P) or 7A group (halogen) according to the commonly used classification format.

PLA is widely used in biomedical materials, bags, packaging and films, fibres. Nevertheless, PLA is flammable like other polymers and this fact restricts the use of PLA in electric or electronic applications.³⁵⁴ Therefore, nanocomposite structures have been prepared by the combination of different flame retardants with PLA, which is a renewable biopolymer. For instance, isopropylated triaryl phosphate ester known for flame retardant in different proportions (FR; 10, 20, 30 percent) comprising of poly(lactic acid)/organomontmorillonite (PLA/OMMT) nanocomposites had been successfully prepared by Chow and Teoh ³⁵⁵ using a melt compounding method. The combustion tests of prepared PLA/OMMT nanocomposites had been investigated using the vertical burning test and morphological characteristics had been determined with a scanning electron microscope. Furthermore, the thermal properties of PLA/OMMT nanocomposites had been characterized by DSC and TGA. According to the UL- 94 vertical burning test results, after the application of the flame, pure PLA was found to be burned and foamed. However, the fire resistance of the PLA had significantly increased with the entry of FR into the structure. In particular, during the UL-94 vertical burning test, PLA/OMMT/FR20 and PLA/OMMT/FR30 nanocomposites had shown the outstanding flameretardant properties. Moreover, according to the thermal analysis results, it was seen that after addition of FR, and a plasticizer, the flexibility (Tg value) of PLA/OMMT nanocomposites increased; whereas, the starting temperature of decomposition decreased. In line with these results, the research group had reported the successful synthesis of flexible and fire-resistant PLA/OMMT nanocomposites having a compact, consistent and sustained preventive sheet characteristics.

In a similar study, Cheng et al. ³⁵⁶ synthesized polylactic acid/aluminum trihydrate/modified montmorillonite (PLA/ATH/MMT) nanocomposites and investigated the thermal and combustion behavior. The prepared PLA/ATH/MMT nanocomposites were subjected to the evaluation of thermal stability, morphology, and mechanical properties. The flame retarding behavior was determined with a vertical burn UL94 test and cone calorimetry. According to the obtained results, MMT and ATH increased the thermal decomposition activation energy of PLA.

Wang et al. ³⁵⁷ prepared PLA-FR, PLA-FR-ZnAl ve PLA-FR-MgAl nanocomposites using the direct melt-compounding method. Flame retardants (FR) used in this study were ammonium polyphosphate (APP), melamine cyanurate (MC) and pentaerythritol (PER). Combustion tests of these synthesized structures had been determined with microscale combustion calorimetry (MCC) and cone calorimetry. Also, the morphological characteristics had been identified with WAXS, SEM and TEM devices. According to the combustion test results, combustible PLA was found to exhibit the flame-retardant property with these reinforcements.

Polyurethanes (PUs) are widely used in wood, leather, fibre, fabric, plastic and other areas due to their superior properties. However, polyurethane is a burning polymer. This may no longer be a problem by using flame retardant materials in different proportions. Since polyurethane has a huge commercial market, researchers make intensive research in this field. For this purpose, polyols derived from bio-renewable resources instead of petroleum-derived polyols are used in the synthesis of polyurethane. Gao et al. ³⁵⁸ prepared lignin-based stiff polyurethane foam nanocomposites. The study aimed to produce halogen-free, flame retardant rigid polyurethane foam nanocomposite based on the by-products of pulp and paper making industry. Lignin is a phenolic polymer that constitutes about 18-35% weight of wood and is very important as a bio-renewable source because of being quite abundant and having hydroxyl, methoxyl, carbonyl, and carboxyl functional residues and is widely used in composite structures. For the commercial applications, halogen-free flame retardant (RPUF) nanocomposite structures had been synthesized using flame retardant polyols (FRP), microencapsulated PU with ammonium polyphosphate (MAPP) and layered double hydroxide organically modified (OLDH). The thermal conductivity, mechanical, thermal stability, flame retardancy, and fire behavior properties of prepared nanocomposites had been extensively investigated. According to the combustion test results, it was found that the flame-retardant characteristics of the material were improved with the doping of FR into polyurethane foam nanocomposites.

Kord et al. ³⁵⁹ prepared high-density polyethylene/rice hull flour nanocomposites. Organomodified montmorillonite (OMMT) was doped into the prepared nanocomposites (Figure 49). The study aimed to regulate the effect of OMMT carrying the flame retarding property supplemented into the nanocomposites containing bio-renewable resources. According to the results of the combustion test, the author demonstrated that when the supplemented content of OMMT into the nanocomposite was increased, burning velocity, the total smoke generation and the rate of heat release from samples decreased.

Prabhakar and Jung-il studied the fabrication and characterization of S/CH/flax fabric as flame-retardant composites ³⁶⁰. They revealed that flame retardancy properties were improved with the incorporation of a filler.



Figure 49. Schematic diagram of the procedure of TPS preparation and TCF composites fabrication. Reproduced with permission from ref ³⁶⁰. Copyright 2018 Elsevier.

In another study, Wang et al. reported on the coating of lignocellulose composite with PDMS@stearic Acid-Al(OH)₃ as a mean to control the flame retardancy (Figure 50). The obtained results revealed that the superhydrophobic surface of the prepared composite has desirable flame retardancy. ³⁶¹



Figure 50. Schematic diagram to fabricate PDMS@STA-ATH coating on the LC surface. Reproduced with permission from ref ³⁶¹. Copyright 2018 Elsevier.

9. Other Applications

In the fields of chemistry, medical, biomaterial, electronics and optics, there is significant literature on nanocomposites obtained from bio-renewable sources. Especially, nanocomposites formed from bio-renewable resources as biocompatible materials have received increased attention in recent years. Advanced applications of nanocomposites from bio-renewable resources have come to the forefront in: catalyst ³⁶², blood compatibility Nanodevices ³⁶³, ionotropic gelation ³⁶⁴, protein carriers ³⁶⁵, and spin-crossover property materials. ³⁶⁶

For the C-H activation and electro-oxidation of ethanol, Jayarajan et al. ³⁶² have developed amyloid fibril-palladium nanocomposite as a sustainable catalyst. Silver (Ag), copper (Cu), Palladium (Pad), platinum (Pt), and gold (Au) nanocomposites were synthesized using α -Syncline (α -Sin) fibrils as a template and characterized by using various methods such as FTIR, TEM, XPS, XRD, EDAX, and TGA. "This work revealed that α -Syn-PdNPs can be used as a promising heterogeneous catalyst for the synthesis of pharmaceutically valuable benzofuran, naphthofuran, coumarin and *N*-arylindole through C-H activation". In addition, α -Syn-PdNPs exhibited excellent electrocatalytic performance for the electro-oxidation of ethanol.

Recently, the use of heterogeneous catalysts for organic synthesis has received considerable attention. Hence, Mahdavinasab et al. ³⁶⁷ prepared magnetic CH/GO composite supported copper as a recyclable nanocatalyst (heterogeneous) in the synthesis of triazoles. The reaction products were attained in excellent yields within very short reaction times. Moreover, the proposed biocomposites based heterogeneous catalyst can be successfully recovered and recycled for nine runs (yield: 95%) without significant loss of activity. When the authors compared their prepared catalyst with the performance of other previously reported heterogeneous catalysts, they reported that the catalyst proposed in this study had much less reaction time, magnetically separable, stability and cheap.

In another work, Zheng et al. ³⁶⁸ prepared porous CH/RGO microspheres supported Pd nanoparticles catalysts for Heck coupling reactions. The catalysts were investigated via XPS, Raman spectroscopy, SEM, EDX, HR-TEM, TGA, and XRD. The prepared catalyst exhibited excellent catalytic activities for the Heck reactions between alkenes and aromatic halides. Besides, it can be reused for 13 times (yield: ~80%) without a significant decrease in coupling yields.

"In 2018, magnetic GO-ionic liquid grafted CH composites anchored Pd (0) nanoparticles were fabricated as a strong heterogeneous catalyst having enhanced activity along with superior reusability for hydrogen generation from ammonia borane" ³⁶⁹. The suggested magnetic catalysts exhibited outstanding catalytic activity and greater reusability for the ammonia borane hydrolysis. Therefore, it can be used for the growth of hydrogen energy.

In 2019, Daraie and Heravi ³⁷⁰ developed a biocompatible CH-ionic liquid hybrid catalyst to synthesize 1,2,3-triazoles. The CH-ionic liquid hybrid catalyst was comprehensively characterized via ICP, FTIR, XRD, SEM, ¹H NMR, TGA, and EDX methods. The developed heterogeneous catalyst was successfully used in the reaction of terminal alkynes, sodium azide, α -haloketones or alkyl halides in water to prepare 1,4-disubstituted-1,2,3-triazoles. Additionally, the catalyst could be recycled for 5 reaction cycles with trivial CuI leaching and a slight drop in catalytic activity.

Murugesan et al. ³⁶³ had prepared carbon nanotubes based neoproteoglycans nanocomposites for potential Nanorobots having in vivo applications. Activated partial thromboplastin time and thromboelastographic data show that heparinization can be considerably improved depending on the nanomaterials blood compatibility. CH nanoparticles have been widely selected due to their high ionotropic gelation; calcium carbonate and clay particles are chosen because of the relatively low effectiveness of the material, and Au and Ag's nanoparticles are used because of their antibacterial properties. Especially, the biological properties of CH make it an ideal candidate to create nanoparticles for medical applications. The ionotropic gelling technique includes sodium tripolyphosphate as the most important technique for ionic crosslinking of CH with low molecular weight and hydrophobic counter ions and high molecular weight ions.³⁷¹ CH microspheres are the most widely studied systems as potential carrier matrix for drugs ³⁷², protein ³⁶⁵, anticancer agents and vaccines ³⁷³. TiO₂ and ZnO nanoparticles are often used for the self-cleaning nanocomposites obtained bio-renewable sources with renewable biopolymer matrix due to their high photocatalytic properties. In other applications, Tokarev et al. ³⁶⁶ synthesized nanocomposite materials having very small (3 nm) Hofmann clathrate $[Fe(pz){M(CN)_4}]$ (M = Ni²⁺, Pt²⁺, Pd²⁺) nanoparticles embedded into CH and alginate as a biopolymer. These nanocomposites have good spin-crossover (SCO) properties. Moreover, they proved the specific morphology of the matrix and the importance of 3 nm nanoparticles in the biostability.

In another study, the amyloid–metal nanoparticle hybrids displayed catalytic activity in the reduction of 4-nitrophenol into 4-aminophenol.³⁷⁴ Most importantly, the amyloid–metal nanoparticle displayed enhanced catalytic efficiency in comparison to the particles without amyloid fibrils. Therefore, the catalytic ability of amyloid–metal nanoparticles can play an important role to design membranes for efficient continuous flow catalysis.

10. Conclusions and the Future Directions of the Researches on Nanocomposites from Bio-Renewable Resources

Renewability in materials preparation is an increasing new topic to maintain the sustainability of the ecosystem³⁷⁵. It is an obligation to develop new bio-renewable resourcebased materials due to the predictable limit of fossil sources and the increasing environmental concerns. Besides, developing materials technology³⁷⁶ is focused on developing nanocomposite materials containing a combination of improved mechanical and thermal properties, environmentally friendly, biodegradable and renewability features. Cellulose, S, gelatin, CH, guar, gum, PLA, CD, natural **fibre** and oil-based polymer are most commonly used among bio-renewable resources. Nanocomposites obtained from these resources are finding a place for biomedical applications as well as membranes, sensors, energy storage, optical, automotive and flame-retardant applications. However, new developments are needed to realize these applications more effectively and cost-effectively with nanocomposites to be formed from bio-renewable sources.

There are some disadvantages in the usage of bio-renewable based nanocomposites³⁷⁷. One of the major disadvantages is the biodegradation of products such as microplastics (plastic particles, 0.1 μ m–5 mm in size) that occur during rapid biodegradation. Biomass-based polymers in the nanocomposite structure quickly break down into large quantities of microplastics when exposed to a combination of sunlight and oxygen. This type of material allows for faster disappearance than conventional plastic materials. However, microplastics produced from these systems are no different from microplastics produced from petroleum-based plastics. It also takes a long time for these microplastics fragments to completely disappear under natural environmental conditions. Therefore, concerns about the rapid biodegradation process of biodegradable products have recently emerged. The most important approach to solve this problem is to prevent the formation of microplastics by producing completely biodegradable products. We also need new approaches to improve the biodegradation process of these materials.

The second important problem is that nanocomposites obtained from bio-renewable resources cannot reach the durability of petroleum-based systems in terms of mechanical characteristics. To overcome this problem, there are different approaches. Nano processing can especially improve the mechanical properties of renewable-based nanocomposites. Besides, this is very important in terms of the improvement of the biodegradability process. Nanofillers are also very important in obtaining nanocomposites with superior properties from bio-renewable sources. Nanofillers leads not only to mechanical improvement but also thermal stability, flame retardant and gas permeability increases in nanocomposite structures. Furthermore, improving the interaction between and matrix and nanofillers with surface modification is a promising approach in the future of such materials. In particular, developments in the processing technologies in nanofillers preparation can lead to new insights, in the formation of renewable bio-nano composites. Again, the types, chemical structure and density of the charge generated on the surface are one of the most critical parameters in distributing these small particles in biopolymer matrix networks. To characterize these particles

in the future, researchers and scientists need complex techniques that allow better characterization at the molecular level. The rheological measurements of these materials and the development of materials with the desired rheological properties will be very important. Furthermore, the industrial scale-up of nanocomposites is still limited. This shows that various studies are still needed for the industrial applications of nanocomposites and is one of the essential research areas of the future.

Nanofillers are very important in obtaining nanocomposites with superior properties from renewable sources. Nanofillers leads to not only mechanical improvement but also thermal stability, flame retardant and gas permeability increase in nanocomposite structures. Furthermore, improving the interaction between and matrix and nanofillers with surface modification is a promising approach in the future of such materials. In particular, developments in the processing technologies in nanofillers preparation can lead to new insights, in the formation of renewable bio-nano composites. Again, the types and density of the charge generated on the surface are one of the most critical parameters in distributing these small particles in biopolymer matrix networks. To characterize these particles in the future, researchers and scientists need complex techniques that allow better characterization at the molecular level. The rheological measurements of these materials and the development of materials with the desired rheological properties will be very important. Furthermore, the industrial scale-up of nanocomposites is still limited. This shows that various studies are still needed for the nanocomposites commercialization and is one of the imperative research areas of the future.

Biodegradable packaging devices that will be used in the packaging of foods will replace plastics in the future. Bioplastics from bio-renewable sources are an important candidate and efforts to enhance the mechanical properties of these materials will continue in the future. Here, especially nanotechnology studies will take an important place. For example, a material with superior mechanical properties, such as CH, but with a low cost, will increase the likelihood that it will be converted into such materials with future advances in nanotechnology.

In particular, a reduction in water resources makes membrane technology compulsory for people to access clean water. Therefore, in the future, nanocomposites formed from biorenewable sources are an important area in membrane technology.

Developing technology and advances in the health sector leads to prolongation of the human life span. Especially in the tissue engineering field, studies on the production of artificial organs, bio-renewable resources make the most important resource for biomedical applications. In this area, silk-based fibroin, collagen, and elastin-containing protein-based hydrogels or polymer blends have great potential and are one of the most important fields of study in the near future.

As a result, the unique properties of bio-nano composites obtained from bio-renewable sources should be the main area to found new applications and opportunities for "green" and "nano" materials world in the next centuries. These nanocomposites with improved biocompatibility, biodegradability, thermal and mechanical properties will be used in different areas of our lives in the future.

Acknowledgements

The authors wish to thank their parental institutes to provide the necessary facilities to accomplish this work. VKT is also thankful to the Research support provided by the UKRI via Grant No.: EP/T024607/1; Royal Academy of Engineering (IAPP-33-24/01/2017; IAPP18-19\295); and UKIERI (DST/INT/UK/P-164/2017).

ABBREVIATIONS

AFM	Atomic Force Microscopy
APTES	(3-Aminopropyl) triethoxysilane
AgNPs	Silver Nanoparticles
AuNPs	Gold nanoparticles
BC	Bacterial Cellulose
BC/PANI	Bacterial cellulose/polyaniline
BCA	BC/Alginate
Во	Boehmite
BPA	Bisphenol A
BSA	Bovine Serum Albumin
CA	Cellulose Acetate
СВ	Carbon Black
CD	Cyclodextrin
СН	Chitosan
CH-MMT/PES	CH-Montmorillonite Polyether sulfone
ChOx	Cholesterol Oxidase
CM-β-CD	Carboxymethyl-β-CD
CNC	Cellulose Nanocrystals
CNF	Chitin Nanofibrils
CS-MMT	CH-montmorillonite
CSNCF	Cellulose-Silver Nanocomposites Fibre
CSnp	Chondroitin Sulfate Nanoparticles

CS-ZnO/PANI	CH-ZnO/polyaniline
EDX	Energy Dispersive X-Ray
Fe ₃ O ₄ -LNPs	Iron Oxide (Fe ₃ O ₄) Nanoparticle Infused Lignin Nanoparticles
Fe-LNPs	Iron(III)-Complexed Lignin Nanoparticles
FE-SEM	Field Emission Scanning Electron Microscopy
FTIR	Fourier Transform Infrared Spectroscopy
GA	Gum Acacia
GC	Glassy Carbon
GCN-S	Graphene/Silk fibroin
GG	Gaur Gum
GO	Graphene Oxide
GT	Green Tea
НА	НА
HDPE	High Density Polyethylene
IBU	Ibuprofen
LNPs	Lignin Nanoparticles
MWCNT	Multi-Layer Carbon Nanotubes
NIR	Near Infrared
PANI/CNXLs	Polyaniline-Cellulose Nanocrystals
PBS	Poly (butylene succinate)
PDAC	Polydiallyl Dimethyl Ammonium Chloride
PEDOT/CNXL	Poly(ethylenedioxythiophene)-Cellulose Nanocrystals
PEG	Poly (ethylene glycol)

РНВ	Poly hydroxyl butyrate
PLA	Poly-L-lactic acid
PLA/ATH/MMT	Polylactic acid/Aluminum Trihydrate/Modified Montmorillonite
PLA/OMMT	Poly (lactic acid)/Organomontmorillonite
PLGA	Poly (lactic-co-glycolic acid)
PLLA	PolyL-lactide
pLNPs	Pure Lignin Nanoparticles
PPG	Polypropylene Glycol
PPy/BC	Polypyrrole- bacterial cellulose
PPy/BC	Polypyrrole-Bacterial Cellulose
RCF	Recycled Cellulose Fibre
rGO	reduced Graphene Oxide
SDS	Sodium Dodecyl Sulfate
SEM	Scanning Electron Microscopy
SPI	Soy Protein Isolate
TEM	Transmission Electron Microscope
TEOS	Tetraethoxysilane
TGA	Thermogravimetric Analysis
THF	Tetrahydrofuran
XPS	X-ray Photoelectron Spectroscopy
XRD	X-ray diffraction

REFERENCES

- Ates, B.; Koytepe, S.; Balcioglu, S.; Ulu, A.; Gurses, C. Biomedical Applications of Hybrid Polymer Composite Materials. In *Hybrid Polymer Composite Materials: Applications*; Elsevier Inc., 2017; pp 343–408.
- (2) Paul, D. R.; Robeson, L. M. Polymer Nanotechnology: Nanocomposites. *Polymer.* **2008**, 49, 3187–3204.
- (3) Henrique, P.; Camargo, C.; Satyanarayana, K. G.; Wypych, F. Nanocomposites: Synthesis, Structure, Properties and New Application Opportunities. Mater. Res. 2009, 12, 1–39.
- (4) Yu, L.; Dean, K.; Li, L. Polymer Blends and Composites from Renewable Resources. *Prog. Polym. Sci.* **2006**, *31*, 576–602.
- (5) Ulu, A.: Noma, S. A. A.; Gurses, C.; Koytepe, S.; Ates. Β. Chitosan/Polyvinylpyrrolidone/MCM-41 Composite Hydrogel Films: Structural, Thermal, Surface, and Antibacterial Properties. Starch - Stärke 2018, 70 (11-12), 1700303.
- (6) Jandas, P. J.; Mohanty, S.; Nayak, S. K. Green Nanocomposites from Renewable Resource-Based Biodegradable Polymers and Environmentally-Friendly Blends. In *Polymer Nanocomposites Based on Inorganic and Organic Nanomaterials*; John Wiley & Sons, Inc.: Hoboken, NJ, USA, 2015; pp 401–442.
- (7) Dufresne, A. Cellulose-Based Composites and Nanocomposites. In *Monomers, Polymers and Composites from Renewable Resources;*. **2008**, 401–418.
- (8) Singha, A. S.; Thakur, V. K. Fabrication and Characterization of H. Sabdariffa Fiber-Reinforced Green Polymer Composites. Polym.-Plast. Technol. Eng. 2009, 48 (4), 482– 487.
- (9) Nagalakshmaiah, M.; El Kissi, N.; Dufresne, A. Ionic Compatibilization of Cellulose Nanocrystals with Quaternary Ammonium Salt and Their Melt Extrusion with Polypropylene. *ACS Appl. Mater. Interfaces* **2016**, *8*, 8755–8764.
- (10) Singha, A. S.; Thakur, V. K. Synthesis, Characterisation and Analysis of Hibiscus Sabdariffa Fibre Reinforced Polymer Matrix Based Composites. Polym. Polym. Compos. 2009, 17 (3), 189–194.
- (11) Singha, A. S.; Thakur, V. K. Mechanical, Thermal and Morphological Properties of Grewia Optiva Fiber/Polymer Matrix Composites. *Polym.-Plast. Technol. Eng.* 2009, 48 (2), 201–208.
- (12) Singha, A. S.; Thakur, V. K. Fabrication and Characterization of S. Cilliare Fibre Reinforced Polymer Composites. *Bull. Mater. Sci.* **2009**, *32* (1), 49–58.
- (13) Singha, A. S.; Shama, A.; Thakur, V. K. X-Ray Diffraction, Morphological, and Thermal Studies on Methylmethacrylate Graft Copolymerized Saccharum Ciliare Fiber. *Int. J. Polym. Anal. Charact.* **2008**, *13* (6), 447–462.
- (14) Singha, A. S.; Thakur, V. K. Fabrication Of Hibiscus Sabdariffa Fibre Reinforced Polymer Composites. **2008**, *17* (7), 541–553.

- (15) Ulu, A.; Balcioglu, S.; Birhanli, E.; Sarimeseli, A.; Keskin, R.; Koytepe, S.; Ates, B. Poly(2-Hydroxyethyl Methacrylate)/Boric Acid Composite Hydrogel as Soft Contact Lens Material: Thermal, Optical, Rheological, and Enhanced Antibacterial Properties. J. Appl. Polym. Sci. 2018, 135 (35), 46575.
- (16) Thakur, V. K.; Singha, A. S.; Kaur, I.; Nagarajarao, R. P.; Liping, Y. Silane Functionalization of Saccaharum Cilliare Fibers: Thermal, Morphological, and Physicochemical Study. *Int. J. Polym. Anal. Charact.* **2010**, *15* (7), 397–414
- (17) Dubey, S. P.; Thakur, V. K.; Krishnaswamy, S.; Abhyankar, H. A.; Marchante, V.; Brighton, J. L. Progress in Environmental-Friendly Polymer Nanocomposite Material from PLA: Synthesis, Processing and Applications. *Vacuum* **2017**, *146*, 655–663.
- (18) Singha, A. S.; Thakur, V. K. Mechanical, Morphological and Thermal Properties of Pine Needle-Reinforced Polymer Composites. *Int. J. Polym. Mater. Polym. Biomater.* 2008, 58 (1), 21–31.
- (19) Thakur, V. K.; Singha, A. S.; Thakur, M. K. Synthesis of Natural Cellulose–Based Graft Copolymers Using Methyl Methacrylate as an Efficient Monomer. *Adv. Polym. Technol.* 2013, 32 (S1), E741–E748.
- (20) Thakur, V. K.; Singha, A. S.; Thakur, M. K. Natural Cellulosic Polymers as Potential Reinforcement in Composites: Physicochemical and Mechanical Studies. *Adv. Polym. Technol.* 2013, 32 (S1), E427–E435.
- (21) Thakur, V. K.; Singha, A. S. Rapid Synthesis, Characterization, and Physicochemical Analysis of Biopolymer-Based Graft Copolymers. *Int. J. Polym. Anal. Charact.* **2011**, *16* (3), 153–164.
- (22) Thakur, V. K.; Thunga, M.; Madbouly, S. A.; Kessler, M. R. PMMA-g-SOY as a Sustainable Novel Dielectric Material. *RSC Adv.* **2014**, *4* (35), 18240–18249.
- (23) Thakur, V. K.; Kessler, M. R. Synthesis and Characterization of AN-g-SOY for Sustainable Polymer Composites. *ACS Sustain. Chem. Eng.* **2014**, *2* (10), 2454–2460.
- (24) Hestin, M.; Faninger, T.; Milios, L. Increased EU Plastics Recycling Targets: Environmental, Economic and Social Impact Assessment Final Report Prepared for Plastic Recyclers Europe EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 4 GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ACRYMS 6; 2015.
- (25) Wróblewska-Krepsztul, J.; Rydzkowski, T.; Borowski, G.; Szczypiński, M.; Klepka, T.; Thakur, V. K. Recent Progress in Biodegradable Polymers and Nanocomposite-Based Packaging Materials for Sustainable Environment. *Int. J. Polym. Anal. Charact.* 2018, 23 (4), 383–395
- (26) Thakur, V. K.; Singha, A. S. Physicochemical and Mechanical Behavior of Cellulosic Pine Needle-Based Biocomposites. *Int. J. Polym. Anal. Charact.* **2011**, *16* (6), 390–398.
- (27) Narancic, T.; Verstichel, S.; Reddy Chaganti, S.; Morales-Gamez, L.; Kenny, S. T.; De Wilde, B.; Babu Padamati, R.; O'Connor, K. E. Biodegradable Plastic Blends Create New Possibilities for End-of-Life Management of Plastics but They Are Not a Panacea for Plastic Pollution. Environ. Sci. Technol. 2018, 52, 10441–10452.
- (28) Thakur, V. K.; Singha, A. S. KPS-Initiated Graft Copolymerization onto Modified

Cellulosic Biofibers. Int. J. Polym. Anal. Charact. 2010, 15 (8), 471-485.

- (29) Thakur, V. K.; Thakur, M. K.; Singha, A. S. Free Radical–Induced Graft Copolymerization onto Natural Fibers. *Int. J. Polym. Anal. Charact.* 2013, *18* (6), 430– 438.
- (30) Ulu, A.; Koytepe, S.; Ates, B. Synthesis and Characterization of PMMA Composites Activated with Starch for Immobilization of L-Asparaginase. *J. Appl. Polym. Sci.* **2016**, *133* (19) 43421.
- (31) Ulu, A.; Koytepe, S.; Ates, B. Synthesis and Characterization of Biodegradable PHEMA-Starch Composites for Immobilization of L-Asparaginase. *Polym. Bull.* **2016**, *73* (7), 1891–1907.
- (32) Ulu, A.; Koytepe, S.; Ates, B. Design of Starch Functionalized Biodegradable P(MAA-Co-MMA) as Carrier Matrix for L-Asparaginase Immobilization. *Carbohydr. Polym.* 2016, *153*, 559–572.
- (33) Thakur, V. K.; Singha, A. S.; Thakur, M. K. Rapid Synthesis of MMA Grafted Pine Needles Using Microwave Radiation. *Polym.-Plast. Technol. Eng.* 2012, 51 (15), 1598– 1604.
- (34) Miculescu, F.; Maidaniuc, A.; Voicu, S. I.; Thakur, V. K.; Stan, G. E.; Ciocan, L. T. Progress in Hydroxyapatite–Starch Based Sustainable Biomaterials for Biomedical Bone Substitution Applications. ACS Sustain. Chem. Eng. 2017, 5 (10), 8491–8512.
- (35) Klemm, D.; Schumann, D.; Kramer, F.; Hebler, N.; Koth, D.; Sultanova, B. Nanocellulose Materials - Different Cellulose, Different Functionality. *Macromol. Symp.* 2009, 280, 60-71.
- (36) Ates, B.; Ulu, A.; Köytepe, S.; Ali Noma, S. A.; Kolat, V. S.; Izgi, T. Magnetic-Propelled Fe₃O₄-Chitosan Carriers Enhance 1-Asparaginase Catalytic Activity: A Promising Strategy for Enzyme Immobilization. *RSC Adv.* **2018**. 8, 36063-36075.
- (37) Ulu, A.; Birhanli, E.; Boran, F.; Köytepe, S.; Yesilada, O.; Ateş, B. Laccase-Conjugated Thiolated Chitosan-Fe₃O₄ Hybrid Composite for Biocatalytic Degradation of Organic Dyes. *Int. J. Biol. Macromol.* **2020**, *150*, 871–884.
- (38) Thakur, V. K.; Thakur, M. K. Recent Advances in Graft Copolymerization and Applications of Chitosan: A Review. *ACS Sustain. Chem. Eng.* **2014**, *2* (12), 2637–2652.
- (39) Thakur, V. K.; Voicu, S. I. Recent Advances in Cellulose and Chitosan Based Membranes for Water Purification: A Concise Review. *Carbohydr. Polym.* 2016, 146, 148–165.
- (40) Ashrafizadeh, M.; Ahmadi, Z.; Mohamadi, N.; Zarrabi, A.; Abasi, S.; Dehghannoudeh, G.; Tamaddondoust, R. N.; Khanbabaei, H.; Mohammadinejad, R.; Thakur, V. K. Chitosan-Based Advanced Materials for Docetaxel and Paclitaxel Delivery: Recent Advances and Future Directions in Cancer Theranostics. *Int. J. Biol. Macromol.* 2020, 145, 282–300.
- (41) Trache, D.; Hussin, M. H.; Haafiz, M. K. M.; Thakur, V. K. Recent Progress in Cellulose Nanocrystals: Sources and Production. *Nanoscale* **2017**, *9* (5), 1763–1786.

- (42) Pandele, A. M.; Comanici, F. E.; Carp, C. A.; Miculescu, F.; Voicu, S. I.; Thakur, V. K.; Serban, B. C. Synthesis and Characterization of Cellulose Acetate-Hydroxyapatite Micro and Nano Composites Membranes for Water Purification and Biomedical Applications. *Vacuum* 2017, 146, 599–605.
- (43) Madhumitha, G.; Fowsiya, J.; Roopan, S. M.; Thakur, V. K. Recent Advances in Starch– Clay Nanocomposites. *Int. J. Polym. Anal. Charact.* **2018**, *23* (4), 331–345.
- (44) Thakur, S.; Govender, P. P.; Mamo, M. A.; Tamulevicius, S.; Mishra, Y. K.; Thakur, V. K. Progress in Lignin Hydrogels and Nanocomposites for Water Purification: Future Perspectives. *Vacuum* 2017, *146*, 342–355.
- (45) Fakhari, A.; Berkland, C. Applications and Emerging Trends of Hyaluronic Acid in Tissue Engineering, as a Dermal Filler and in Osteoarthritis Treatment. *Acta Biomaterialia*. **2013**, *9*, 7081–7092.
- (46) Thakur, S.; Verma, A.; Sharma, B.; Chaudhary, J.; Tamulevicius, S.; Thakur, V. K. Recent Developments in Recycling of Polystyrene Based Plastics. *Curr. Opin. Green Sustain. Chem.* 2018, 13, 32–38.
- (47) Thakur, S.; Sharma, B.; Verma, A.; Chaudhary, J.; Tamulevicius, S.; Thakur, V. K. Recent Progress in Sodium Alginate Based Sustainable Hydrogels for Environmental Applications. J. Clean. Prod. 2018, 198, 143–159.
- (48) Thakur, S.; Govender, P. P.; Mamo, M. A.; Tamulevicius, S.; Thakur, V. K. Recent Progress in Gelatin Hydrogel Nanocomposites for Water Purification and Beyond. *Vacuum* 2017, 146, 396–408.
- (49) Gandini, A.; Lacerda, T. M.; Carvalho, A. J. F.; Trovatti, E. Progress of Polymers from Renewable Resources: Furans, Vegetable Oils, and Polysaccharides. *Chemical Reviews*. 2016, *116*, 1637-1669.
- (50) Fawaz, J.; Mittal, V. Synthesis of Polymer Nanocomposites: Review of Various Techniques. In *Synthesis Techniques for Polymer Nanocomposites*; 2014.
- (51) Bledzki, A. K.; Mamun, A. A.; Faruk, O. Abaca Fibre Reinforced PP Composites and Comparison with Jute and Flax Fibre PP Composites. *Express Polym. Lett.* **2007**, *1*, 755–762.
- (52) Thomas, S. P.; Stephen, R.; Bandyopadhyay, S.; Thomas, S. Polymer Nanocomposites: Preparation, Properties and Applications. *Gummi Fasern Kunststoffe* **2007**, *2*, 49-56.
- (53) Raji, M.; Abdellaoui, H.; Essabir, H.; Kakou, C.-A.; Bouhfid, R.; Qaiss, A. el kacem. Prediction of the Cyclic Durability of Woven-Hybrid Composites. In *Durability and Life Prediction in Biocomposites, Fibre-Reinforced Composites and Hybrid Composites*; 2019.
- (54) Neibolts, N.; Platnieks, O.; Gaidukovs, S.; Barkane, A.; Thakur, V. K.; Filipova, I.; Mihai, G.; Zelca, Z.; Yamaguchi, K.; Enachescu, M. Needle-Free Electrospinning of Nanofibrillated Cellulose and Graphene Nanoplatelets Based Sustainable Poly (Butylene Succinate) Nanofibers. *Mater. Today Chem.* **2020**, *17*, 100301.
- (55) Thakur, S.; Saini, R. V.; Singh, P.; Raizada, P.; Thakur, V. K.; Saini, A. K. Nanoparticles as an Emerging Tool to Alter the Gene Expression: Preparation and Conjugation

Methods. Mater. Today Chem. 2020, 17, 100295.

- (56) Merino, S.; Martín, C.; Kostarelos, K.; Prato, M.; Vázquez, E. Nanocomposite Hydrogels: 3D Polymer–Nanoparticle Synergies for On-Demand Drug Delivery. ACS Nano 2015, 9, 4686–4697.
- (57) Sotome, S.; Uemura, T.; Kikuchi, M.; Chen, J.; Itoh, S.; Tanaka, J.; Tateishi, T.; Shinomiya, K. Synthesis and in Vivo Evaluation of a Novel Hydroxyapatite/Collagen– Alginate as a Bone Filler and a Drug Delivery Carrier of Bone Morphogenetic Protein. *Mater. Sci. Eng. C* 2004, 24, 341–347.
- (58) Maehara, H.; Sotome, S.; Yoshii, T.; Torigoe, I.; Kawasaki, Y.; Sugata, Y.; Yuasa, M.; Hirano, M.; Mochizuki, N.; Kikuchi, M.; et al. Repair of Large Osteochondral Defects in Rabbits Using Porous Hydroxyapatite/Collagen (HAp/Col) and Fibroblast Growth Factor-2 (FGF-2). J. Orthop. Res. 2009, 28, 677-686.
- (59) Liu, T.Y.; Chen, S.Y.; Li, J.H.; Liu, D.M. Study on Drug Release Behaviour of CDHA/Chitosan Nanocomposites-Effect of CDHA Nanoparticles. J. Control. Release 2006, 112, 88–95.
- (60) Darder, M.; López-Blanco, M.; Aranda, P.; Leroux, F.; Ruiz-Hitzky, E. Bio-Nanocomposites Based on Layered Double Hydroxides. *Chem. Mater.* 2005, 17, 1969– 1977.
- (61) Dagnon, K. L.; Ambadapadi, S.; Shaito, A.; Ogbomo, S. M.; DeLeon, V.; Golden, T. D.; Rahimi, M.; Nguyen, K.; Braterman, P. S.; D'Souza, N. A. Poly(L-Lactic Acid) Nanocomposites with Layered Double Hydroxides Functionalized with Ibuprofen. J. Appl. Polym. Sci. 2009, 113, 1905–1915.
- (62) Ribeiro, C.; Arizaga, G. G. C.; Wypych, F.; Sierakowski, M.-R. Nanocomposites Coated with Xyloglucan for Drug Delivery: In Vitro Studies. *Int. J. Pharm.* **2009**, *367*, 204–210.
- (63) Wu, W.; Shen, J.; Banerjee, P.; Zhou, S. Core–Shell Hybrid Nanogels for Integration of Optical Temperature-Sensing, Targeted Tumor Cell Imaging, and Combined Chemo-Photothermal Treatment. *Biomaterials* **2010**, *31*, 7555–7566.
- (64) Frangville, C.; Rutkevičius, M.; Richter, A. P.; Velev, O. D.; Stoyanov, S. D.; Paunov, V. N. Fabrication of Environmentally Biodegradable Lignin Nanoparticles. *ChemPhysChem* 2012, 13, 4235–4243.
- (65) Figueiredo, P.; Lintinen, K.; Hirvonen, J. T.; Kostiainen, M. A.; Santos, H. A. Properties and Chemical Modifications of Lignin: Towards Lignin-Based Nanomaterials for Biomedical Applications. *Prog. Mater. Sci.* **2018**, *93*, 233–269.
- (66) Richter, A. P.; Brown, J. S.; Bharti, B.; Wang, A.; Gangwal, S.; Houck, K.; Cohen Hubal, E. A.; Paunov, V. N.; Stoyanov, S. D.; Velev, O. D. An Environmentally Benign Antimicrobial Nanoparticle Based on a Silver-Infused Lignin Core. *Nat. Nanotechnol.* 2015, *10*, 817–823.
- (67) Lievonen, M.; Valle-Delgado, J. J.; Mattinen, M.L.; Hult, E.L.; Lintinen, K.; Kostiainen, M. A.; Paananen, A.; Szilvay, G. R.; Setälä, H.; Österberg, M. A Simple Process for Lignin Nanoparticle Preparation. *Green Chem.* 2016, *18*, 1416–1422.
- (68) Lintinen, K.; Latikka, M.; Sipponen, M. H.; Ras, R. H. A.; Österberg, M.; Kostiainen,

M. A. Structural Diversity in Metal–Organic Nanoparticles Based on Iron Isopropoxide Treated Lignin. *RSC Adv.* **2016**, *6*, 31790–31796.

- (69) Figueiredo, P.; Lintinen, K.; Kiriazis, A.; Hynninen, V.; Liu, Z.; Bauleth-Ramos, T.; Rahikkala, A.; Correia, A.; Kohout, T.; Sarmento, B.; et al. In Vitro Evaluation of Biodegradable Lignin-Based Nanoparticles for Drug Delivery and Enhanced Antiproliferation Effect in Cancer Cells. *Biomaterials* **2017**, *121*, 97–108.
- (70) Li, H.; Deng, Y.; Liu, B.; Ren, Y.; Liang, J.; Qian, Y.; Qiu, X.; Li, C.; Zheng, D. Preparation of Nanocapsules via the Self-Assembly of Kraft Lignin: A Totally Green Process with Renewable Resources. ACS Sustain. Chem. Eng. 2016, 4, 1946–1953.
- (71) Chen, N.; Dempere, L. A.; Tong, Z. Synthesis of pH-Responsive Lignin-Based Nanocapsules for Controlled Release of Hydrophobic Molecules. ACS Sustain. Chem. Eng. 2016, 4, 5204–5211.
- (72) Luo, H.; Ao, H.; Li, G.; Li, W.; Xiong, G.; Zhu, Y.; Wan, Y. Bacterial Cellulose/Graphene Oxide Nanocomposite as a Novel Drug Delivery System. *Curr. Appl. Phys.* 2017, 17, 249–254.
- (73) Ulu, A.; Ates, B. Immobilization of L-Asparaginase on Carrier Materials: A Comprehensive Review. *Bioconjugate Chemistry*. 2017, 28 (6), 1598–1610.
- (74) Ulu, A.; Karaman, M.; Yapıcı, F.; Naz, M.; Sayın, S.; Saygılı, E. İ.; Ateş, B. The Carboxylated Multi-Walled Carbon Nanotubes/I-Asparaginase Doped Calcium-Alginate Beads: Structural and Biocatalytic Characterization. *Catal. Letters* 2020, 150, 1679– 1691.
- (75) Tarhan, T.; Ulu, A.; Sariçam, M.; Çulha, M.; Ates, B. Maltose Functionalized Magnetic Core/Shell Fe₃O₄@Au Nanoparticles for An Efficient L-Asparaginase Immobilization. *Int. J. Biol. Macromol.* 2020, 142, 443-451.
- (76) McCullen, S. D.; Ramaswamy, S.; Clarke, L. I.; Gorga, R. E. Nanofibrous Composites for Tissue Engineering Applications. *Wiley Interdiscip. Rev. Nanomedicine Nanobiotechnology* **2009**, *1*, 369–390.
- (77) Laurencin, C.; Domb, A.; Morris, C.; Brown, V.; Chasin, M.; McConnell, R.; Lange, N.; Langer, R. Poly(Anhydride) Administration in High Doses in Vivo: Studies of Biocompatibility and Toxicology. J. Biomed. Mater. Res. 1990, 24, 1463–1481.
- (78) Hule, R. A.; Pochan, D. J. Polymer Nanocomposites for Biomedical Applications. *MRS Bull.* **2007**, *32*, 354–358.
- (79) Tampieri, A.; Sandri, M.; Landi, E.; Pressato, D.; Francioli, S.; Quarto, R.; Martin, I. Design of Graded Biomimetic Osteochondral Composite Scaffolds. *Biomaterials* 2008, 29, 3539–3546.
- (80) Yokoyama, A.; Gelinsky, M.; Kawasaki, T.; Kohgo, T.; König, U.; Pompe, W.; Watari, F. Biomimetic Porous Scaffolds with High Elasticity Made from Mineralized Collagen—An Animal Study. *J. Biomed. Mater. Res. Part B Appl. Biomater.* 2005, 75, 464–472.
- (81) Yunoki, S.; Ikoma, T.; Monkawa, A.; Ohta, K.; Kikuchi, M.; Sotome, S.; Shinomiya, K.; Tanaka, J. Control of Pore Structure and Mechanical Property in

Hydroxyapatite/Collagen Composite Using Unidirectional Ice Growth. *Mater. Lett.* **2006**, *60*, 999–1002.

- (82) Yamaguchi, I.; Tokuchi, K.; Fukuzaki, H.; Koyama, Y.; Takakuda, K.; Monma, H.; Tanaka, J. Preparation and Microstructure Analysis of Chitosan/Hydroxyapatite Nanocomposites. *J. Biomed. Mater. Res.* **2001**, *55*, 20–27.
- (83) Kim, H.W.; Song, J.H.; Kim, H.E. Nano**fibre** Generation of Gelatin-Hydroxyapatite Biomimetics for Guided Tissue Regeneration. *Adv. Funct. Mater.* **2005**, *15*, 1988–1994.
- (84) Kim, H.W.; Kim, H.E.; Salih, V. Stimulation of Osteoblast Responses to Biomimetic Nanocomposites of Gelatin–Hydroxyapatite for Tissue Engineering Scaffolds. *Biomaterials* 2005, 26, 5221–5230.
- (85) Zhao, F.; Yin, Y.; Lu, W. W.; Leong, J. C.; Zhang, W.; Zhang, J.; Zhang, M.; Yao, K. Preparation and Histological Evaluation of Biomimetic Three-Dimensional Hydroxyapatite/Chitosan-Gelatin Network Composite Scaffolds. *Biomaterials* 2002, 23, 3227–3234.
- (86) Zhuang, H.; Zheng, J. P.; Gao, H.; De Yao, K. In Vitro Biodegradation and Biocompatibility of Gelatin/Montmorillonite-Chitosan Intercalated Nanocomposite. J. Mater. Sci. Mater. Med. 2007, 18, 951–957.
- (87) Tampieri, A.; Sandri, M.; Landi, E.; Celotti, G.; Roveri, N.; Mattioli-Belmonte, M.; Virgili, L.; Gabbanelli, F.; Biagini, G. HA/Alginate Hybrid Composites Prepared through Bio-Inspired Nucleation. *Acta Biomater.* **2005**, *1*, 343–351.
- (88) Wang, L.; Nemoto, R.; Senna, M. Changes in Microstructure and Physico-Chemical Properties of Hydroxyapatite–Silk Fibroin Nanocomposite with Varying Silk Fibroin Content. *J. Eur. Ceram. Soc.* **2004**, *24*, 2707–2715.
- (89) Takeuchi, A.; Ohtsuki, C.; Miyazaki, T.; Kamitakahara, M.; Ogata, S.; Yamazaki, M.; Furutani, Y.; Kinoshita, H.; Tanihara, M. Heterogeneous Nucleation of Hydroxyapatite on Protein: Structural Effect of Silk Sericin. J. R. Soc. Interface **2005**, *2*, 373–378.
- (90) Sinha, A.; Nayar, S.; Agrawal, A.; Bhattacharyya, D.; Ramachandrarao, P. Synthesis of Nanosized and Microporous Precipitated Hydroxyapatite in Synthetic Polymers and Biopolymers. *J. Am. Ceram. Soc.* **2003**, *86*, 357–359.
- (91) Ritzoulis, C.; Scoutaris, N.; Demetriou, E.; Papademetriou, K.; Kokkou, S.; Stavroulias, S.; Panayiotou, C. Formation of Hydroxyapatite/Biopolymer Biomaterials. I. Microporous Composites from Solidified Emulsions. J. Biomed. Mater. Res. 2004, 71, 675–684.
- (92) Deepthi, S.; Viha, C.; Thitirat, C.; Furuike, T.; Tamura, H.; Jayakumar, R. Fabrication of Chitin/Poly(Butylene Succinate)/Chondroitin Sulfate Nanoparticles Ternary Composite Hydrogel Scaffold for Skin Tissue Engineering. *Polymers (Basel).* 2014, 6, 2974–2984.
- (93) Alexander, H.; Langrana, N.; Massengill, J. B.; Weiss, A. B. Development of New Methods for Phalangeal Fracture Fixation. J. Biomech. **1981**, *14*, 377–387.
- (94) Chrissafis, K.; Pavlidou, E.; Paraskevopoulos, K. M.; Beslikas, T.; Nianias, N.; Bikiaris, D. Enhancing Mechanical and Thermal Properties of PLLA Ligaments with Fumed

Silica Nanoparticles and Montmorillonite. J. Therm. Anal. Calorim. 2011, 105, 313–323.

- (95) Majola, A.; Vainionpää, S.; Vihtonen, K.; Vasenius, J.; Törmälä, P.; Rokkanen, P. Intramedullary Fixation of Cortical Bone Osteotomies with Self-Reinforced Polylactic Rods in Rabbits. *Int. Orthop.* **1992**, *16*, 101–108.
- (96) Du, C.; Cui, F. Z.; Zhu, X. D.; de Groot, K. Three-Dimensional Nano-HAp/Collagen Matrix Loading with Osteogenic Cells in Organ Culture. J. Biomed. Mater. Res. 1999, 44, 407–415.
- (97) Webster, T. J.; Siegel, R. W.; Bizios, R. Nanoceramic Surface Roughness Enhances Osteoblast and Osteoclast Functions for Improved Orthopaedic/Dental Implant Efficacy. *Scr. Mater.* 2001, 44, 1639–1642.
- (98) Webster, T. J.; Ergun, C.; Doremus, R. H.; Siegel, R. W.; Bizios, R. Specific Proteins Mediate Enhanced Osteoblast Adhesion on Nanophase Ceramics. J. Biomed. Mater. Res. 2000, 51, 475–483.
- (99) Webster, T. J.; Siegel, R. W.; Bizios, R. Osteoblast Adhesion on Nanophase Ceramics. *Biomaterials* **1999**, 20, 1221–1227.
- (100) Dulgar Tulloch, A. J.; Bizios, R.; Siegel, R. W. Nanophase Alumina/Poly(L-Lactic Acid) Composite Scaffolds for Biomedical Applications. *MRS Proc.* **2002**, 740, 6.3.
- (101) Webster, T. J.; Ergun, C.; Doremus, R. H.; Siegel, R. W.; Bizios, R. Enhanced Functions of Osteoblasts on Nanophase Ceramics. *Biomaterials* **2000**, *21*, 1803–1810.
- (102) Yamasaki, H.; Sakai, H. Osteogenic Response to Porous Hydroxyapatite Ceramics under the Skin of Dogs. *Biomaterials* **1992**, *13*, 308–312.
- (103) Yuan, H.; Kurashina, K.; de Bruijn, J. D.; Li, Y.; de Groot, K.; Zhang, X. A Preliminary Study on Osteoinduction of Two Kinds of Calcium Phosphate Ceramics. *Biomaterials* 1999, 20, 1799–1806.
- (104) Liu, H.; Slamovich, E. B.; Webster, T. J. Increased Osteoblast Functions on Nanophase Titania Dispersed in Poly-Lactic-Co-Glycolic Acid Composites. *Nanotechnology* 2005, 16, 601-608.
- (105) Wei, G.; Ma, P. X. Structure and Properties of Nano-Hydroxyapatite/Polymer Composite Scaffolds for Bone Tissue Engineering. *Biomaterials* **2004**, *25*, 4749–4757.
- (106) Webster, T. J.; Schadler, L. S.; Siegel, R. W.; Bizios, R. Mechanisms of Enhanced Osteoblast Adhesion on Nanophase Alumina Involve Vitronectin. *Tissue Eng.* 2001, 7, 291–301.
- (107) McManus, A. J.; Doremus, R. H.; Siegel, R. W.; Bizios, R. Evaluation of Cytocompatibility and Bending Modulus of Nanoceramic/Polymer Composites. J. *Biomed. Mater. Res.* 2005, 72, 98–106.
- (108) Kai, D.; Zhang, K.; Jiang, L.; Wong, H. Z.; Li, Z.; Zhang, Z.; Loh, X. J. Sustainable and Antioxidant Lignin–Polyester Copolymers and Nano**fibre**s for Potential Healthcare Applications. *ACS Sustain. Chem. Eng.* **2017**, *5*, 6016–6025.
- (109) Kai, D.; Jiang, S.; Low, Z. W.; Loh, X. J. Engineering Highly Stretchable Lignin-Based

Electrospun Nano**fibre**s for Potential Biomedical Applications. *J. Mater. Chem. B* **2015**, *3*, 6194–6204.

- (110) Fernandes, E. M.; Pires, R. A.; Mano, J. F.; Reis, R. L. Bionanocomposites from Lignocellulosic Resources: Properties, Applications and Future Trends for Their Use in the Biomedical Field. *Prog. Polym. Sci.* 2013, *38*, 1415–1441.
- (111) Diao, B.; Zhang, Z.; Zhu, J.; Li, J. Biomass-Based Thermogelling Copolymers Consisting of Lignin and Grafted Poly(N-Isopropylacrylamide), Poly(Ethylene Glycol), and Poly(Propylene Glycol). *RSC Adv.* **2014**, *4*, 42996–43003.
- (112) Quraishi, S.; Martins, M.; Barros, A. A.; Gurikov, P.; Raman, S. P.; Smirnova, I.; Duarte, A. R. C.; Reis, R. L. Novel Non-Cytotoxic Alginate–Lignin Hybrid Aerogels as Scaffolds for Tissue Engineering. J. Supercrit. Fluids 2015, 105, 1–8.
- (113) Kai, D.; Ren, W.; Tian, L.; Chee, P. L.; Liu, Y.; Ramakrishna, S.; Loh, X. J. Engineering Poly(Lactide)–Lignin Nano**fibres** with Antioxidant Activity for Biomedical Application. *ACS Sustain. Chem. Eng.* **2016**, *4*, 5268–5276.
- (114) Ma, Z.; Kotaki, M.; Inai, R.; Ramakrishna, S. Potential of Nanofibre Matrix as Tissue-Engineering Scaffolds. *Tissue Eng.* **2005**, *11*, 101–109.
- (115) Li, C.; Born, A. K.; Schweizer, T.; Zenobi-Wong, M.; Cerruti, M.; Mezzenga, R. Amyloid-Hydroxyapatite Bone Biomimetic Composites. *Adv. Mater.* 2014, 26, 3207-3212.
- (116) Das, S.; Kumawat, M. K.; Ranganathan, S.; Kumar, R.; Adamcik, J.; Kadu, P.; Padinhateeri, R.; Srivastava, R.; Mezzenga, R.; Maji, S. K. Cell Alignment on Graphene– Amyloid Composites. *Adv. Mater. Interfaces* **2018**, *5*, 1800621.
- (117) Atak, B. H.; Buyuk, B.; Huysal, M.; Isik, S.; Senel, M.; Metzger, W.; Cetin, G. Preparation and Characterization of Amine Functional Nano-Hydroxyapatite/Chitosan Bionanocomposite for Bone Tissue Engineering Applications. *Carbohydr. Polym.* 2017, 164, 200–213.
- (118) Ji, M.; Li, H.; Guo, H.; Xie, A.; Wang, S.; Huang, F.; Li, S.; Shen, Y.; He, J. A Novel Porous Aspirin-Loaded (GO/CTS-HA)n Nanocomposite Films: Synthesis and Multifunction for Bone Tissue Engineering. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2016**, *153*, 124–132.
- (119) Oliveira Barud, H. G.; Barud, H. D. S.; Cavicchioli, M.; Do Amaral, T. S.; De Oliveira Junior, O. B.; Santos, D. M.; De Oliveira Almeida Petersen, A. L.; Celes, F.; Borges, V. M.; De Oliveira, C. I.; et al. Preparation and Characterization of a Bacterial Cellulose/Silk Fibroin Sponge Scaffold for Tissue Regeneration. *Carbohydr. Polym.* 2015, *128*, 41-51.
- (120) Gholizadeh, S.; Moztarzadeh, F.; Haghighipour, N.; Ghazizadeh, L.; Baghbani, F.; Shokrgozar, M. A.; Allahyari, Z. Preparation and Characterization of Novel Functionalized Multiwalled Carbon Nanotubes/Chitosan/β-Glycerophosphate Scaffolds for Bone Tissue Engineering. *Int. J. Biol. Macromol.* **2017**, *97*, 365-372.
- (121) Farooq, A.; Yar, M.; Khan, A. S.; Shahzadi, L.; Siddiqi, S. A.; Mahmood, N.; Rauf, A.; Qureshi, Z. U. A.; Manzoor, F.; Chaudhry, A. A.; et al. Synthesis of Piroxicam Loaded Novel Electrospun Biodegradable Nanocomposite Scaffolds for Periodontal Regeneration. *Mater. Sci. Eng. C* 2015, *56*, 104-113.

- (122) Liu, M.; Zheng, H.; Chen, J.; Li, S.; Huang, J.; Zhou, C. Chitosan-Chitin Nanocrystal Composite Scaffolds for Tissue Engineering. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2016**, *152*, 832-840.
- (123) Saber-Samandari, S.; Saber-Samandari, S. Biocompatible Nanocomposite Scaffolds Based on Copolymer-Grafted Chitosan for Bone Tissue Engineering with Drug Delivery Capability. *Mater. Sci. Eng. C* **2017**, *75*, 721-732.
- (124) Nadim, A.; Khorasani, S. N.; Kharaziha, M.; Davoodi, S. M. Design and Characterization of Dexamethasone-Loaded Poly (Glycerol Sebacate)-Poly Caprolactone/Gelatin Scaffold by Coaxial Electro Spinning for Soft Tissue Engineering. *Mater. Sci. Eng. C* 2017, 78, 47-58.
- (125) Barabadi, Z.; Azami, M.; Sharifi, E.; Karimi, R.; Lotfibakhshaiesh, N.; Roozafzoon, R.; Joghataei, M. T.; Ai, J. Fabrication of Hydrogel Based Nanocomposite Scaffold Containing Bioactive Glass Nanoparticles for Myocardial Tissue Engineering. *Mater. Sci. Eng. C* 2016, 69, 1137-1146.
- (126) Keskin, Z.; Sendemir Urkmez, A.; Hames, E. E. Novel Keratin Modified Bacterial Cellulose Nanocomposite Production and Characterization for Skin Tissue Engineering. *Mater. Sci. Eng. C* 2017, 75, 1144-1153.
- (127) Camarero-Espinosa, S.; Rothen-Rutishauser, B.; Weder, C.; Foster, E. J. Directed Cell Growth in Multi-Zonal Scaffolds for Cartilage Tissue Engineering. *Biomaterials* 2016, 74, 42-52
- (128) Zhang, C.; Salick, M. R.; Cordie, T. M.; Ellingham, T.; Dan, Y.; Turng, L. S. Incorporation of Poly(Ethylene Glycol) Grafted Cellulose Nanocrystals in Poly(Lactic Acid) Electrospun Nanocomposite Fibres as Potential Scaffolds for Bone Tissue Engineering. *Mater. Sci. Eng. C* 2015, 49, 463-471.
- (129) Mkhabela, V.; Ray, S. S. Biodegradation and Bioresorption of Poly(ε-Caprolactone) Nanocomposite Scaffolds. *Int. J. Biol. Macromol.* 2015, 79, 186-192.
- (130) Beladi, F.; Saber-Samandari, S.; Saber-Samandari, S. Cellular Compatibility of Nanocomposite Scaffolds Based on Hydroxyapatite Entrapped in Cellulose Network for Bone Repair. *Mater. Sci. Eng. C* 2017, 75, 385-392.
- (131) Shrestha, B. K.; Mousa, H. M.; Tiwari, A. P.; Ko, S. W.; Park, C. H.; Kim, C. S. Development of Polyamide-6,6/Chitosan Electrospun Hybrid Nanofibrous Scaffolds for Tissue Engineering Application. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2016**, *148*, 107-114.
- (132) Sepahvandi, A.; Eskandari, M.; Moztarzadeh, F. Fabrication and Characterization of SrAl₂O₄: Eu²⁺ Dy³⁺/CS-PCL Electrospun Nanocomposite Scaffold for Retinal Tissue Regeneration. *Mater. Sci. Eng. C* 2016, *66*, 306-314.
- (133) Mahdieh, Z.; Bagheri, R.; Eslami, M.; Amiri, M.; Shokrgozar, M. A.; Mehrjoo, M. Thermoplastic Starch/Ethylene Vinyl Alcohol/Forsterite Nanocomposite as a Candidate Material for Bone Tissue Engineering. *Mater. Sci. Eng. C* **2016**, *69*, 301-310.
- (134) Bhowmick, A.; Jana, P.; Pramanik, N.; Mitra, T.; Banerjee, S. L.; Gnanamani, A.; Das, M.; Kundu, P. P. Multifunctional Zirconium Oxide Doped Chitosan Based Hybrid Nanocomposites as Bone Tissue Engineering Materials. *Carbohydr. Polym.* 2016, 151, 879-888.

- (135) Felgner, P. L.; Gadek, T. R.; Holm, M.; Roman, R.; Chan, H. W.; Wenz, M.; Northrop, J. P.; Ringold, G. M.; Danielsen, M. Lipofection: A Highly Efficient, Lipid-Mediated DNA-Transfection Procedure. *Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci.* **1987**, *84*, 7413–7417.
- (136) May, S.; Ben-Shaul, A. DNA-Lipid Complexes: Stability of Honeycomb-like and Spaghetti-like Structures. *Biophys. J.* **1997**, *73*, 2427–2440.
- (137) Dan, N. The Structure of DNA Complexes with Cationic Liposomes-Cylindrical or Flat Bilayers? *Biochim. Biophys. Acta* **1998**, *1369*, 34–38.
- (138) Bruinsma, R. Electrostatics of DNA-Cationic Lipid Complexes: Isoelectric Instability. *Eur. Phys. J. B* **1998**, *4*, 75–88.
- (139) Farkas, C.; Rezessy-Szabó, J. M.; Gupta, V. K.; Bujna, E.; Pham, T. M.; Pásztor-Huszár, K.; Friedrich, L.; Bhat, R.; Thakur, V. K.; Nguyen, Q. D. Batch and Fed-Batch Ethanol Fermentation of Cheese-Whey Powder with Mixed Cultures of Different Yeasts. *Energies* 2019, *12* (23), 4495.
- (140) Harries, D.; May, S.; Gelbart, W. M.; Ben-Shaul, A. Structure, Stability, and Thermodynamics of Lamellar DNA-Lipid Complexes. *Biophys. J.* **1998**, *75*, 159–173.
- (141) Tros de Ilarduya, C.; Sun, Y.; Düzgüneş, N. Gene Delivery by Lipoplexes and Polyplexes. *Eur. J. Pharm. Sci.* 2010, *40*, 159–170.
- (142) An, K.; Zhao, P.; Lin, C.; Liu, H. A pH and Redox Dual Responsive 4-Arm Poly(Ethylene Glycol)-Block-Poly(Disulfide Histamine) Copolymer for Non-Viral Gene Transfection in Vitro and in Vivo. *Int. J. Mol. Sci.* 2014, *15*, 9067–9081.
- (143) Pandele, A. M.; Neacsu, P.; Cimpean, A.; Staras, A. I.; Miculescu, F.; Iordache, A.; Voicu, S. I.; Thakur, V. K.; Toader, O. D. Cellulose Acetate Membranes Functionalized with Resveratrol by Covalent Immobilization for Improved Osseointegration. *Appl. Surf. Sci.* 2018, 438, 2–13.
- (144) Corobea, M. C.; Muhulet, O.; Miculescu, F.; Antoniac, I. V.; Vuluga, Z.; Florea, D.; Vuluga, D. M.; Butnaru, M.; Ivanov, D.; Voicu, S. I.; Thakur, V. K. Novel Nanocomposite Membranes from Cellulose Acetate and Clay-Silica Nanowires. *Polym. Adv. Technol.* **2016**, *27* (12), 1586–1595.
- (145) Prateek; Thakur, V. K.; Gupta, R. K. Recent Progress on Ferroelectric Polymer-Based Nanocomposites for High Energy Density Capacitors: Synthesis, Dielectric Properties, and Future Aspects. *Chem. Rev.* **2016**, *116* (7), 4260–4317.
- (146) Thakur, V. K.; Vennerberg, D.; Kessler, M. R. Green Aqueous Surface Modification of Polypropylene for Novel Polymer Nanocomposites. ACS Appl. Mater. Interfaces 2014, 6 (12), 9349–9356.
- (147) Dalmas, F.; Cavaillé, J.Y.; Gauthier, C.; Chazeau, L.; Dendievel, R. Viscoelastic Behavior and Electrical Properties of Flexible Nanofibre Filled Polymer Nanocomposites. Influence of Processing Conditions. *Compos. Sci. Technol.* 2007, 67, 829–839.
- (148) Sorrentino, A.; Gorrasi, G.; Vittoria, V. Potential Perspectives of Bio-Nanocomposites for Food Packaging Applications. *Trends Food Sci. Technol.* **2007**, *18*, 84–95.

- (149) Camargo, P. H. C.; Satyanarayana, K. G.; Wypych, F. Nanocomposites: Synthesis, Structure, Properties and New Application Opportunities. *Mater. Res.* **2009**, *12*, 1–39.
- (150) Koelsch, C. Edible Water Vapor Barriers: Properties and Promise. *Trends Food Sci. Technol.* **1994**, *5*, 76–81.
- (151) Cha, D. S.; Chinnan, M. S. Biopolymer-Based Antimicrobial Packaging: A Review. *Crit. Rev. Food Sci. Nutr.* **2004**, *44*, 223–237.
- (152) Homco-Ryan, C. L.; Ryan, K. J.; Brewer, M. S. Comparison of Functional Characteristics of Modified Corn Gluten Meal In Vitro and in an Emulsified Meat Model System. J. Food Sci. 2003, 68, 2638–2643.
- (153) Momany, F. A.; Sessa, D. J.; Lawton, J. W.; Selling, G. W.; Hamaker, S. A. H.; Willett, J. L. Structural Characterization of α-Zein. J. Agric. Food Chem. 2006, 54, 543–547.
- (154) Gao, C.; Stading, M.; Wellner, N.; Parker, M. L.; Noel, T. R.; Mills, E. N. C.; Belton, P. S. Plasticization of a Protein-Based Film by Glycerol: A Spectroscopic, Mechanical, and Thermal Study. J. Agric. Food Chem. 2006, 54, 4611–4616.
- (155) de Britto, D.; Campana-Filho, S. P. Kinetics of the Thermal Degradation of Chitosan. *Thermochim. Acta* **2007**, *465*, 73–82.
- (156) Chirkov, S. N. The Antiviral Activity of Chitosan (Review). *Appl. Biochem. Microbiol.* **2002**, *38*, 1–8.
- (157) Chien, R.C.; Yen, M.T.; Mau, J.L. Antimicrobial and Antitumor Activities of Chitosan from Shiitake Stipes, Compared to Commercial Chitosan from Crab Shells. *Carbohydr. Polym.* 2016, 138, 259–264.
- (158) Qi, L.; Xu, Z. In Vivo Antitumor Activity of Chitosan Nanoparticles. *Bioorg. Med. Chem. Lett.* **2006**, *16*, 4243–4245.
- (159) Jeon, Y.J.; Kim, S.K. Continuous Production of Chitooligosaccharides Using a Dual Reactor System. *Process Biochem.* **2000**, *35*, 623–632.
- (160) Jeon, Y.J.; Park, P.J.; Kim, S.K. Antimicrobial Effect of Chitooligosaccharides Produced by Bioreactor. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2001**, *44*, 71–76.
- (161) Travan, A.; Pelillo, C.; Donati, I.; Marsich, E.; Benincasa, M.; Scarpa, T.; Semeraro, S.; Turco, G.; Gennaro, R.; Paoletti, S. Non-Cytotoxic Silver Nanoparticle-Polysaccharide Nanocomposites with Antimicrobial Activity. *Biomacromolecules* 2009, *10*, 1429–1435.
- (162) Raghavendra, G. M.; Jayaramudu, T.; Varaprasad, K.; Sadiku, R.; Ray, S. S.; Mohana Raju, K. Cellulose–Polymer–Ag Nanocomposite Fibres for Antibacterial Fabrics/Skin Scaffolds. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2013**, *93*, 553–560.
- (163) Shankar, S.; Reddy, J. P.; Rhim, J.-W.; Kim, H.-Y. Preparation, Characterization, and Antimicrobial Activity of Chitin Nanofibrils Reinforced Carrageenan Nanocomposite Films. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2015**, *117*, 468–475.
- (164) Dehnad, D.; Mirzaei, H.; Emam-Djomeh, Z.; Jafari, S.-M.; Dadashi, S. Thermal and Antimicrobial Properties of Chitosan–Nanocellulose Films for Extending Shelf Life of Ground Meat. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2014**, *109*, 148–154.

- (165) Valencia-Chamorro, S. A.; Palou, L.; del Río, M. A.; Pérez-Gago, M. B. Antimicrobial Edible Films and Coatings for Fresh and Minimally Processed Fruits and Vegetables: A Review. *Crit. Rev. Food Sci. Nutr.* 2011, *51*, 872–900.
- (166) Tippabattini, J.; Sc, M.; Raju, K. M. Development and Characterization of Novel Biodegradable Inorganic Nanocomposite Hydrogels for Biomedical Applications; **2013**.
- (167) Liyaskina, E.; Revin, V.; Paramonova, E.; Nazarkina, M.; Pestov, N.; Revina, N.; Kolesnikova, S. Nanomaterials from Bacterial Cellulose for Antimicrobial Wound Dressing. J. Phys. Conf. Ser. 2017, 784, 012034.
- (168) Verma, A.; Thakur, S.; Mamba, G.; Prateek; Gupta, R. K.; Thakur, P.; Thakur, V. K. Graphite Modified Sodium Alginate Hydrogel Composite for Efficient Removal of Malachite Green Dye. *Int. J. Biol. Macromol.* **2020**, *148*, 1130–1139.
- (169) Shandilya, P.; Sudhaik, A.; Raizada, P.; Hosseini-Bandegharaei, A.; Singh, P.; Rahmani-Sani, A.; Thakur, V.; Saini, A. K. Synthesis of Eu3+–doped ZnO/Bi2O3 Heterojunction Photocatalyst on Graphene Oxide Sheets for Visible Light-Assisted Degradation of 2,4-Dimethyl Phenol and Bacteria Killing. *Solid State Sci.* 2020, *102*, 106164.
- (170) Kumar, A.; Raizada, P.; Singh, P.; Hosseini-Bandegharaei, A.; Thakur, V. K. Facile Synthesis and Extended Visible Light Activity of Oxygen and Sulphur Co-Doped Carbon Nitride Quantum Dots Modified Bi2MoO6 for Phenol Degradation. J. Photochem. Photobiol. Chem. 2020, 397, 112588.
- (171) Adu, C.; Jolly, M.; Thakur, V. K. Exploring New Horizons for Paper Recycling: A Review of Biomaterials and Biorefinery Feedstocks Derived from Wastepaper. *Curr. Opin. Green Sustain. Chem.* **2018**, *13*, 21–26.
- (172) Huang, H.J.; Ramaswamy, S.; Tschirner, U. W.; Ramarao, B. V. A Review of Separation Technologies in Current and Future Biorefineries. *Sep. Purif. Technol.* **2008**, *62*, 1–21.
- (173) Drioli, E. D.; Romano, M. Progress and New Perspectives on Integrated Membrane Operations for Sustainable Industrial Growth. *Ind. Eng. Chem. Res.* 2001, 40, 1277–1300.
- (174) Bolisetty, S.; Mezzenga, R. Amyloid-Carbon Hybrid Membranes for Universal Water Purification. *Nat. Nanotechnol.* **2016**, *11*, 365–371.
- (175) Mezher, T.; Fath, H.; Abbas, Z.; Khaled, A. Techno-Economic Assessment and Environmental Impacts of Desalination Technologies. *Desalination* **2011**, *266*, 263–273.
- (176) Wang X., Han G., Shen Z., Sun R. Fabrication, Property, and Application of Lignin-Based Nanocomposites. In: Thakur V., Thakur M. (eds) Eco-friendly Polymer Nanocomposites. Advanced Structured Materials Springer, New Delhi, 2015, 74, 73-99.
- (177) Zirehpour, A.; Rahimpour, A.; Seyedpour, F.; Jahanshahi, M. Developing New CTA/CA-Based Membrane Containing Hydrophilic Nanoparticles to Enhance the Forward Osmosis Desalination. *Desalination* **2015**, *371*, 46–57.
- (178) Volesky, B. Detoxification of Metal-Bearing Effluents: Biosorption for the next Century. *Hydrometallurgy* **2001**, *59*, 203–216.
- (179) Sarin, V.; Pant, K. K. Removal of Chromium from Industrial Waste by Using Eucalyptus

Bark. Bioresour. Technol. 2006, 97, 15–20.

- (180) Hashim, M. A.; Mukhopadhyay, S.; Sahu, J. N.; Sengupta, B. Remediation Technologies for Heavy Metal Contaminated Groundwater. *J. Environ. Manage.* **2011**, *92*, 2355–2388.
- (181) Muzzarelli, R. A. A.; Morganti, P.; Morganti, G.; Palombo, P.; Palombo, M.; Biagini, G.; Mattioli Belmonte, M.; Giantomassi, F.; Orlandi, F.; Muzzarelli, C. Chitin Nanofibrils/Chitosan Glycolate Composites as Wound Medicaments. *Carbohydr. Polym.* 2007, *70*, 274–284.
- (182) Muzzarelli, R. A. A. Nanochitins and Nanochitosans, Paving the Way to Eco-Friendly and Energy-Saving Exploitation of Marine Resources. In *Polymer Science: A Comprehensive Reference*; Elsevier, 2012; pp 153–164.
- (183) Khan, S. B.; Alamry, K. A.; Bifari, E. N.; Asiri, A. M.; Yasir, M.; Gzara, L.; Ahmad, R. Z. Assessment of Antibacterial Cellulose Nanocomposites for Water Permeability and Salt Rejection. *J. Ind. Eng. Chem.* 2015, *24*, 266–275.
- (184) El Badawi, N.; Ramadan, A. R.; Esawi, A. M. K.; El-Morsi, M. Novel Carbon Nanotube– Cellulose Acetate Nanocomposite Membranes for Water Filtration Applications. *Desalination* 2014, 344, 79–85.
- (185) Manjarrez Nevárez, L.; Ballinas Casarrubias, L.; Canto, O. S.; Celzard, A.; Fierro, V.; Ibarra Gómez, R.; González Sánchez, G. Biopolymers-Based Nanocomposites: Membranes from Propionated Lignin and Cellulose for Water Purification. *Carbohydr. Polym.* 2011, 86, 732–741.
- (186) Bleiman, N.; Mishael, Y. G. Selenium Removal from Drinking Water by Adsorption to Chitosan–Clay Composites and Oxides: Batch and Columns Tests. J. Hazard. Mater. 2010, 183, 590–595.
- (187) Khedr, M. A.; Waly, A. I.; Hafez, A. I.; Ali, H. Synthesis of Modified Chitosan-Montmorillonite Nanocomposite. *Aust. J. Basic Appl. Sci.* **2012**, *6*, 216–226.
- (188) Pandey, S.; Mishra, S. B. Organic–Inorganic Hybrid of Chitosan/Organoclay Bionanocomposites for Hexavalent Chromium Uptake. J. Colloid Interface Sci. 2011, 361, 509–520.
- (189) Futalan, C. M.; Kan, C.C.; Dalida, M. L.; Pascua, C.; Wan, M.W. Fixed-Bed Column Studies on the Removal of Copper Using Chitosan Immobilized on Bentonite. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2011**, *83*, 697–704.
- (190) Khalil, T. E.; Elhusseiny, A. F.; El-dissouky, A.; Ibrahim, N. M. Functionalized Chitosan Nanocomposites for Removal of Toxic Cr (VI) from Aqueous Solution. *React. Funct. Polym.* 2020, 146.
- (191) Chauke, V. P.; Maity, A.; Chetty, A. High-Performance towards Removal of Toxic Hexavalent Chromium from Aqueous Solution Using Graphene Oxide-Alpha Cyclodextrin-Polypyrrole Nanocomposites. J. Mol. Liq. 2015, 211, 71–77.
- (192) Badruddoza, A. Z. M.; Shawon, Z. B. Z.; Tay, W. J. D.; Hidajat, K.; Uddin, M. S. Fe₃O₄/Cyclodextrin Polymer Nanocomposites for Selective Heavy Metals Removal from Industrial Wastewater. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2013**, *91*, 322–332.

- (193) Saad, A. H. A.; Azzam, A. M.; El-Wakeel, S. T.; Mostafa, B. B.; Abd El-latif, M. B. Removal of Toxic Metal Ions from Wastewater Using ZnO@Chitosan Core-Shell Nanocomposite. *Environ. Nanotechnology, Monit. Manag.* 2018, 9, 67–75.
- (194) Bolisetty, S.; Reinhold, N.; Zeder, C.; Orozco, M. N.; Mezzenga, R. Efficient Purification of Arsenic-Contaminated Water Using Amyloid-Carbon Hybrid Membranes. *Chem. Commun.* **2017**, *53*, 5714-5717.
- (195) Zhang, Q.; Bolisetty, S.; Cao, Y.; Handschin, S.; Adamcik, J.; Peng, Q.; Mezzenga, R. Selective and Efficient Removal of Fluoride from Water: In Situ Engineered Amyloid Fibril/ZrO2 Hybrid Membranes. *Angew. Chemie Int. Ed.* **2019**, *58*, 6012-6016.
- (196) Liu, J.; Liu, G.; Liu, W. Preparation of Water-Soluble β-Cyclodextrin/Poly(Acrylic Acid)/Graphene Oxide Nanocomposites as New Adsorbents to Remove Cationic Dyes from Aqueous Solutions. *Chem. Eng. J.* 2014, 257, 299–308.
- (197) Patra, A. S.; Ghorai, S.; Ghosh, S.; Mandal, B.; Pal, S. Selective Removal of Toxic Anionic Dyes Using a Novel Nanocomposite Derived from Cationically Modified Guar Gum and Silica Nanoparticles. *J. Hazard. Mater.* **2016**, *301*, 127–136.
- (198) Wang, D.; Liu, L.; Jiang, X.; Yu, J.; Chen, X. Adsorption and Removal of Malachite Green from Aqueous Solution Using Magnetic β-Cyclodextrin-Graphene Oxide Nanocomposites as Adsorbents. *Colloids Surfaces A Physicochem. Eng. Asp.* 2015, 466, 166–173.
- (199) Mahmoodian, H.; Moradi, O.; Shariatzadeha, B.; Salehf, T. A.; Tyagi, I.; Maity, A.; Asif, M.; Gupta, V. K. Enhanced Removal of Methyl Orange from Aqueous Solutions by Poly HEMA–Chitosan-MWCNT Nano-Composite. J. Mol. Liq. 2015, 202, 189–198.
- (200) Gomes, R. F.; de Azevedo, A. C. N.; Pereira, A. G. B.; Muniz, E. C.; Fajardo, A. R.; Rodrigues, F. H. A. Fast Dye Removal from Water by Starch-Based Nanocomposites. J. Colloid Interface Sci. 2015, 454, 200–209.
- (201) Karim, Z.; Mathew, A. P.; Grahn, M.; Mouzon, J.; Oksman, K. Nanoporous Membranes with Cellulose Nanocrystals as Functional Entity in Chitosan: Removal of Dyes from Water. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2014**, *112*, 668–676.
- (202) Sohni, S.; Hashim, R.; Nidaullah, H.; Lamaming, J.; Sulaiman, O. Chitosan/Nano-Lignin Based Composite as a New Sorbent for Enhanced Removal of Dye Pollution from Aqueous Solutions. *Int. J. Biol. Macromol.* **2019**, *132*, 1304–1317.
- (203) Hassan, H.; Salama, A.; El-ziaty, A. K.; El-Sakhawy, M. New Chitosan/Silica/Zinc Oxide Nanocomposite as Adsorbent for Dye Removal. *Int. J. Biol. Macromol.* 2019, 131, 520–526.
- (204) Rahmi; Ismaturrahmi; Mustafa, I. Methylene Blue Removal from Water Using H₂SO₄
 Crosslinked Magnetic Chitosan Nanocomposite Beads. *Microchem. J.* 2019, 144, 397-402.
- (205) Mu, Y.; Rabaey, K.; Rozendal, R. A.; Yuan, Z.; Keller, J. Decolorization of Azo Dyes in Bioelectrochemical Systems. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **2009**, *43*, 5137–5143.
- (206) Wei, W.; Sun, R.; Jin, Z.; Cui, J.; Wei, Z. Hydroxyapatite–Gelatin Nanocomposite as a Novel Adsorbent for Nitrobenzene Removal from Aqueous Solution. *Appl. Surf. Sci.*

2014, *292*, 1020–1029.

- (207) Suratago, T.; Taokaew, S.; Kanjanamosit, N.; Kanjanaprapakul, K.; Burapatana, V.; Phisalaphong, M. Development of Bacterial Cellulose/Alginate Nanocomposite Membrane for Separation of Ethanol–Water Mixtures. J. Ind. Eng. Chem. 2015, 32, 305– 312.
- (208) Nunes, S. P.; Peinemann, K.V. Advanced Polymeric and Organic–Inorganic Membranes for Pressure-Driven Processes. In *Comprehensive Membrane Science and Engineering*; Elsevier, 2010; pp 113–129.
- (209) Naghsh, M.; Sadeghi, M.; Moheb, A.; Chenar, M. P.; Mohagheghian, M. Separation of Ethylene/Ethane and Propylene/Propane by Cellulose Acetate–Silica Nanocomposite Membranes. J. Memb. Sci. 2012, 423–424, 97–106.
- (210) Kim, W.; Lee, J. S.; Bucknall, D. G.; Koros, W. J.; Nair, S. Nanoporous Layered Silicate AMH-3/Cellulose Acetate Nanocomposite Membranes for Gas Separations. J. Memb. Sci. 2013, 441, 129–136.
- (211) Garg, V. .; Kumar, R.; Gupta, R. Removal of Malachite Green Dye from Aqueous Solution by Adsorption Using Agro-Industry Waste: A Case Study of Prosopis Cineraria. *Dye. Pigment.* 2004, 62, 1–10.
- (212) Banerjee, P.; DasGupta, S.; De, S. Removal of Dye from Aqueous Solution Using a Combination of Advanced Oxidation Process and Nanofiltration. J. Hazard. Mater. 2007, 140, 95–103.
- (213) Hasija, V.; Raizada, P.; Sudhaik, A.; Singh, P.; Thakur, V. K.; Khan, A. A. P. Fabrication of Ag/AgI/WO3 Heterojunction Anchored P and S Co-Doped Graphitic Carbon Nitride as a Dual Z Scheme Photocatalyst for Efficient Dye Degradation. *Solid State Sci.* 2020, 100, 106095.
- (214) Yu, S.; Gao, C.; Su, H.; Liu, M. Nanofiltration Used for Desalination and Concentration in Dye Production. *Desalination* **2001**, *140*, 97–100.
- (215) Wang, L.; Ji, S.; Wang, N.; Zhang, R.; Zhang, G.; Li, J.-R. One-Step Self-Assembly Fabrication of Amphiphilic Hyperbranched Polymer Composite Membrane from Aqueous Emulsion for Dye Desalination. *J. Memb. Sci.* **2014**, *452*, 143–151.
- (216) Forgacs, E.; Cserháti, T.; Oros, G. Removal of Synthetic Dyes from Wastewaters: A Review. *Environ. Int.* 2004, *30*, 953–971.
- (217) Zhu, J.; Tian, M.; Zhang, Y.; Zhang, H.; Liu, J. Fabrication of a Novel "Loose" Nanofiltration Membrane by Facile Blending with Chitosan–Montmorillonite Nanosheets for Dyes Purification. *Chem. Eng. J.* **2015**, *265*, 184–193.
- (218) Yang, Z.; Chen, S.; Hu, W.; Yin, N.; Zhang, W.; Xiang, C.; Wang, H. Flexible Luminescent CdSe/Bacterial Cellulose Nanocomoposite Membranes. *Carbohydr. Polym.* 2012, 88, 173–178.
- (219) Park, M.; Cheng, J.; Shin, S.; Ahn, S.; Kim, H. J.; Hyun, J. Flexible Nanocomposite Membrane of Bacterial Cellulose/Polyaniline. *Procedia Eng.* **2012**, *44*, 863–865.
- (220) Hu, W.; Chen, S.; Yang, Z.; Liu, L.; Wang, H. Flexible Electrically Conductive

Nanocomposite Membrane Based on Bacterial Cellulose and Polyaniline. J. Phys. Chem. B 2011, 115, 8453–8457.

- (221) Yang, J.M.; Wang, S.A. Preparation of Graphene-Based Poly(Vinyl Alcohol)/Chitosan Nanocomposites Membrane for Alkaline Solid Electrolytes Membrane. J. Memb. Sci. 2015, 477, 49–57.
- (222) Dharupaneedi, S. P.; Anjanapura, R. V.; Han, J. M.; Aminabhavi, T. M. Functionalized Graphene Sheets Embedded in Chitosan Nanocomposite Membranes for Ethanol and Isopropanol Dehydration via Pervaporation. *Ind. Eng. Chem. Res.* **2014**, *53*, 14474–14484.
- (223) Ulu, A.; Ates, B. Mishra, M. Sensors: Natural Polymeric Composites, In *Encycloulupedia of Polymer Applications, 3 Volume Set*; CRC Press, 2018, 2306-2327.
- (224) Rahmi; Ismaturrahmi; Mustafa, I. Methylene Blue Removal from Water Using H2SO4 Crosslinked Magnetic Chitosan Nanocomposite Beads. *Microchem. J.* 2019, 144, 397– 402.
- (225) Malhotra, B. D.; Kaushik, A. Metal Oxide–Chitosan Based Nanocomposite for Cholesterol Biosensor. *Thin Solid Films* **2009**, *518*, 614–620.
- (226) Jia, N.; Zhou, Q.; Liu, L.; Yan, M.; Jiang, Z. Direct Electrochemistry and Electrocatalysis of Horseradish Peroxidase Immobilized in Sol–Gel-Derived Tin Oxide/Gelatin Composite Films. *J. Electroanal. Chem.* **2005**, *580*, 213–221.
- (227) Singh, S. P.; Arya, S. K.; Pandey, P.; Malhotra, B. D.; Saha, S.; Sreenivas, K.; Gupta, V. Cholesterol Biosensor Based on Rf Sputtered Zinc Oxide Nanoporous Thin Film. *Appl. Phys. Lett.* **2007**, *91*, 063901.
- (228) Yu, J.; Ju, H. Preparation of Porous Titania Sol-Gel Matrix for Immobilization of Horseradish Peroxidase by a Vapor Deposition Method. *Anal. Chem.* **2002**, *74*, 3579–3583.
- (229) Kim, H.J.; Sook, H.Y.; Han, N.C.; Lyu, Y.K.; Lee, W.Y. Amperometric Glucose Biosensor Based on Sol-Gel-Derived Zirconia/Nafion Composite Film as Encapsulation Matrix. *Bull. Korean Chem. Soc.* **2006**, *27*, 65–70.
- (230) Ansari, A. A.; Kaushik, A.; Solanki, P. R.; Malhotra, B. D. Sol–Gel Derived Nanoporous Cerium Oxide Film for Application to Cholesterol Biosensor. *Electrochem. commun.* 2008, 10, 1246–1249.
- (231) Zarnegar, Z.; Safari, J. Fe₃O₄@chitosan Nanoparticles: A Valuable Heterogeneous Nanocatalyst for the Synthesis of 2,4,5-Trisubstituted Imidazoles. *RSC Adv.* **2014**, *4*, 20932–20939.
- (232) Khan, R.; Kaushik, A.; Solanki, P. R.; Ansari, A. A.; Pandey, M. K.; Malhotra, B. D. Zinc Oxide Nanoparticles-Chitosan Composite Film for Cholesterol Biosensor. *Anal. Chim. Acta* 2008, 616, 207–213.
- (233) Yu, C.; Gou, L.; Zhou, X.; Bao, N.; Gu, H. Chitosan–Fe₃O₄ Nanocomposite Based Electrochemical Sensors for the Determination of Bisphenol A. *Electrochim. Acta* 2011, 56, 9056–9063.

- (234) Steinmetz, R.; Mitchner, N. A.; Grant, A.; Allen, D. L.; Bigsby, R. M.; Ben-Jonathan, N. The Xenoestrogen Bisphenol A Induces Growth, Differentiation, and c-Fos Gene Expression in the Female Reproductive Tract. *Endocrinology* **1998**, *139*, 2741–2747.
- (235) Zou, J.; Yuan, M. M.; Huang, Z. N.; Chen, X. Q.; Jiang, X. Y.; Jiao, F. P.; Zhou, N.; Zhou, Z.; Yu, J. G. Highly-Sensitive and Selective Determination of Bisphenol A in Milk Samples Based on Self-Assembled Graphene Nanoplatelets-Multiwalled Carbon Nanotube-Chitosan Nanostructure. *Mater. Sci. Eng. C* 2019, *103*, 109848.
- (236) Nivethaa, E. A. K.; Narayanan, V.; Stephen, A. Synthesis and Spectral Characterization of Silver Embedded Chitosan Matrix Nanocomposite for the Selective Colorimetric Sensing of Toxic Mercury. *Spectrochim. Acta Part A Mol. Biomol. Spectrosc.* 2015, 143, 242–250.
- (237) Wang, X.; Yang, L.; Zhang, J.; Wang, C.; Li, Q. Preparation and Characterization of Chitosan–Poly(Vinyl Alcohol)/Bentonite Nanocomposites for Adsorption of Hg(II) Ions. *Chem. Eng. J.* 2014, 251, 404–412.
- (238) Rezaee, R.; Sardari, R.; Zarchi, S. R.; Talebi, A.; Nasri, S.; Imani, S.; Khoradmehr, A.; Alireza, S.; Sheshde, R. Toxicological Effects of Silver Nanoparticles in Rats. *African J. Microbiol. Res.* 2012, *6*, 5587–5593.
- (239) Sadani, K.; Nag, P.; Mukherji, S. LSPR Based Optical Fibre Sensor with Chitosan Capped Gold Nanoparticles on BSA for Trace Detection of Hg (II) in Water, Soil and Food Samples. *Biosens. Bioelectron.* 2019, 134, 90–96.
- (240) Bohrn, U.; Mucha, A.; Werner, C. F.; Trattner, B.; Bäcker, M.; Krumbe, C.; Schienle, M.; Stütz, E.; Schmitt-Landsiedel, D.; Fleischer, M.; et al. A Critical Comparison of Cell-Based Sensor Systems for the Detection of Cr(VI) in Aquatic Environment. *Sensors Actuators B Chem.* 2013, 182, 58–65.
- (241) Sánchez-Moreno, R. A.; Gismera, M. J.; Sevilla, M. T.; Procopio, J. R. Chromium(III) Determination without Sample Treatment by Batch and Flow Injection Potentiometry. *Anal. Chim. Acta* **2009**, *634*, 68–74.
- (242) Eary, L. E.; Rai, D. Kinetics of Chromium(III) Oxidation to Chromium(VI) by Reaction with Manganese Dioxide. *Environ. Sci. Technol.* **1987**, *21*, 1187–1193.
- (243) Hughes, S. I.; Dasary, S. S. R.; Singh, A. K.; Glenn, Z.; Jamison, H.; Ray, P. C.; Yu, H. Sensitive and Selective Detection of Trivalent Chromium Using Hyper Rayleigh Scattering with 5,5'-Dithio-Bis-(2-Nitrobenzoic Acid)-Modified Gold Nanoparticles. *Sens. Actuators. B. Chem.* 2013, 178, 514–519.
- (244) Zhou, Y.; Li, Y.S.; Tian, X.L.; Zhang, Y.Y.; Yang, L.; Zhang, J.H.; Wang, X.R.; Lu, S.Y.; Ren, H.L.; Liu, Z.S. Enhanced Ultrasensitive Detection of Cr(III) Using 5-Thio-2-Nitrobenzoic Acid (TNBA) and Horseradish Peroxidase (HRP) Dually Modified Gold Nanoparticles (AuNPs). *Sensors Actuators B Chem.* **2012**, *161*, 1108–1113.
- (245) Salimi, A.; Pourbahram, B.; Mansouri-Majd, S.; Hallaj, R. Manganese Oxide Nanoflakes/Multi-Walled Carbon Nanotubes/Chitosan Nanocomposite Modified Glassy Carbon Electrode as a Novel Electrochemical Sensor for Chromium (III) Detection. *Electrochim. Acta* 2015, 156, 207–215.
- (246) Apetrei, C.; Apetrei, I. M. Biosensor Based on Tyrosinase Immobilized on a Single-
Walled Carbon Nanotube-Modified Glassy Carbon Electrode for Detection of Epinephrine. *Int. J. Nanomedicine* **2013**, *8*, 4391.

- (247) Alkasir, R. S. J.; Ornatska, M.; Andreescu, S. Colorimetric Paper Bioassay for the Detection of Phenolic Compounds. *Anal. Chem.* **2012**, *84*, 9729–9737.
- (248 Biosensor Based on Quantum Dots/Chitosan Nanocomposite for Detection of Phenolic Compounds. *Anal. Biochem.* **2015**, *486*, 102–106.
- (249) Di Carlo, G.; Curulli, A.; Toro, R. G.; Bianchini, C.; De Caro, T.; Padeletti, G.; Zane, D.; Ingo, G. M. Green Synthesis of Gold–Chitosan Nanocomposites for Caffeic Acid Sensing. *Langmuir* 2012, 28, 5471–5479.
- (250) Yang, T.; Guo, X.; Ma, Y.; Li, Q.; Zhong, L.; Jiao, K. Electrochemical Impedimetric DNA Sensing Based on Multi-Walled Carbon Nanotubes–SnO2–Chitosan Nanocomposite. *Colloids Surfaces B Biointerfaces* **2013**, *107*, 257–261.
- (251) Baccarin, M.; Santos, F. A.; Vicentini, F. C.; Zucolotto, V.; Janegitz, B. C.; Fatibello-Filho, O. Electrochemical Sensor Based on Reduced Graphene Oxide/Carbon Black/Chitosan Composite for the Simultaneous Determination of Dopamine and Paracetamol Concentrations in Urine Samples. J. Electroanal. Chem. 2017, 799, 436– 443.
- (252) Figiela, M.; Wysokowski, M.; Galinski, M.; Jesionowski, T.; Stepniak, I. Synthesis and Characterization of Novel Copper Oxide-Chitosan Nanocomposites for Non-Enzymatic Glucose Sensing. *Sensors Actuators B Chem.* **2018**, 272, 296–307.
- (253) Moon, R. J.; Martini, A.; Nairn, J.; Simonsen, J.; Youngblood, J. Cellulose Nanomaterials Review: Structure, Properties and Nanocomposites. *Chem. Soc. Rev.* 2011, 40, 3941-3994.
- (254) Kafy, A.; Sadasivuni, K. K.; Akther, A.; Min, S.-K.; Kim, J. Cellulose/Graphene Nanocomposite as Multifunctional Electronic and Solvent Sensor Material. *Mater. Lett.* 2015, 159, 20–23.
- (255) Kaushik, A.; Kumar, R.; Arya, S.; Nair, M.; Malhotra, B.D.; Bhansali, S. Inorganic Hybrid Nanocomposite-Based Gas Sensors for Environmental Monitoring. *Chem. Rev.* 2015, 115, 4571–4606.
- (256) Chang, S. J.; Weng, W. Y.; Hsu, C. L.; Hsueh, T. J. High Sensitivity of a ZnO Nanowire-Based Ammonia Gas Sensor with Pt Nano-Particles. *Nano Commun. Netw.* 2010, 1, 283– 288.
- (257) Mun, S.; Chen, Y.; Kim, J. Cellulose–Titanium Dioxide–Multiwalled Carbon Nanotube Hybrid Nanocomposite and Its Ammonia Gas Sensing Properties at Room Temperature. *Sensors Actuators B Chem.* **2012**, *171–172*, 1186–1191.
- (258) Sakwises, L.; Rodthongkum, N.; Ummartyotin, S. SnO2- and Bacterial-Cellulose Nanofibre-Based Composites as a Novel Platform for Nickel-Ion Detection. *J. Mol. Liq.* 2017, 248, 246–252.
- (259) Priya, T.; Dhanalakshmi, N.; Thennarasu, S.; Thinakaran, N. Ultra Sensitive Detection of Cd (II) Using Reduced Graphene Oxide/Carboxymethyl Cellulose/Glutathione Modified Electrode. *Carbohydr. Polym.* 2018, 197, 366–374.

- (260) Manan, F. A. A.; Hong, W. W.; Abdullah, J.; Yusof, N. A.; Ahmad, I. Nanocrystalline Cellulose Decorated Quantum Dots Based Tyrosinase Biosensor for Phenol Determination. *Mater. Sci. Eng. C* 2019, 99, 37–46.
- (261) Zhang, Z.; Gu, S.; Ding, Y.; Shen, M.; Jiang, L. Mild and Novel Electrochemical Preparation of β-Cyclodextrin/Graphene Nanocomposite Film for Super-Sensitive Sensing of Quercetin. *Biosens. Bioelectron.* **2014**, *57*, 239–244.
- (262) Han, J.T.; Huang, K.J.; Li, J.; Liu, Y.M.; Yu, M. β-Cyclodextrin-Cobalt Ferrite Nanocomposite as Enhanced Sensing Platform for Catechol Determination. *Colloids Surfaces B Biointerfaces* 2012, 98, 58–62.
- (263) Wang, H.; Zhou, Y.; Guo, Y.; Liu, W.; Dong, C.; Wu, Y.; Li, S.; Shuang, S. β-Cyclodextrin/Fe₃O₄ Hybrid Magnetic Nano-Composite Modified Glassy Carbon Electrode for Tryptophan Sensing. *Sensors Actuators B Chem.* **2012**, *163*, 171–178.
- (264) Raoof, J.-B.; Ojani, R.; Karimi-Maleh, H. Carbon Paste Electrode Incorporating 1-[4-(Ferrocenyl Ethynyl) Phenyl]-1-Ethanone for Electrocatalytic and Voltammetric Determination of Tryptophan. *Electroanalysis* **2008**, *20*, 1259–1262.
- (265) Feng, X.; Shi, Y.; Hu, Z. Polyaniline/Polysulfone Composite Film Electrode for Simultaneous Determination of Hydroquinone and Catechol. *Mater. Chem. Phys.* 2011, 131, 72–76.
- (266) Alan, Crozier.; Lean, M.E.J.; McDonald, M.S.; Black, C. Quantitative Analysis of the Flavonoid Content of Commercial Tomatoes, Onions, Lettuce, and Celery. J. Agric. Food Chem. 1997, 45, 590–595.
- (267) Hsieh, C.L.; Peng, C.; Cheng, Y.M.; Lin, L.Y.; Ker, Y.B.; Chang, C.H.; Chen, K.C.; Peng, R. Y. Quercetin and Ferulic Acid Aggravate Renal Carcinoma in Long-Term Diabetic Victims. J. Agric. Food Chem. 2010, 58, 9273–9280.
- (268) Zhou, Z.; Gu, C.; Chen, C.; Zhao, P.; Xie, Y.; Fei, J. An Ultrasensitive Electrochemical Sensor for Quercetin Based on 1-Pyrenebutyrate Functionalized Reduced Oxide Graphene /Mercapto-β-Cyclodextrin /Au Nanoparticles Composite Film. Sensors Actuators B Chem. 2019, 288, 88–95.
- (269) Zhao, P.; Ni, M.; Xu, Y.; Wang, C.; Chen, C.; Zhang, X.; Li, C.; Xie, Y.; Fei, J. A Novel Ultrasensitive Electrochemical Quercetin Sensor Based on MoS2 - Carbon Nanotube @ Graphene Oxide Nanoribbons / HS-Cyclodextrin / Graphene Quantum Dots Composite Film. Sensors Actuators B Chem. 2019, 299, 126997.
- (270) Hui, Y.; Ma, X.; Hou, X.; Chen, F.; Yu, J. Silver Nanoparticles-β-Cyclodextrin-Graphene Nanocomposites Based Biosensor for Guanine and Adenine Sensing. *Ionics* (*Kiel*). 2015, 21, 1751–1759.
- (271) Palanisamy, S.; Thangavelu, K.; Chen, S.-M.; Velusamy, V.; Chang, M.-H.; Chen, T.-W.; Al-Hemaid, F. M. A.; Ali, M. A.; Ramaraj, S. K. Synthesis and Characterization of Polypyrrole Decorated Graphene/β-Cyclodextrin Composite for Low Level Electrochemical Detection of Mercury (II) in Water. *Sensors Actuators B Chem.* 2017, 243, 888–894.
- (272) Velusamy, V.; Palanisamy, S.; Kokulnathan, T.; Chen, S.-W.; Yang, T. C. K.; Banks, C. E.; Pramanik, S. K. Novel Electrochemical Synthesis of Copper Oxide Nanoparticles

Decorated Graphene-β-Cyclodextrin Composite for Trace-Level Detection of Antibiotic Drug Metronidazole. *J. Colloid Interface Sci.* **2018**, *530*, 37–45.

- (273) Karthika, A.; Rosaline, D. R.; Inbanathan, S. S. R.; Suganthi, A.; Rajarajan, M. Fabrication of Cupric Oxide Decorated β-Cyclodextrin Nanocomposite Solubilized Nafion as a High Performance Electrochemical Sensor for I-Tyrosine Detection. J. Phys. Chem. Solids 2020, 136, 109145.
- (274) Malik, P.; Srivastava, M.; Verma, R.; Kumar, M.; Kumar, D.; Singh, J. Nanostructured SnO₂ Encapsulated Guar-Gum Hybrid Nanocomposites for Electrocatalytic Determination of Hydrazine. *Mater. Sci. Eng. C* **2016**, *58*, 432–441.
- (275) Rastogi, P. K.; Ganesan, V.; Krishnamoorthi, S. Palladium Nanoparticles Decorated Gaur Gum Based Hybrid Material for Electrocatalytic Hydrazine Determination. *Electrochim. Acta* **2014**, *125*, 593–600.
- (276) Dai, H.; Feng, N.; Li, J.; Zhang, J.; Li, W. Chemiresistive Humidity Sensor Based on Chitosan/Zinc Oxide/Single-Walled Carbon Nanotube Composite Film. *Sensors Actuators, B Chem.* **2019**, 283, 786–792.
- (277) Qi, P.; Zhang, T.; Shao, J.; Yang, B.; Fei, T.; Wang, R. A QCM Humidity Sensor Constructed by Graphene Quantum Dots and Chitosan Composites. *Sensors Actuators, A Phys.* 2019, 287, 93–101.
- (278) Sadasivuni, K. K.; Kafy, A.; Kim, H. C.; Ko, H. U.; Mun, S.; Kim, J. Reduced Graphene Oxide Filled Cellulose Films for Flexible Temperature Sensor Application. *Synth. Met.* 2015, 206, 154–161.
- (279) Mahadeva, S. K.; Yun, S.; Kim, J. Flexible Humidity and Temperature Sensor Based on Cellulose-Polypyrrole Nanocomposite. *Sensors Actuators, A Phys.* 2011, 165 (2), 194– 199.
- (280) Li, J.; Zhang, J.; Sun, H.; Yang, Y.; Ye, Y.; Cui, J.; He, W.; Yong, X.; Xie, Y. An Optical Fibre Sensor Based on Carboxymethyl Cellulose/Carbon Nanotubes Composite Film for Simultaneous Measurement of Relative Humidity and Temperature. *Opt. Commun.* 2020, 467, 125740.
- (281) Zheng, C.; Yue, Y.; Gan, L.; Xu, X.; Mei, C.; Han, J. Highly Stretchable and Self-Healing Strain Sensors Based on Nanocellulose-Supported Graphene Dispersed in Electro-Conductive Hydrogels. *Nanomaterials* **2019**, *9* (7), 937.
- (282) Biswas, I.; Roy, P.; Majumder, M.; Sau, S.; Chakraborty, A. K. Low-Temperature Synthesis of Strain Sensor Based on Flexible ZnO Nanowire-Cellulose Paper Composite. *Micro Nano Lett.* **2017**, *12* (7), 474–477.
- (283) Siwal, S. S.; Zhang, Q.; Devi, N.; Thakur, V. K. Carbon-Based Polymer Nanocomposite for High-Performance Energy Storage Applications. *Polymers* **2020**, *12* (3), 505.
- (284) Kumar, A.; Sharma, M.; Thakur, P.; Thakur, V. K.; Rahatekar, S. S.; Kumar, R. A Review on Exergy Analysis of Solar Parabolic Collectors. *Sol. Energy* 2020, 197, 411– 432.
- (285) Wei, W.; Xiao, P.; Thakur, V. K.; Chianella, I.; Li, S. Smart Bilayer Polymer Reactor with Cascade/Non-Cascade Switching Catalyst Characteristics. *Mater. Today Chem.*

2020, 17, 100279.

- (286) Wang, D.W.; Zeng, Q.; Zhou, G.; Yin, L.; Li, F.; Cheng, H.M.; Gentle, I. R.; Lu, G. Q. M. Carbon–Sulfur Composites for Li–S Batteries: Status and Prospects. J. Mater. Chem. A 2013, 1, 9382-9394.
- (287) Girishkumar, G.; McCloskey, B.; Luntz, A. C.; Swanson, S.; Wilcke, W. Lithium–Air Battery: Promise and Challenges. J. Phys. Chem. Lett. **2010**, *1*, 2193–2203.
- (288) Jin, J.; Wen, Z.; Ma, G.; Lu, Y.; Cui, Y.; Wu, M.; Liang, X.; Wu, X. Flexible Self-Supporting Graphene–Sulfur Paper for Lithium Sulfur Batteries. *RSC Adv.* 2013, *3*, 2558-2560.
- (289) Gao, H.; Xiao, F.; Ching, C. B.; Duan, H. High-Performance Asymmetric Supercapacitor Based on Graphene Hydrogel and Nanostructured MnO₂. ACS Appl. Mater. Interfaces 2012, 4, 2801–2810.
- (290) Hassan, S.; Suzuki, M.; El-Moneim, A. A. Synthesis of MnO₂–Chitosan Nanocomposite by One-Step Electrodeposition for Electrochemical Energy Storage Application. *J. Power Sources* **2014**, *246*, 68–73.
- (291) Pandiselvi, K.; Thambidurai, S. Chitosan-ZnO/Polyaniline Ternary Nanocomposite for High-Performance Supercapacitor. *Ionics (Kiel)*. **2014**, *20*, 551–561.
- (292) Ghasem Hosseini, M.; Shahryari, E. A Novel High-Performance Supercapacitor Based on Chitosan/Graphene Oxide-MWCNT/Polyaniline. J. Colloid Interface Sci. 2017, 496, 371–381.
- (293) Torvi, A.; Naik, S.; Kariduraganavar, M. Development of Supercapacitor Systems Based on Binary and Ternary Nanocomposites Using Chitosan, Graphene and Polyaniline. *Chem. Data Collect.* **2018**, *17–18*, 459–471.
- (294) Suneetha, R. B.; Selvi, P.; Vedhi, C. Synthesis, Structural and Electrochemical Characterization of Zn Doped Iron Oxide/Grapheneoxide/Chitosan Nanocomposite for Supercapacitor Application. *Vacuum* **2019**, *164*, 396–404.
- (295) Yu, L.; Liu, J.; He, S.; Huang, C.; Gong, Z.; Gan, L.; Long, M. N-Doped RGO/C@Si Composites Using Sustainable Chitosan as the Carbon Source for Lithium-Ion Batteries. *Appl. Surf. Sci.* **2020**, *501*.
- (296) Kim, J.; Yun, S.; Ounaies, Z. Discovery of Cellulose as a Smart Material. *Macromolecules* **2006**, *39*, 4202–4206.
- (297) Zhang, Y.; Liu, Y.; Wang, X.; Sun, Z.; Ma, J.; Wu, T.; Xing, F.; Gao, J. Porous Graphene Oxide/Carboxymethyl Cellulose Monoliths, with High Metal Ion Adsorption. *Carbohydr. Polym.* 2014, 101, 392–400.
- (298) Patel, M. U. M.; Luong, N. D.; Seppälä, J.; Tchernychova, E.; Dominko, R. Low Surface Area Graphene/Cellulose Composite as a Host Matrix for Lithium Sulphur Batteries. J. *Power Sources* **2014**, *254*, 55–61.
- (299) Sadasivuni, K. K.; Ponnamma, D.; Kumar, B.; Strankowski, M.; Cardinaels, R.; Moldenaers, P.; Thomas, S.; Grohens, Y. Dielectric Properties of Modified Graphene Oxide Filled Polyurethane Nanocomposites and Its Correlation with Rheology. *Compos.*

Sci. Technol. 2014, 104, 18–25.

- (300) Lian, P.; Zhu, X.; Liang, S.; Li, Z.; Yang, W.; Wang, H. Large Reversible Capacity of High Quality Graphene Sheets as an Anode Material for Lithium-Ion Batteries. *Electrochim. Acta* **2010**, *55*, 3909–3914.
- (301) Xu, J.; Zhu, L.; Bai, Z.; Liang, G.; Liu, L.; Fang, D.; Xu, W. Conductive Polypyrrole– Bacterial Cellulose Nanocomposite Membranes as Flexible Supercapacitor Electrode. *Org. Electron.* **2013**, *14*, 3331–3338.
- (302) Liew, S. Y.; Thielemans, W.; Walsh, D. A. Polyaniline- and Poly(Ethylenedioxythiophene)-Cellulose Nanocomposite Electrodes for Supercapacitors. J. Solid State Electrochem. 2014, 18, 3307–3315.
- (303) Kafy, A.; Sadasivuni, K. K.; Kim, H.-C.; Akther, A.; Kim, J. Designing Flexible Energy and Memory Storage Materials Using Cellulose Modified Graphene Oxide Nanocomposites. *Phys. Chem. Chem. Phys.* **2015**, *17*, 5923–5931.
- (304) Yu, M.; Han, Y.; Li, J.; Wang, L. Magnetic N-Doped Carbon Aerogel from Sodium Carboxymethyl Cellulose/Collagen Composite Aerogel for Dye Adsorption and Electrochemical Supercapacitor. *Int. J. Biol. Macromol.* **2018**, *115*, 185–193.
- (305) Li, F.; Dong, Y.; Dai, Q.; Nguyen, T. T.; Guo, M. Novel Freestanding Core-Shell Nanofibrillated Cellulose/ Polypyrrole/Tubular Graphitic Carbon Nitride Composite Film for Supercapacitors Electrodes. *Vacuum* **2019**, *161*, 283–290.
- (306) Yang, S.; Sun, L.; An, X.; Qian, X. Construction of Flexible Electrodes Based on Ternary Polypyrrole@cobalt Oxyhydroxide/Cellulose **Fibre** Composite for Supercapacitor. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2020**, 229.
- (307) Lei, C.M.; Su, C.J.; Liao, J.A.; Luo, Y.J.; Yuan, W.L. Solvothermal Synthesis of Mg-Ni/C Nanocomposite for Hydrogen Storage Using Vitamin C as Carbon Source. *Int. J. Hydrogen Energy* 2012, *37*, 13849–13854.
- (308) Wang, Y.; Song, Y.; Wang, Y.; Chen, X.; Xia, Y.; Shao, Z. Graphene/Silk Fibroin Based Carbon Nanocomposites for High Performance Supercapacitors. J. Mater. Chem. A 2015, 3, 773–781.
- (309) Sun, K.; Zhang, Z.; Peng, H.; Zhao, G.; Ma, G.; Lei, Z. Hybrid Symmetric Supercapacitor Assembled by Renewable Corn Silks Based Porous Carbon and Redox-Active Electrolytes. *Mater. Chem. Phys.* **2018**, *218*, 229–238.
- (310) Bolisetty, S.; Adamcik, J.; Heier, J.; Mezzenga, R. Amyloid Directed Synthesis of Titanium Dioxide Nanowires and Their Applications in Hybrid Photovoltaic Devices. *Adv. Funct. Mater.* **2012**, *22*, 3424-3428.
- (311) Kord, B. Effect of Nanoparticles Loading on Properties of Polymeric Composite Based on Hemp **Fibre**/Polypropylene. *J. Thermoplast. Compos. Mater.* **2012**, *25*, 793–806.
- (312) Alamri, H.; Low, I. M. Effect of Water Absorption on the Mechanical Properties of N-SiC Filled Recycled Cellulose Fibre Reinforced Epoxy Eco-Nanocomposites. *Polym. Test.* 2012, 31, 810–818.
- (313) Tang, X.; Alavi, S. Structure and Physical Properties of Starch/Poly Vinyl

Alcohol/Laponite RD Nanocomposite Films. J. Agric. Food Chem. 2012, 60, 1954–1962.

- (314) Park, S.I.; Daeschel, M. A.; Zhao, Y. Functional Properties of Antimicrobial Lysozyme-Chitosan Composite Films. *J. Food Sci.* **2004**, *69*, 215–221.
- (315) Dean, K. M.; Do, M. D.; Petinakis, E.; Yu, L. Key Interactions in Biodegradable Thermoplastic Starch/Poly(Vinyl Alcohol)/Montmorillonite Micro- and Nanocomposites. *Compos. Sci. Technol.* 2008, 68, 1453–1462.
- (316) Wu, F.; Lan, X.; Ji, D.; Liu, Z.; Yang, W.; Yang, M. Grafting Polymerization of Polylactic Acid on the Surface of Nano-SiO₂ and Properties of PLA/PLA-Grafted-SiO₂ Nanocomposites. *J. Appl. Polym. Sci.* **2013**, *129*, 3019–3027.
- (317) Li, Y.; Sun, X. S. Preparation and Characterization of Polymer–Inorganic Nanocomposites by In Situ Melt Polycondensation of 1 -Lactic Acid and Surface-Hydroxylated MgO. *Biomacromolecules* **2010**, *11*, 1847–1855.
- (318) Sanchez-Garcia, M. D.; Gimenez, E.; Lagaron, J. M. Morphology and Barrier Properties of Nanobiocomposites of Poly(3-Hydroxybutyrate) and Layered Silicates. *J. Appl. Polym. Sci.* **2008**, *108*, 2787–2801.
- (319) Salaberria, A. M.; Diaz, R. H.; Labidi, J.; Fernandes, S. C. M. Role of Chitin Nanocrystals and Nano**fibres** on Physical, Mechanical and Functional Properties in Thermoplastic Starch Films. *Food Hydrocoll.* **2015**, *46*, 93–102.
- (320) Nafchi, A. M.; Nassiri, R.; Sheibani, S.; Ariffin, F.; Karim, A. A. Preparation and Characterization of Bionanocomposite Films Filled with Nanorod-Rich Zinc Oxide. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2013**, *96*, 233–239.
- (321) Bhat, R.; Abdullah, N.; Din, R. H.; Tay, G.-S. Producing Novel Sago Starch Based Food Packaging Films by Incorporating Lignin Isolated from Oil Palm Black Liquor Waste. *J. Food Eng.* 2013, 119, 707–713.
- (322) Dash, S.; Swain, S. K. Synthesis of Thermal and Chemical Resistant Oxygen Barrier Starch with Reinforcement of Nano Silicon Carbide. *Carbohydr. Polym.* 2013, 97, 758– 763.
- (323) Dash, S.; Kisku, S. K.; Swain, S. K. Effect of Nanoclay on Morphological, Thermal, and Barrier Properties of Albumin Bovine. *Polym. Compos.* **2012**, *33*, 2201–2206.
- (324) Ludueña, L.; Vázquez, A.; Alvarez, V. Effect of Lignocellulosic Filler Type and Content on the Behavior of Polycaprolactone Based Eco-Composites for Packaging Applications. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2012**, 87, 411–421.
- (325) Follain, N.; Belbekhouche, S.; Bras, J.; Siqueira, G.; Marais, S.; Dufresne, A. Water Transport Properties of Bio-Nanocomposites Reinforced by Luffa Cylindrica Cellulose Nanocrystals. J. Memb. Sci. 2013, 427, 218–229.
- (326) Swain, S. K.; Priyadarshini, P. P.; Patra, S. K. Soy Protein/Clay Bionanocomposites as Ideal Packaging Materials. *Polym. Plast. Technol. Eng.* **2012**, *51*, 1282–1287.
- (327) Rhim, J.W.; Lee, S.B.; Hong, S.I. Preparation and Characterization of Agar/Clay Nanocomposite Films: The Effect of Clay Type. *J. Food Sci.* **2011**, *76*, 40–48.

- (328) González, A.; Alvarez Igarzabal, C. I. Nanocrystal-Reinforced Soy Protein Films and Their Application as Active Packaging. *Food Hydrocoll.* **2015**, *43*, 777–784.
- (329) Kumar, P.; Sandeep, K. P.; Alavi, S.; Truong, V. D.; Gorga, R. E. Preparation and Characterization of Bio-Nanocomposite Films Based on Soy Protein Isolate and Montmorillonite Using Melt Extrusion. *J. Food Eng.* **2010**, *100*, 480–489.
- (330) Abdollahi, M.; Alboofetileh, M.; Rezaei, M.; Behrooz, R. Comparing Physico-Mechanical and Thermal Properties of Alginate Nanocomposite Films Reinforced with Organic and/or Inorganic Nanofillers. *Food Hydrocoll.* **2013**, *32*, 416–424.
- (331) Kochumalayil, J. J.; Bergenstråhle-Wohlert, M.; Utsel, S.; Wågberg, L.; Zhou, Q.; Berglund, L. A. Bioinspired and Highly Oriented Clay Nanocomposites with a Xyloglucan Biopolymer Matrix: Extending the Range of Mechanical and Barrier Properties. *Biomacromolecules* **2013**, *14*, 84–91.
- (332) Srivastava, S.; Haridas, M.; Basu, J. K. Optical Properties of Polymer Nanocomposites. *Bull. Mater. Sci.* 2008, *31*, 213–217.
- (333) Beecroft, L. L. B.; Ober, C. K. Nanocomposite Materials for Optical Applications. *Chem. Mater.* **1997**, *9*, 1302–1317.
- (334) Rathke, T. D.; Hudson, S. M. Review of Chitin and Chitosan as **Fibre** and Film Formers. *J. Macromol. Sci. Part C Polym. Rev.* **1994**, *34*, 375–437.
- (335) Mi, F.L. Synthesis and Characterization of a Novel Chitosan–Gelatin Bioconjugate with Fluorescence Emission. *Biomacromolecules* **2005**, *6*, 975–987.
- (336) Ravi Kumar, M. N. A Review of Chitin and Chitosan Applications. *React. Funct. Polym.* **2000**, *46*, 1–27.
- (337) Li, Z.; Ramay, H. R.; Hauch, K. D.; Xiao, D.; Zhang, M. Chitosan–Alginate Hybrid Scaffolds for Bone Tissue Engineering. *Biomaterials* **2005**, *26*, 3919–3928.
- (338) Božanić, D. K.; Trandafilović, L. V.; Luyt, A. S.; Djoković, V. 'Green' Synthesis and Optical Properties of Silver–Chitosan Complexes and Nanocomposites. *React. Funct. Polym.* **2010**, *70*, 869–873.
- (339) Mironenko, A.; Modin, E.; Sergeev, A.; Voznesenskiy, S.; Bratskaya, S. Fabrication and Optical Properties of Chitosan/Ag Nanoparticles Thin Film Composites. *Chem. Eng. J.* 2014, 244, 457–463.
- (340) Hassan, M. L.; Ward, A. A.; Eid, M. A. Mechanical, Optical, and Electrical Properties of Cellulosic Semiconductor Nanocomposites. *J. Appl. Polym. Sci.* **2010**, *115*, 2847–2854.
- (341) Zheng, W.; Chen, S.; Zhao, S.; Zheng, Y.; Wang, H. Zinc Sulfide Nanoparticles Template by Bacterial Cellulose and Their Optical Properties. J. Appl. Polym. Sci. 2014, 131.
- (342) Hambardzumyan, A.; Molinari, M.; Dumelie, N.; Foulon, L.; Habrant, A.; Chabbert, B.; Aguié-Béghin, V. Structure and Optical Properties of Plant Cell Wall Bio-Inspired Materials: Cellulose–Lignin Multilayer Nanocomposites. C. R. Biol. 2011, 334, 839– 850.

- (343) Zhang, H.; She, Y.; Zheng, X.; Chen, H.; Pu, J. Optical and Mechanical Properties of Polyurethane/Surface-Modified Nanocrystalline Cellulose Composites. *Chinese J. Polym. Sci.* 2014, *32*, 1363–1372.
- (344) Herrera, N.; Mathew, A. P.; Oksman, K. Plasticized Polylactic Acid/Cellulose Nanocomposites Prepared Using Melt-Extrusion and Liquid Feeding: Mechanical, Thermal and Optical Properties. *Compos. Sci. Technol.* **2015**, *106*, 149–155.
- (345) Cele, H. M.; Ojijo, V.; Chen, H.; Kumar, S.; Land, K.; Joubert, T.; de Villiers, M. F. R.; Ray, S. S. Effect of Nanoclay on Optical Properties of PLA/Clay Composite Films. *Polym. Test.* **2014**, *36*, 24–31.
- (346) Seo Woo Song; Yunjin Jeong; Sunghoon Kwon. Photocurable Polymer Nanocomposites for Magnetic, Optical, and Biological Applications. *IEEE J. Sel. Top. Quantum Electron.* 2015, *21*, 324–335.
- (347) Mahmoud, K. H.; Abbo, M. Synthesis, Characterization and Optical Properties of Gelatin Doped with Silver Nanoparticles. *Spectrochim. Acta Part A Mol. Biomol. Spectrosc.* **2013**, *116*, 610–615.
- (348) Liu, K.; Madbouly, S. A.; Schrader, J. A.; Kessler, M. R.; Grewell, D.; Graves, W. R. Biorenewable Polymer Composites from Tall Oil-Based Polyamide and Lignin-Cellulose Fibre. J. Appl. Polym. Sci. 2015, 132, 42592.
- (349) https://www.thebalancesmb.com/auto-recycling-facts-and-figures-2877933
- (350) Chieng, B. W.; Ibrahim, N. A.; Wan Yunus, W. M. Z.; Hussein, M. Z.; Silverajah, V. S. G. Graphene Nanoplatelets as Novel Reinforcement Filler in Poly(Lactic Acid)/Epoxidized Palm Oil Green Nanocomposites: Mechanical Properties. *Int. J. Mol. Sci.* 2012, *13*, 10920–10934.
- (351) Nemati, M.; Khademieslam, H.; Talaiepour, M.; Ghasemi, I.; Bazyar, B. Investigation on the Mechanical Properties of Nanocomposite Based on Wood Flour/ Recycle Polystyrene and Nanoclay. *J. Basic. Appl. Sci. Res* **2013**, *3*, 688–692.
- (352) Guigo, N.; Vincent, L.; Mija, A.; Naegele, H.; Sbirrazzuoli, N. Innovative Green Nanocomposites Based on Silicate Clays/Lignin/Natural Fibres. *Compos. Sci. Technol.* 2009, 69, 1979–1984.
- (353) Arao, Y. Flame Retardancy of Polymer Nanocomposite; Springer, Cham, 2015; pp 15–44.
- (354) Cheng, K.C.; Lin, Y.H.; Guo, W.; Chuang, T.H.; Chang, S.C.; Wang, S.F.; Don, T.M. Flammability and Tensile Properties of Polylactide Nanocomposites with Short Carbon **Fibres**. *J. Mater. Sci.* **2015**, *50*, 1605–1612.
- (355) Chow, W. S.; Teoh, E. L. Flexible and Flame Resistant Poly(Lactic Acid)/Organomontmorillonite Nanocomposites. J. Appl. Polym. Sci. 2015, 132.
- (356) Cheng, K.C.; Yu, C.B.; Guo, W.; Wang, S.F.; Chuang, T.H.; Lin, Y.H. Thermal Properties and Flammability of Polylactide Nanocomposites with Aluminum Trihydrate and Organoclay. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2012**, *87*, 1119–1123.
- (357) Wang, D.Y.; Leuteritz, A.; Wang, Y.Z.; Wagenknecht, U.; Heinrich, G. Preparation and

Burning Behaviors of Flame Retarding Biodegradable Poly(Lactic Acid) Nanocomposite Based on Zinc Aluminum Layered Double Hydroxide. *Polym. Degrad. Stab.* **2010**, *95*, 2474–2480.

- (358) Gao, L.; Zheng, G.; Zhou, Y.; Hu, L.; Feng, G. Improved Mechanical Property, Thermal Performance, Flame Retardancy and Fire Behavior of Lignin-Based Rigid Polyurethane Foam Nanocomposite. *J. Therm. Anal. Calorim.* **2015**, *120*, 1311–1325.
- (359) Kord, B. Effect of Organo-Modified Layered Silicates on Flammability Performance of High-Density Polyethylene/Rice Husk Flour Nanocomposite. J. Appl. Polym. Sci. 2011, 120, 607–610.
- (360) M.N., P.; Song, J. Fabrication and Characterisation of Starch/Chitosan/Flax Fabric Green Flame-Retardant Composites. *Int. J. Biol. Macromol.* **2018**, *119*, 1335–1343.
- (361) Wang, Z.; Shen, X.; Yan, Y.; Qian, T.; Wang, J.; Sun, Q.; Jin, C. Facile Fabrication of a PDMS@Stearic Acid-Al(OH)₃ Coating on Lignocellulose Composite with Superhydrophobicity and Flame Retardancy. *Appl. Surf. Sci.* **2018**, *450*, 387–395.
- (362) Jayarajan, R.; Kumar, R.; Gupta, J.; Dev, G.; Kadu, P.; Chatterjee, D.; Bahadur, D.; Maiti, D.; Maji, S. K. Fabrication of an Amyloid Fibril-Palladium Nanocomposite: A Sustainable Catalyst for C-H Activation and the Electrooxidation of Ethanol. *J. Mater. Chem. A* 2019, 7, 4486-4493.
- (363) Murugesan, S.; Park, T.-J.; Yang, H.; Mousa, S.; Linhardt, R. J. Blood Compatible Carbon Nanotubes--Nano-Based Neoproteoglycans. *Langmuir* **2006**, *22*, 3461–3463.
- (364) George, M.; Abraham, T. E. Polyionic Hydrocolloids for the Intestinal Delivery of Protein Drugs: Alginate and Chitosan -a Review. J. Control. Release 2006, 114, 1–14.
- (365) Calvo, P.; Remunan-Lopez, C.; Vila-Jato, J. L.; Alonso, M. J. Novel Hydrophilic Chitosan-Polyethylene Oxide Nanoparticles as Protein Carriers. J. Appl. Polym. Sci. 1997, 63, 125–132.
- (366) Tokarev, A.; Long, J.; Guari, Y.; Larionova, J.; Quignard, F.; Agulhon, P.; Robitzer, M.; Molnár, G.; Salmon, L.; Bousseksou, A. Spin Crossover Polysaccharide Nanocomposites. *New J. Chem.* **2013**, *37*, 3420-3432.
- (367) Mahdavinasab, M.; Hamzehloueian, M.; Sarrafi, Y. Preparation and Application of Magnetic Chitosan/Graphene Oxide Composite Supported Copper as a Recyclable Heterogeneous Nanocatalyst in the Synthesis of Triazoles. *Int. J. Biol. Macromol.* **2019**, *138*, 764-772.
- (368) Zheng, X.; Zhao, J.; Xu, M.; Zeng, M. Preparation of Porous Chitosan/Reduced Graphene Oxide Microspheres Supported Pd Nanoparticles Catalysts for Heck Coupling Reactions. *Carbohydr. Polym.* **2020**, *230*, 115583.
- (369) Jia, H.; Zhu, Y.; Song, X.; Zheng, X.; Liu, P. Magnetic Graphene Oxide-Ionic Liquid Grafted Chitosan Composites Anchored Pd(0) Nanoparticles: A Robust Heterogeneous Catalyst with Enhanced Activity and Superior Reusability for Hydrogen Generation from Ammonia Borane. *Int. J. Hydrogen Energy* 2018, 43 (43), 19939–19946.
- (370) Daraie, M.; Heravi, M. M. A Biocompatible Chitosan-Ionic Liquid Hybrid Catalyst for Regioselective Synthesis of 1,2,3-Triazols. *Int. J. Biol. Macromol.* **2019**, *140*, 939–948.

- (371) Stoica, R.; Şomoghi, R.; Ion, R. M. Preparation of Chitosan-Tripolyphosphate Nanoparticles for The Encapsulation of Polyphenols Extracted From Rose Hips. *Digest Journal of Nanomaterials and Biostructures*. **2013**, *8*, 955-963.
- (372) Sinha, V. .; Singla, A. .; Wadhawan, S.; Kaushik, R.; Kumria, R.; Bansal, K.; Dhawan, S. Chitosan Microspheres as a Potential Carrier for Drugs. *Int. J. Pharm.* 2004, 274, 1–33.
- (373) Susan, M.; Baldea, I.; Senila, S.; Macovei, V.; Dreve, S.; Ion, R. M.; Cosgarea, R. Photodamaging Effects of Porphyrins and Chitosan on Primary Human Keratinocytes and Carcinoma Cell Cultures. *Int. J. Dermatol.* **2011**, *50*, 280–286.
- (374) Bolisetty, S.; Arcari, M.; Adamcik, J.; Mezzenga, R. Hybrid Amyloid Membranes for Continuous Flow Catalysis. *Langmuir* **2015**, *51*, 13867-13873.
- (375) Platnieks, O.; Barkane, A.; Ijudina, N.; Gaidukova, G.; Thakur, V. K.; Gaidukovs, S. Sustainable Tetra Pak Recycled Cellulose / Poly(Butylene Succinate) Based Woody-like Composites for a Circular Economy. *J. Clean. Prod.* **2020**, *270*, 122321.
- (376) Daminabo, S. C.; Goel, S.; Grammatikos, S. A.; Nezhad, H. Y.; Thakur, V. K. Fused Deposition Modeling-Based Additive Manufacturing (3D Printing): Techniques for Polymer Material Systems. *Mater. Today Chem.* **2020**, *16*, 100248.
- (377) Michalska-Pożoga, I.; Rydzkowski, T.; Mazur, P.; Sadowska, O.; Thakur, V. K. A Study on the Thermodynamic Changes in the Mixture of Polypropylene (PP) with Varying Contents of Technological and Post-User Recyclates for Sustainable Nanocomposites. *Vacuum* **2017**, *146*, 641–648.

CERES https://dspace.lib.cranfield.ac.uk

School of Aerospace, Transport and Manufacturing (SATM)

2020-07-30

Chemistry, structures, and advanced applications of nanocomposites from biorenewable resources

Ates, Burhan

American Chemical Society

Ates B, Koytepe S, Ulu A, et al., (2020) Chemistry, structures, and advanced applications of nanocomposites from biorenewable resources. Chemical Reviews, Volume 120, Issue 17, 2020, pp. 9304-9362 https://doi.org/10.1021/acs.chemrev.9b00553 Downloaded from Cranfield Library Services E-Repository